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CORPORATE INFORMATION AND KEY DATES
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Registered Office
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

Head Office and Principal Place of Business
28th Floor, Emperor Group Centre

288 Hennessy Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Registrar (in Bermuda)

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

Registrar (in Hong Kong)
Tricor Secretaries Limited

17/F, Far East Finance Centre

16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

Principal Bankers

Bank of China Limited, Macau Branch

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited
Luso International Banking Limited

OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited

Key Dates

Annual Results Announcement
Annual General Meeting
- Latest Time to Lodge Transfers

23 June 2023

19 September 2023
13 September 2023
(before 4:30 p.m.)

Corporate Communications

This Annual Report (in both English and Chinese versions) is
available to any shareholder of the Company (“Shareholder”)
either in printed form or on the websites of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (https://
www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company. In order to protect
the environment, the Company highly recommends the
Shareholders to receive electronic copy of this annual report.
Shareholders have the right to change their choice of receipt
of our future Corporation Communications at any time by
reasonable notice in writing to the Company or the Company’s
Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited,
by post or by email at is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com.
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The board of directors (the “Board” or “Directors”) of Emperor
Entertainment Hotel Limited (the “Company”) announces the
audited consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2023 (the “Year”).

RESULTS

The Group’s total revenue decreased to HK$291.1 million
(2022: HK$415.9 million) during the Year, among which the
revenue from hotels and serviced apartments increased by
31.0% to HK$203.4 million (2022: HK$155.3 million), accounting
for 69.9% (2022: 37.3%) of the total revenue. A reversal
of impairment losses of assets of HK$31.8 million (2022:
impairment losses of HK$271.1 million) and a fair value gain of
investment properties of HK$19.7 million (2022: fair value loss
of HK$143.0 million) were recorded during the Year. Hence, loss
for the Year attributable to owners of the Company significantly
narrowed to HK$98.2 million (2022: HK$528.3 million). Basic
loss per share was HK$0.08 (2022: HK$0.44).

MARKET REVIEW

Benefiting from the reopening of borders between Macau,
Hong Kong and mainland China, and lifting of the inbound
quarantine measures for all travellers in early 2023, the
numbers of visitor arrivals to Hong Kong and Macau increased
substantially - surging by over 300 times and more than
doubling, respectively, from the first quarter of 2022 to the first
quarter of 2023. Both personal travel and business travel have
resumed, and there has been a notable rebound in consumption
and entertainment sentiments. All these factors demonstrated
the return of hospitality and gaming demand in the regions
during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group currently engages in provision of hospitality and
entertainment services, which cover a total of six hotels and
serviced apartments in Hong Kong and Macau, as follows:

- The Emperor Hotel and three blocks of The Unit Serviced
Apartments in Hong Kong - namely The Unit Morrison
Hill, The Unit Happy Valley and The Unit Davis, with
the latter newly acquired in September 2022. For details
of this acquisition, see under the “Financial and Other
Information” section below; and

- Grand Emperor Hotel (with gaming facilities) and Inn
Hotel in Macau.

About The Emperor Hotel

The Emperor Hotel, a 29-storey hotel in Wan Chali, is the
Group’s signature project in Hong Kong. It offers 299 guest
rooms together with leisure, dining and parking facilities, with
a gross floor area of approximately 115,700 square feet. The
Emperor Hotel creates a comfortable experience, catering to the
lifestyles of both leisure and business travellers. Golden Valley,
a Cantonese & Sichuan cuisine within the hotel, had been rated
as a Michelin 1-star restaurant.
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About The Unit Morrison Hill

Situated at the vibrant junction of Wan Chai and Causeway Bay,
The Unit Morrison Hill provides 18 stylish serviced apartments
for expatriates, MICE visitors, business travellers and overseas
professionals, on short-and long-term leases. With state-of-
the-art facilities and professional customer services, The Unit
Morrison Hill redefines the contemporary way of life.

About The Unit Happy Valley

The Unit Happy Valley, a 21-storey, 68-unit block located in
Happy Valley, is a highly sought-after residence given its ease
of access to the central business district. The area is vibrant,
conveniently located near Hong Kong’s commercial districts,
and affords easy access to the shopping areas in Causeway
Bay, Hong Kong Jockey Club and Hong Kong Stadium for
international sports events, and Hong Kong Sanatorium &
Hospital for medical check-ups, helping to ensure solid short-
term leasing demand.
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About The Unit Davis

The Unit Davis is a 22-storey serviced apartments building
on Davis Street, within the Kennedy Town and Mount Davis
area of Hong Kong Island, with a total of 57 units. Spurred by
the opening of Kennedy Town MTR station - which provides
a convenient link to Hong Kong’s central business district
as well as dining and entertainment areas such as Sai Ying
Pun, Lan Kwai Fong and Soho, the area has become a vibrant
neighbourhood with new residential and commercial offerings.
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About Grand Emperor Hotel

Located on the Macau Peninsula, Grand Emperor Hotel is a
26-storey hotel with a gross floor area of approximately 655,000
square feet and 311 guest rooms. It offers a wide range of
amenities including fitness centre, sauna and spa facilities, as
well as 5 restaurants and bars boasting fine cuisines from all
around the world. In addition, it offers gaming tables in the
mass market hall and slot machines. With strong commitment
to providing guests with unparalleled hospitality experience, the
Group delivers consistently top-quality services that translate
into high levels of customer satisfaction and loyalty.
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About Inn Hotel

Located at the heart of Macau’s Taipa Island, Inn Hotel is a
17-storey hotel with a gross floor area of approximately 209,000
square feet and 287 guest rooms. Through extending business
coverage from the Macau Peninsula to Taipa, it enables the Group
to fully capture the potential of Macau’s hospitality market.
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Hotels and Serviced Apartments Revenue

With the expansion of its serviced apartments portfolio and the
strong recovery of the hospitality sector, the revenue from the
hotels and serviced apartments increased by 31.0% to HK$203.4
million (2022: HK$155.3 million) during the Year, accounting
for 69.9% (2022: 37.3%) of the Group’s total revenue, which
included room revenue of HK$85.2 million (2022: HK$53.3
million), food and beverage revenue of HK$74.0 million (2022:
HK$77.4 million), and rental income and other revenue of
HK$44.2 million (2022: HK$24.6 million).

Gaming Revenue

Since the gaming operation was run by SJM Resorts, S.A.
(“SJM”) during a certain period of the Year, the gaming
revenue decreased to HK$87.7 million (2022: HK$260.6 million),
accounting for 30.1% (2022: 62.7%) of the Group’s total revenue.
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OUTLOOK

Hong Kong remains a key gateway for access to China’s capital
market and continues playing an important role within the
Greater Bay Area, while Macau is regarded as an entertainment
hub with a substantial number of world renowned integrated
resorts. Both regions are well positioned to welcome mainland
Chinese and international visitors. The Group believes the
future economic growth of both regions will benefit the tourist
and hospitality industries, enabling them to deliver long-term
positive returns.

To thrive in a highly competitive market in both regions, the
Group will continue strengthening its market presence by
enhancing the guest experience, implementing better customer
segmentation, and capitalising on its brand awareness arising
from its long establishment and popularity in Chinese-speaking
communities, while leveraging the synergies resulting from
being part of Emperor Group. The management will closely
monitor market developments, and seek to react in advance to
any foreseeable changes in the industry.
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FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION
Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial

Resources

During the Year, the Group utilised approximately HK$490.0
million for the acquisition of The Unit Davis, hence its
aggregate of bank balances and cash, short-term bank deposits
and pledged bank deposits decreased to HK$503.3 million (2022:
HK$1,049.9 million) as at 31 March 2023, which was mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollar. The Group continued to
maintain a healthy financial position and funded its operations
and capital expenditure by cash generated from its operations
and deposits reserved at the banks. During the Year, the Group
was not exposed to significant foreign exchange rates as most of
the Group’s assets, liabilities and transactions were transacted
at and denominated in the functional currency of its foreign
operations.

The Group’s current assets and current liabilities as at 31 March
2023 were HK$566.8 million (2022: HK$1,129.9 million) and
HK$253.2 million (2022: HK$309.2 million), respectively. As at
31 March 2023, the advances from non-controlling interests of
subsidiaries of the Company totalled HK$39.5 million (2022:
HK$39.5 million), which were denominated in Hong Kong
dollar, unsecured and interest-free, among which HK$39.0
million was repayable at the discretion of non-controlling
interests and availability of surplus fund of a subsidiary, and the
remaining HK$0.5 million was repayable by another subsidiary
after payment of all operating expenses and payables including
but not limited to bank loans and third party loans which are
due for repayment together with the accrued interest. The
Group was in a net cash position as at 31 March 2023 and hence
its gearing ratio (calculated as net debt divided by total equity)
was zero (2022: zero).

During the Year, the Company had repurchased 8,815,000
shares (the “Repurchased Shares”) of its own shares from the
market using internal resources, at an aggregate consideration
of HK$4.4 million, and an average price of HK$0.498 per share.
The Repurchased Shares had been cancelled during the Year,
and hence the total number of issued shares of the Company
right after its cancellation was reduced by about 0.7% to
1,188,490,983 (2022: 1,197,305,983) shares and its issued share
capital was HK$119,000 (2022: HK$120,000) as at 31 March
2023. Having considered the Group’s strong cash reserves, the
Directors believe the share repurchases would enhance value to
the Shareholders and benefit the Company and Shareholders as
a whole.
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Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2023, assets with carrying values of
approximately HK$613.2 million (2022: HK$1.7 billion) were
pledged to a bank (2022: two banks) as security for a banking
facility of HK$408.7 million (2022: a total of HK$520.0 million).
The facilities remained undrawn and available as at 31 March
2023 and 31 March 2022. In addition, the Group has a bank
deposit of HK$65.9 million (2022: HK$64.1 million) pledged as
security deposit for obtaining a bank guarantee in the amount
of approximately Macau Patacas 64.5 million (equivalent to
HK$62.6 million) in favour of SJM for the Group’s fulfilment of
all its obligations, as stipulated under the service agreements
and the addendum between the Group and SJM. As at 31 March
2023, another bank deposit of HK$0.3 million (2022: HK$0.4
million) was pledged as security deposit for the use of ferry
ticket equipment provided by a third party.

Hotel Rooms, Catering and Ancillary Services

Agreement with SJM

On 15 June 2022, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into an agreement with SJM for the provision
of the hotel rooms, catering and other ancillary services to SJM
in Grand Emperor Hotel for the period from 27 June 2022 to 31
December 2022. This enabled the Group to maintain a stable
income stream during the period. Details of the agreement were
set out in the joint announcement of the Company and Emperor
International Holdings Limited (“Emperor International”), the
parent company of the Company, dated 15 June 2022.

Acquisition of Asset

On 27 September 2022, the Group completed the acquisition
of the property interests of The Unit Davis via the acquisition
of the entire interest of Ever Explore Holdings Limited (“Ever
Explore”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Ever
Explore Group”) from a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of
Emperor International at a consideration of HK$490.0 million
(the “Acquisition”). Details of the Acquisition were set out
in the joint announcement of the Company and Emperor
International dated 15 July 2022 and the Company’s circular
dated 25 August 2022. After completion of the Acquisition,
the Group widened its revenue base and expanded its market
presence by enriching its assets portfolio. The Unit Davis has
commenced operation in August 2022; the occupancy rate was
over 95.0% during the Year.
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Service Agreement with SJM

On 30 December 2022, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company entered into an agreement with SJM for the
provision of services including but not limited to selling,
promotion, publicity, management and customer development
to SJM in Grand Emperor Hotel for a term of 3 years
commencing 1 January 2023. This was based on consideration
of clearer visibility regarding the future development of
Macau’s gaming industry, following the Macau Government’s
announcement of awarding 10-year gaming concessions to six
casino operators including SJM. Details of the agreement were
set out in the joint announcement and the supplemental joint
announcement of the Company and Emperor International
dated 30 December 2022 and 21 February 2023 respectively.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

The Group’s number of employees as at 31 March 2023 was 517
(2022: 876). Total staff costs including Directors’ remuneration
and the other staff costs (which included severance payments)
for the Year were approximately HK$257.4 million (2022:
HK$343.6 million). Each employee’s remuneration was
determined in accordance with individual’s responsibilities,
competence and skills, experience and performance, as well
as market pay levels. Staff benefits include medical and life
insurance, retirement benefits and other competitive fringe
benefits.

To provide incentive or reward to the staff, the Company has
adopted a share option scheme, particulars of which is set out
in the section headed “Share Options Scheme” on pages 145 and
146 of this annual report.
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Non-executive Director and Chairperson

LUK SIU MAN, SEMON, aged 67, a Non-executive Director of
the Company and the Chairperson of the Board. She joined the
Company in March 2000 and provides leadership for the Board.
Ms. Luk is also a non-executive director and the chairperson of
Emperor International (Stock Code: 163), which is an indirect
holding company of the Company. She worked in the banking
industry for almost 10 years. Ms. Luk graduated from The
University of Toronto with a Bachelor’s Degree in Commerce.

Executive Directors

WONG CHI FAI, aged 67, the Executive Director of the
Company. He joined the Company in 1991 and has been
responsible for the Group’s strategic planning, business growth
and development and overseeing the financial management
of the Group. Mr. Wong is the Chairman of the Executive
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee of
the Company as well as a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. He has over 30 years of finance and management
experience in different businesses ranging from hotel and
hospitality, property investment and development, retailing
of watch and jewellery, financial and securities services,
wholesaling and retailing of furniture, cinema development and
operation to entertainment production and investment, artiste
management as well as media and publication. Mr. Wong is
currently a director of Emperor International, Emperor Watch &
Jewellery Limited (Stock Code: 887) (“Emperor W&J”), Emperor
Capital Group Limited (Stock Code: 717) (“Emperor Capital
Group”), Emperor Culture Group Limited (Stock Code: 491)
(“Emperor Culture”) and Ulferts International Limited (Stock
Code: 1711) (“Ulferts”), all being listed members of Emperor
Group. He is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

FAN MAN SEUNG, VANESSA (Former Name: Fan Man Seung),
aged 60, the Executive Director of the Company. She joined
the Company in 1991 and has been responsible for the Group’s
strategic planning, business growth and development as well
as overseeing different functions within the Group. Ms. Fan is
also the Chairperson of the Corporate Governance Committee,
a member of the Executive Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company as well as a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. She has over 34 years of corporate
management experience in diversified businesses ranging from
hotel and hospitality, property investment and development,
retailing of watch and jewellery, financial and securities
services, wholesaling and retailing of furniture, cinema
development and operation to entertainment production
and investment, artiste management as well as media and
publication. Ms. Fan is currently a director of Emperor
International, Emperor W&J, Emperor Capital Group, Emperor
Culture and Ulferts, all being listed members of Emperor
Group. She is a lawyer by profession in Hong Kong and a
qualified accountant, and holds a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration.

FEPATE A TN

BE /N > B 4E675% 0 J AR 4 I AT T
3 S 8 - 72200043 H 4 3 4R % 7] 3 4
S o e L L BN A 7 2 B I
25 )Y B (B8 163) 2 JF AT
e I o 08 I GRAT AR 104 - Bk
TR E B R AR LR

PiTES

WM BLAEGTRE B AS 4N R AT 9 o
JATOOLAE i W A 28 7] » £ 3 A 42 8] 2 S A
Bl LU HE B DL R L S R
WO BARNTBHATRE G MBI E &
BB DL R AR 2N AT B 2 R 2 e
BEAT S04F 2 B HS I 5 B AT B 2 AR
s> B G i - ) A SR R B ERER
TR Sl R R R
[oF 3% J Ko 45 7 DA &8 L 48 S AR R - RO
B, {08 B A G S G o i 2 B A
W 055 AR TR BT A PR F (AR ML EE : 887)
(TR GEEER T ) - LR AEEARA
A OB 717) (T AR ]) 2%
B 2SR A PR 7 (B A ACBE : 491)
(T2 ) K kit B B A RS /) (g
M ACSE:1711) (THKAL ) 2 # 3 > 225/ )
AR EEY FHREAT KA FES
TR € B 2E & T B 0 B R R TR e w A
NEEFERGH -

TE > BAFe0R BANF ZMITES -
A1 N AN 7] > B H AL B 2 R
B EBE LR DN BB
AREIIEE- WL LR AARNFRACEZTIHREE
GER BT EEGMELZ RGN A D K
AN AT W B N 7 2 B g o 1% BE A Ii344E
ZAEE AR WMEL T ¥R iGN
S R B R A &
Tl 5 5 MRS~ A LA B R T~ I B g R
e AVENCE S VY E S YN -5 IV L
PR ER - UL LR AR R 8
PEERERE R R EAREE EELEER
b AR B EERE Y Ei K
BAF -k B E B HERIER LB AE
e il o I AT P A PR AE A o

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited ¥ £ 4244H% A R/AF 13

Annual Report 2022/2023 £



SN/

HPRSEBN B 2 JERE

Independent Non-executive Directors

KWAN SHIN LUEN, SUSANNA, aged 56, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in August
2015. She is the Chairperson of the Nomination Committee
as well as a member of the Audit Committee and Corporate
Governance Committee of the Company. Ms. Kwan is also the
independent non-executive director of Hypebeast Limited,
the shares of which were listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange
previously (Stock Code: 8359) and the listing was transferred to
the Main Board in March 2019 (Stock Code: 150). Ms. Kwan has a
legal practice focusing on corporate/commercial and corporate
finance matters in Hong Kong for more than 20 years, including
mergers & acquisitions, regulatory compliance, public offerings,
private placement of securities and open offers, joint ventures
and securities related compliance. She practices and specializes
as a corporate finance and legal and compliance lawyer.
Ms. Kwan graduated from the London School of Economics
(London).

LAI KA FUNG, MAY, aged 57, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in August 2016. She is
the Chairperson of the Remuneration Committee as well as a
member of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee
of the Company. Ms. Lai is a Certified Public Accountant and
has been engaged in the audit field for more than 20 years. She
is a Principal Partner of May K.F. Lai & Co. & H.H. Liu & Co.,
Certified Public Accountants. Ms. Lai is also an independent
non-executive director of Chinlink International Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 997). Ms. Lai is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and obtained a
Master’s Degree of Arts in International Accounting from City
University of Hong Kong.

YEUNG MAN SUN (Former name: Yeung Hiu Chong and
Yeung Yiu Chong), aged 43, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in August 2022. He
is the Chairman of the Audit Committee as well as a member
of the Remuneration Committee and Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company. He is currently a senior
management of a Hong Kong listed company and runs his own
certified public accountants firm. He is also an independent
non-executive director of Simplicity Holding Limited (Stock
Code: 8367). He has 20 years of experience in auditing, taxation,
financial management and advisory services field for an
international accounting firm, several corporations and other
listed companies. Mr. Yeung holds a Bachelor’s Degree of
Business Administration (Honours) in Accountancy from City
University of Hong Kong and a Master’s Degree in Corporate
Governance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is
an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, The Chartered Governance Institute and
The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute as well as a
member of the Society of Registered Financial Planners.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
HPEEH

The Directors present this annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

Adoption of Chinese Name as Secondary
Name

Pursuant to special resolution passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 18 August 2022 (“2022 AGM”)
and approval by the Registrar of Companies of Bermuda on 19
August 2022, the Chinese name of the Company “# 2 5 44 |}
A IR 7" was adopted as the secondary name of the Company.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 68 of this annual report.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the Year (2022: Nil).

Business Review and Performance

A fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion and analysis
of the Group’s performance during the Year, important events
occurred after the reporting period and an analysis of the
likely future development of the Group’s business are set out
in the Management Discussion and Analysis from pages 4 to
12 of this annual report. Description of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report from pages 30 to 60 of this annual report
and notes 33 and 34(b) to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

There is no important event affecting the Group that had
occurred since the end of the Year up to the date of this report.

In addition, an analysis of the Group’s performance during the
Year using financial key performance indicators is provided
in the Five-year Financial Summary on page 167. Discussion
on the Group’s environmental policy and performance,
key relationships with the Group’s key stakeholders as well
as compliance with relevant laws and regulations which
have significant impact on the Company are set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2022/2023 of the
Company.
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Investment Properties

During the Year, the Group acquired an investment property
through an acquisition of subsidiaries and it attributed
HK$490,000,000 in fair value to the Group at the date of
acquisition.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group revalued all of its investment
properties on an open market value basis. An increase in fair
value of HK$19,700,000 has been recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Details of changes in the investment properties of the Group are
set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of investment properties of the Group as at 31
March 2023 is set out on page 168 of this annual report.

Property, Plant and Equipment
During the Year, the Group acquired property, plant and
equipment at a cost of HK$26,113,000.

Details of changes in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Share Capital
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Reserves
Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
Year are set out on page 71 of this annual report.

Equity-linked Agreements

Other than the share option scheme as adopted by the Company
on 15 August 2013 (“Share Option Scheme”) as set out in note
29 to the consolidated financial statements, no equity linked
agreement was entered into by the Company during the Year or
subsisted at the end of the Year.
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Distributable Reserves

As at 31 March 2023, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to the Shareholders, calculated in accordance
with the provisions of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
amounting to HK$935,127,000 (2022: HK$915,431,000). In
addition, the Company’s share premium account in the amount
of HK$436,765,000 may be distributed in the form of fully paid
bonus shares.

Directors
The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Non-executive Director:
Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon (Chairperson)

Executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Chi Fai
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Ms. Kwan Shin Luen, Susanna

Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May

Mr. Yeung Man Sun (appointed on 18 August 2022)
Mr. Yu King Tin (retired on 18 August 2022)

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management as
at the date of this report are set out from pages 13 to 14 of this
annual report. Details of Directors’ remunerations are set out in
note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with Bye-laws 84(1) and 84(2) of the Company’s
Bye-laws, Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon (“Ms. Semon Luk”) and
Mr. Wong Chi Fai (“Mr. Bryan Wong”) shall retire by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on 19
September 2023 (“2023 AGM”) and, being eligible, shall offer
themselves for re-election thereat.

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at the
2023 AGM has an unexpired service contract with the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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Management Contracts

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the Group’s business were entered into or existed during
the Year.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Company has in force the permitted indemnity provisions
which are provided for in the Company’s Bye-laws and in the
directors and officers liability insurance maintained for the
Group in respect of potential liability and costs associated with
legal proceedings that may be brought against the Directors and
the directors of the Group respectively.

Emolument Policy

The emoluments of the Directors shall be decided by the Board
as recommended by the Remuneration Committee having
regard to a written remuneration policy (which ensures a
clear link to business strategy and a close alignment with the
Shareholders’ interest and current best practice). Remuneration
should be paid with reference to the Board’s corporate goals
and objectives, the salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities of the Executive and
Non-executive Directors, internal equity of employment
conditions across the Group and applicability of performance-
based remuneration. The Directors’ fees are paid in line with
market practice. No individual should determine his or her own
remuneration.

Employee’s remuneration was determined in accordance with
individual’s responsibilities, competence and skills, experience
and performance as well as market pay level. Remuneration
package includes, as the case may be, basic salary, Directors’
fees, housing allowances, contribution to pension schemes,
discretionary bonus relating to the financial performance of
the Group and individual performance, ad hoc rewards, share
options and other competitive fringe benefits such as medical
and life insurances. Details of the emoluments of the Directors
and the five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in
note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests

1n Securities

As at 31 March 2023, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors adopted by the Company (“EEH
Securities Code”) were as follows:

(A) Long position interests in the Company
Ordinary shares of HK$0.0001 each of the Company (the
“Shares”)

Ms. Semon Luk
[ 4+

Interest of spouse

i {1 42

Note: These Shares were held by Emperor Entertainment Hotel
Holdings Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
Emperor International. Emperor International is a company
with its shares listed in Hong Kong and as at 31 March
2023, approximately 74.71% of its issued shares was held by
Emperor International Group Holdings Limited (“Emperor
International Group Holdings”). The entire issued share of
Emperor International Group Holdings is wholly-owned by
Albert Yeung Holdings Limited (“AY Holdings”) which is held
by First Trust Services AG (“First Trust Services”), in trust for a
private discretionary trust set up by Dr. Yeung Sau Shing, Albert
(“Dr. Albert Yeung”), as founder of the private discretionary
trust, had deemed interests in the said Shares held by Emperor
International Group Holdings. By virtue of being the spouse of
Dr. Albert Yeung, Ms. Semon Luk had deemed interests in the
same Shares.
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(Note)

(Htat)

st : s% S B0 el o R R 2 [ R A
I B N D B AR T 2
PR R T AT o BE R BB —
WA AW 2 A E s H
A20234F3H31H #74.71% 2
BV BE AT Ay Hh D 5 o R A ]
T A PR 7 (T o 5 ] B 4 [
W 1) A o B B AR AR I
Z EHBE BEAT A A 2 B
BEVEAT BRI T ([ 4552 i e 2
B 2EEA > AR AE
FEPERE h First Trust Services
AG ([First Trust Services |)
547 - First Trust ServicesZ 15
Z s (Tt ) sor 2 A
ANWIEE e Z st A B+
(TN R (YN
R A T I A i
Fr A bl B 0y 0 HE 25 o B8 A B
Lot B A 2 WA 1% B
£ VAR (] 8 403 1) E i o
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(B) Long position interests in the Company’s (B) 7 A 2 w1 FH W6k 2; B 2 % 4T BE i
associated corporations

Ms. Semon Luk Emperor International  Interest of spouse 2,747,611,223 74.71
et t e L i {5 HEE i (Note)
(Hfit)
Emperor W&J -Ditto- 4,298,630,000 63.41
R R IR —[f] k- (Note)
(Hfit)
Emperor Culture -Ditto- 2,371,313,094 73.80
wE I EE —[A] k- (Note)
(Hfit)
Ulferts -Ditto- 600,000,000 75.00
[E1¢] —[A] I — (Note)
(Hfit)
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Emperor International ~ Beneficial owner 10,500,000 0.29
Vanessa e 5 ] JEEX DN

(“Ms. Vanessa Fan”)
ol L (& +])

Note: Emperor International, Emperor W&J, Emperor Culture WaE - HEELERRE - 35 R ER SRR 3K B UL E
and Ulferts are companies with their shares listed on the 2 TR AL 2 5 SR 8 Wk 2 BT B B
Stock Exchange. These shares were ultimately owned by the Wl o 5% 5F Wy T m AR B L N 1R A RE
respective private discretionary trusts which are also founded (5 e By 1 8 7 ) doe S HE A - B A o
by Dr. Albert Yeung. By virtue of being the spouse of Dr. Albert b Ry AR T 2 WA - BB R HEA AR
Yeung, Ms. Semon Luk had deemed interests in the same (7 BB A3 ) i
shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, none of the W& b SCr 4% /5 & A - 202343 A 31H >

Directors nor chief executives of the Company had any O 5 R W) 2 B AT BN B A

interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares 25 ) ECHCAT AT AR M 0 (G 78 R R O

and debentures of the Company or any of its associated 9 B Ak 1) S5 XVER ) 2 AT AR JBE A3 ~ AH B

corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO). B B A HE RS oh A AT AT RE 48 B0 A -

Share Options Ji I HE

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme. Particulars A<\ 5] £ 57 44 B BRE &1 81 o 1 i 51 1) 2
of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 29 to the I H i &5 A M H R M 5129 o [ 1 A HE 51 &1
consolidated financial statements. No share option was granted, — #f 4% i » HE 2 1 A AR 42 B P Bl =t 381 2 oy

exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme — HF7{fi - 5E&H T R4 -

since its adoption.

20 - Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 5% 2 #4475 4 R/AF]
' "© Annual Report 2022/2023 4Eif
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Arrangements to Purchase Shares or

Debentures

Other than the Share Option Scheme as stated above, at
the end of the Year and at no time during the Year was the
Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or its
fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors or chief executives of the Company or their spouse or
children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or
any other body corporate.

Other Persons’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares

So far as is known to any Director or chief executives of the
Company, as at 31 March 2023, the following persons or
corporations (other than Directors or chief executives of the
Company) who had, or were deemed or taken to have interests
and short position in the Shares or underlying Shares as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of
the SFO (“DI Register”) were as follows:

Long positions in the Shares

B ' Pt o A B 2 G R

Bk b ST At 22 B P W T ) b > R A AR B R B
7R A B TR AT AR R[] > AS 2% ]~ AT A 4 i
)~ O T 2 ) B (] AR B A R A A T S AT
iy 2 P Bl 3 25 AR 2 B s AT LN B B
824 2 T () BOR I 187K 1 ¢ Al il A AR 24 ]
Bl SHL A 5 94 IS £ R T 48 R 5 -

F At N\ 7 I 1 B AH BRI 4y =2
BE #5

202343131 H > AT ] ¥ 55 s A\ e
TFIBUN B BTN > B 25 = AR 2 7 i = AT BN
B4 30N A B O R 5 SRR B A 47 o
A AR 2 OBk A A RO R R IR R R
F B A ) 55336 ZE 17 B 2 B we it ([hE &
Balt ) 2 MRS KRR

Bty 2 5 A

Emperor International

Y 5B R T 324 ) ) 2 M i
AY Holdings Interest in a controlled corporation
152 FIE S L T 324 ) ) 2 M i
First Trust Services Trustee of a private discretionary
trust
FAABIEfEREZ ZREA
Dr. Albert Yeung Founder of a private discretionary
Pt + trust
FANBIIE 5 FEZ AL
Note: These Shares were the same Shares of which Ms. Semon Luk had

deemed interests as those set out under Section (A) of “Directors’
and Chief Executives’ Interests in Securities” above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, the Directors
or chief executives of the Company were not aware of any
other person or corporation (other than the Directors and
chief executives of the Company) who had, or were deemed or
taken to have, any interests or short positions in any Shares or
underlying Shares as recorded in the DI Register.

Interest in a controlled corporation

851,353,645 71.63
851,353,645 71.63
851,353,645 71.63
851,353,645 71.63

B IR ESC T RS TR 2
SR ) (A)— 0 BT 0B 2 - L A
2 I 6 -

B b SCHEER A Ah 0 R20234E3 31 H - Fal
AL Al R AT BN B AN AR AE T L5k
B (g5 B A 8 R e AT BN BLBR AR AT
A e 473 A Bl B 13 R A B O 2 B A
AT ZHC AN 2 6 R 2 AT o B i R A o

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited BEMEMEARAR 21 B
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Directors’ Interests in Competing
Business

As at 31 March 2023, none of the Directors nor their respective
associates was interested in any business which was considered
to compete or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group as required to be disclosed
pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”).

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the

Company’s Listed Securities

During the Year, the Company repurchased a total of
8,815,000 Repurchased Shares at an aggregate consideration
of HK$4,389,375 (before expenses) on the Stock Exchange, the
particulars of which are as follows:

ERNBFEG MG

R202343H31H I MEFREEXAZE
U B N A0 2y B A A ) 2 SE S R
S AT A A BB T (O o 4 M ) 2 AT Al
EWS NP MR A BT R 5 LA (T |k
TR ) T ZE T 4 R 2 S o

B 1] ~ A I LA 2 W] B
w77

A B AR S ED R B 3E BT DL AR AR
4,389,375 Ju (41 B B AT B [0 A 3
8,815,000/ i [l e A7 » A% H A an

September 2022
20224891

8,815,000

As at 31 March 2023, all of the Repurchased Shares were
cancelled. The repurchases were made with a view to enhancing
the net asset value and/or earnings per Share.

Save as disclosed above, during the Year, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities.

As at 31 March 2023, there was a total of 1,188,490,983 (2022:
1,197,305,983) Shares in issue.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing Shareholders.

22 Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 3 S {8447 5 AR /A
- "© Annual Report 2022/2023 4Eif

0.540

0.435 4,389,375

TA20234F3 H31H » T A B [|] B 2 B GE 8 o
HEAT I (] 5 A B B M MR LR o

e 7 4 5 81 AR A ) BB
0 P J 5 1 0 00 [~ e 5 S8 B £ ] A
24 % -

R20234E3H31H - 84T & 1 84 8 A
1,188,490,983M% (20224F : 1,197,305,983
) o

18 o i A

A28 ) 2 2% 7 40 T S e S A
% R O 6 BT SR8 0 A 5 2 B 5
L -
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Directors’ Material Interests in
TI’aIlSElCtIOIlS, Arrangements or Contracts
and Connected Transactions

During the Year, the Group had the following transactions
with connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company and certain Directors had material interests, directly
or indirectly in certain transactions:

(i) Continuing Connected Transactions - 2020
Master Leasing Agreement (“2020 MLA”)

Date:

Parties:

Term:

Nature:

3 December 2020
(i) The Company
(ii) Emperor W&]J

From 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2024

The 2020 MLA sets out the framework of
the terms governing all existing and future
tenancy/licensing transaction(s) (“Tenancy
Transactions”) regarding leasing of certain
retail shops to Emperor W&]J with aggregate
tenancy annual caps being set for each of the
financial years ended/ending 31 March 2022,
2023 and 2024 (“Aggregate Tenancy Annual
Caps”).

Pursuant to the 2020 MLA, relevant members
of the Group and any member(s) of Emperor
W&J may from time to time enter into any
definitive leasing agreements in relation
to any Tenancy Transactions (“Definitive
Leasing Agreement(s)”). The terms of each
of Definitive Leasing Agreements shall be
on normal commercial terms or on terms
which are no less favorable available to the
Group than terms offered by independent
third parties. The terms and rental shall be

ERNRS KRG HZE
K2 I B R2 %)

T AR AE T 5 AR AR T G BLAS % R BN L
FE LA AT NS G  iE TEH
i R RN RE AR S X ON

(1) FFHEBHE R 5 — 20204 5
bk (120204 F8 #1510 ik ] )
H#: 202041230

F_Iil‘

mi: o ) AL
(i) % EEHE

AR F20214E4 ] 1 H # £20244E3 1
31H

PE - 20204 A8 F1 B 1o o 0 5 B A
&% T80 6T 0% 2 8k
REZABAREKME
BHEZ S (TMBERS]) MHESR
AR Il B £ 20224F ~ 20234F
F 202443 H31H 114 B B4R B
ISR LR (TS
SRR -

MRAE20204F A B ok A4
G PAE Y 7373
AE AT 8 B 2> 7] AT A B AT A AR
B2 5 AT S AT A IE U R Hh ek
(MEXME Wk ) - &L E
T e 2k M e — M i 3 Ml K
SR N E WAL =T TR
S B 2 MR RT S o MRk T 4 B
ACN TR R T o I EAR 4R % %
WA 2% B A L
1A B R T A 2 ) S e

subject to arm’s length negotiation and be G e T -
determined based on the condition of the
properties and with reference to the then
prevailing market rents on property(ies)
comparable in location, area and permitted
use.
Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited ¥ £ 4244H% A R/AF 23
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Connected The Company and Emperor W&]J are both
relationship indirectly controlled by the respective private
and Directors’  discretionary trusts which were both set
interest: up by Dr. Albert Yeung, who is the deemed

substantial shareholder of the Company. As
such, under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules,
Emperor W&]J is a deemed connected person
of the Company. Ms. Semon Luk had deemed
interest in the transactions by virtue of being
an associate of the eligible beneficiaries of
the aforesaid private discretionary trust that
controls Emperor W&]J.

Announcement: 3 December 2020

Aggregate During the Year, the aggregate amount of the
amount: Tenancy Transactions with Emperor W&J or

its relevant members was HK$3,732,000.

(i) Continuing Connected Transaction — Service

Agreements (“Service Agreement(s)”) in
relation to the operation of Grand Emperor
Hotel
Date: st Service 19 February 2010 and 4 May
Agreement: 2020 (for an addendum)
(expired on 26 June 2022)

2nd Service 30 December 2022

Agreement:

Parties and (i) Tin Hou Limited (“Tin Hou”), an indirect
connected wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
relationship:

(ii) SJM, a company incorporated in Macau,
which is principally engaged in gaming
business in Macau and is one of the six
concessionaires/sub-concessionaires
licensed to carry on casino operations in
Macau. SJM has 19.99% equity interest
in Luck United Holdings Limited, an
indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, and is a connected person
of the Company by virtue of being a
substantial shareholder of a subsidiary
of the Company.

24 Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited ¥ 244 % AR /AR
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BB 0RO R B dE 2 R TR T i
R#ESE WL (WU AARAZER
WEdE: RO O 2 A R NI 45 RE R
P o A AR LT AR A
T4AE - 3% 5 G 3R TR U Bl /5 A
I ) Z BN o B A A
PR 378 PN IS WN
ELAcN-U-BE W Nd ) (N
BB TR TR 52 5 v B A -

) 2020412 /13H
MEw: WA SR IR K

HOAR B LB 2 A AL RS 5 AR
% 53,732,0003 7T ©

()R MBER S - H R R LR
%%@EZH&%%%(FH&%%

H e i1y 20104E2H19H X
MRH  20204E5H4H (H 7%
Wik Wk (iR20224F6H

26 H J&= i)
9y 20224E12H30H
R %
EE
Ak () KEAWRAA (TKEE])
I 22 1 (A7) 2 [H 12 2 G T
f%: )

(i) MR — [T R A
2Tl EER R S
WSETS > By 7S ] R IR P
BB R R 3 2 £
RRR A A WO 2 R
oo MR AR LNFZ
[H] 4% JF 2 G W1 & 2> 7 Luck
United Holdings Limited
19.99% 2 et A~ F
W JBg 2 ) 2 B IR
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Terms:

Nature:

Announcements:

Receipt:

1st Service Agreement: LULIE B — 153 I T ok -

From 1 October 2009 to termination upon H20094F10H1H #E & % F 4

occurrence of certain events, including the AR AL BRI IR R R AR

expiration of SJM’s gambling license under Bt A G RIET 2 R R

the Gaming Concession Contract on 31 March JA20204E3 H 31 H Jish 38 2 5% 1 %

2020 or any earlier termination thereof or R RESR AT A 1L > SUE AT — 5

winding up or cessation of business of either R T4 IE 2E T o KE A T W R

party. As supplemented by the addendum, FE o o — 0 WS ek 2 SRR A

the term of the 1st Service Agreement was 202044 A 1H i = £20224F6 /]

extended from 1 April 2020 to 26 June 2022. 26H -

2nd Service Agreement: 5 0 R i k-

From 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2025 H20234F1 A 1H 22025412431
H

The provision of services including PH : KB ] R R A B O R O 4

management services and promotion JHE A8 5 AR AR5 (L8 R S

services by Tin Hou to SJM in relation to VLY SR PR 3 V8 €

the operation of Grand Emperor Hotel EZWE AN NE (BRFEZ

whereas Tin Hou and/or the nominated [7i] 2 BB 2 W) 5 P AR A F) & R

junket promoter (a fellow subsidiary of Tin A7) AT R 7 S 5 O

Hou and wholly-owned by the Company) Wl 7 R B R I

shall be entitled to a share of the gross win i I BRI JER I

and gross loss in respect of the monthly TR 8 2 — V) T it 4 B S o

operating performance of the gaming area of

Grand Emperor Hotel and bear all necessary

operational expenses in relation to the

operation of the gaming area.

13 May 2020, 1 April 2022, 30 December 2022 ) 20204E5 H13H ~ 20224F4 H1H »

and 21 February 2023 2022412 H30H K20234E2 H 21
H

During the Year, the Group’s receipt amounts W 1t - TR A AR BE 1A > 7 452 [ T 5 — 3 AR

under the 1st Service Agreement and the 2nd 5 T ok e B M PR S B s LT

Service Agreement were HK$24,382,000 and Z W A & 3 Bl 524,382,000

HK$63,359,000 respectively. 76 %63,359,000%: 7C ©

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited ¥ £ 4244H% A R/AF o5
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(i) 4o 4810 052 5y — 4 O A R A 2 I

(iii) Continuing Connected Transaction -

Agreement in relation to hotel rooms,
catering and ancillary services (“Hotel
Rooms and Catering Agreement”) for the
gaming operation run by SJM in Grand
Emperor Hotel

Date: 15 June 2022

Parties: (i) Tin Hou
(i) SIM

Term: From 27 June 2022 to 31 December 2022

Nature: The provision of hotel rooms, food and
beverage and other ancillary services by Tin
Hou to SJM for the gaming operation run by
SIM in Grand Emperor Hotel.

Announcement: 15 June 2022

Fees received: During the Year, all the fees from SJM under

the Hotel Rooms and Catering Agreement
amounted to HK$13,690,000.

(iv) Major and Connected Transaction — Sale

and Purchase Agreement in relation to the
acquisition of entire equity interest in Ever

Explore

Date: 15 July 2022

Parties: (i) Emperor Property Development Limited
(“Vendor”), a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of Emperor International

(ii) Poly Keen International Limited
(“Purchaser”), an indirect non wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company
26 Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 3 S {8447 5 AR /A
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S8 0 0 Y R R A O OO S
B O A A B 5 e T 0
B B Bt )

HA 202246 H15H

W () K=
(i) g

SO - H202246 27 H £20224F12 14
31H

T : KR A 5 5 IR T 5
T Y AR S 16 YR 4R I
B A AR EL A B IR -

A 202246 H15H

TR = AR B A TR I S %

LR &RE T2 &R A
13,690,000 JC «

(iv) 322 K BH 22 5 — A BR WO
Ever ExploreZ: # HE i i §
# ton uk

H - 20224£7715H
HEYREERARALA
(TH)) > BEZBEL
FHk A B E 2 ]

(ii) Poly Keen International
Limited ([EJ5]) » BAL
) 2 [ IR 2 M A A
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Nature: The Purchaser entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with the Vendor in
relation to the purchase and sale of (a) the
entire equity interest of Ever Explore, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Emperor
International which indirectly holds the
tower situated at No.22 Davis Street, Hong
Kong and (b) the shareholder’s loan due by
Ever Explore to the Vendor at a consideration
of HK$490,000,000.

Connected Emperor International is a connected
relationship person of the Company by virtue of being
and Director’s  the substantial shareholder of the Company.
interests: Ms. Semon Luk had deemed interest in the

transaction by virtue of being an associate
of the eligible beneficiaries of the private
discretionary trust which ultimately owned
Emperor International as to 74.71%.

Announcement: 15 July 2022

Circular: 25 August 2022

Independent 19 September 2022
Shareholders’
approval:

Completion: 27 September 2022

Compliance with Disclosure

Requirements

Save as “Rental income from a related company” (under the
2020 MLA) in the amount of HK$3,732,000 for the Year as shown
in note 38(a) to the consolidated financial statements which
constituted a continuing connected transaction (“CCT”) of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, all other
transactions as shown in that note are connected transactions
exempted from announcement, reporting, annual review
and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the above non-exempt
connected transactions.

PR B B RIS B ek A
AR KL @)R B
W] 4% 2 & i} 8 2 ") Ever Explore
(MERFAMLREEZ K LHE
2255 B R M) 1 2 i HE K (D)
Ever Explorelfé {1 & J5 i) B 3 £
0 AR08 £5490,000,000 7¢ -

BRAEBA R 5% 5 PR TR A 2 A A
RS AN F R B A o i

BES: BT BRI R E K
74.71%%E 15 1 FL NI 15 5 7C &
U UNE] 1 UNERT R R
T AE G A A

VA 20224£7715H
i 202248 1 25H

BBk 20224F9H 19H
e :

TR : 20224£9 4 27H

3551 i R L E

Wi 5 £ WA 5 R 26 B 38 () T i A 45 B T 1) —
(] 0 22 ) S R < e A D (AR 45220204 48
HE W) > &% 53,732,000% 0> Fril 2 &8
Sy MU b TR ) S 14 AT R AR 2 ) 4 B
ARG ([R5 ) Ah > s Mt sk prif 2
T f5 HoAth 22 5 To AR i BN SE 14 AT
G ST s TR SR AF B A B S0 o i R
WERLE 2 BB A B o AN E Bk bl JF R
B S Gy sy TR 14A R 2 PR iR 25K -
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Independent Auditor’s Letter on Non-
exempted Continuing Connected

Transactions

The Company’s independent auditor was engaged to report
on the Group’s non-exempt CCTs in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 (Revised) “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” (“Auditor’s
Letter”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

The independent auditor has issued unqualified conclusions
in respect of the non-exempt CCTs disclosed by the Group in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
Auditor’s Letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

Confirmation of Independent Non-

executive Directors

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent
non-executive directors of the Company (“INEDs”) had
reviewed the non-exempt CCTs and the Auditor’s Letter and
have confirmed that these transactions have been entered into
by the Group:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal or better commercial terms (as the case may be);
and

(iii) according to the respective agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the Shareholders as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, there was no transaction, arrangement
or contract which was significant in relation to the Company’s
business to which the Company, or any of its holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director or his/her connected entity had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year
or at any time during the Year.

o8 Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 3 S {8447 5 AR /A
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Major Customers and Suppliers

During the Year, the aggregate amount of revenue attributable
to the Group’s five largest customers represented 42.4% (2022:
67.6%) of the Group’s total revenue. The largest customer
accounted for 34.5% (2022: 62.7%) of the Group’s total revenue
and is the operator of VIP room, mass market hall and slot
machine hall who paid fee for the services rendered by the
Group during the Year.

During the Year, the aggregate amount of purchases and
services received attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers represented less than 30% of total purchases and
services received by the Group for the Year.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholder
(which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owning more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital), had a beneficial interest
in the share capital of any of the above major customers and
suppliers of the Group.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report, there
was sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company’s
issued Shares as required under the Listing Rules.

Independent Auditor

A resolution will be submitted at the 2023 AGM to re-appoint
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as independent auditor of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Luk Siu Man, Semon
Chairperson

Hong Kong, 23 June 2023

FEE P &AL
AN AEHE A RKEF B
A B AS 4 AR A 2 42.4% (20224 ¢
67.6% ) ° fe K& F Al A< 4 B 40t A 2.34.5%
(20224F-: 62.7% ) > F P R EEE w5 &
M R 2 5 R I A 4B A AR AR B
PRt MR S AT -

T A A B 1A > AR S [ i) T 3t A o 2 4R
PR R S WS AR s e R A A A SR AR AR 2
R S B I ) AR5 e AN 2 30%

RIS NS i PN &
A AN T BB AT RS0 L, b 2 AT T R
WA DA R — 0 E & F KAt
JE 7 2 i A i

5 oy T B

R A4 ) B 18 22 /4 DR YERY B R 05 B 40
FT A A W2 2 BE W T 7 03 A2
A BT I A 1R IR E % 25%
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The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance for the Company so as to ensure
“Accountability, Responsibility and Transparency” towards the
Shareholders, stakeholders, investors as well as employees of
the Company.

The Directors have adopted various policies to ensure
compliance with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules so as to having effective application of the
principles of good corporate governance. During the Year, the
Company had fully complied with all the code provisions of the
CG Code.

CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY

The Company is committed to cultivating a corporate culture,
focusing on four pillars, namely customer centricity, excellence
in services, people first and positivity, which is underpinned
by its purpose and values that enable employees at all levels
of the Group to thrive and meet their full potentials by acting
in a lawful, ethical and responsible manner that allows the
Company to deliver sustainable long-term performance and
operate in a way that benefits society and the environment.

The Company’s purpose and values serve as a guide for
employees’ conduct and behaviours, ensuring that they are
integrated throughout the Company’s operational practices,
workplace policies and practices and stakeholder relationships:
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The management is responsible for setting the tone and shaping
the corporate culture of the Company, as well as defining the
purpose, values and strategic direction of the Group, which are
under review by the Board. Taking into account the corporate
culture is reflected in various contexts, such as workforce
engagement, employee retention and training, legal and
regulatory compliance, staff safety, wellbeing and support, the
culture, purpose, value and strategy of the Group are aligned
with one another.

THE BOARD

The Company is headed by the Board which is responsible
for the leadership, control and promotion of success of the
Group in the interests of the Shareholders by directing and
supervising its affairs and by formulating strategic directions
and monitoring the financial and management performance of
the Group.

Board Composition and Diversity

The Board currently comprises six Directors, with one Non-
executive Director who is also the Chairperson of the Board,
two Executive Directors and three INEDs. Names and other
biographical details of the members of the Board are set out
on pages 13 and 14 of this report under the “Biographies of
Directors and Senior Management” section. All of them possess
the skills, experience and expertise either in the same industry
or relevant to the management of the business of the Group.

To ensure independent views and input are available to the
Board, the following mechanisms were established:

* sufficient number of INEDs in a total of three, representing
more than one-third of the Board;

* 1o INED has served the Board for more than 9 years;

e separation of the role of the Chairperson and the chief
executives ensure that there is a balance of power and
authority; and

e annual meeting between the Chairperson and all INEDs
without presence of other Directors provides an effective
platform for the Chairperson to listen to independent views
on various issues concerning the Group.

During the Year, the Board reviewed implementation of these
mechanisms and determined that they remain effective.
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The Company also adopted the Board Diversity Policy setting
out the approach to achieve a diverse Board with a balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives to the business
nature of the Company. In designing the Board’s composition,
Board diversity has been considered from a wide range of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service, and any other factors
that the Board may consider relevant and applicable from time
to time. The merits and contribution that will bring to the Board
for any Director proposed for re-election or any candidate
nominated to be Director will also be assessed, taking into
account the Company’s corporate strategy and the mix of skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity needed in the future.

The current Board composition reflects a diverse mix of
educational background, professional knowledge, industry
experience and length of service. The diversity mix of the Board
as at 31 March 2023 is summarised as follows:

(i) Board Composition, Gender Distribution, Age
Distribution and Length of Service

Number of Directors
HHEAY
7
6
5
4
3

NED

BT EF
2
1
0
Designation Gender
T 167 L9l
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(ii) Directors’ Skills and Experience

Related Industry Knowledge/Experience
HHBAAT 2058, KBk

Business Management

EFE M

Legal/Regulatory
ik R

Financial & Accounting

P05 St

Strategic Planning & Risk Management
SRR ) B L B A B

The Board’s gender diversity level is relatively high
compared to other companies listed on the Stock Exchange,
with four female directors out of six (67%). During the
Year, the Nomination Committee recommended and the
Board approved a target of having no less than 25% female
directors on the Board. The Nomination Committee was
of the view that the current gender diversity of the Board
was appropriate, balanced and exceeding the target set.
Therefore, no timeline or plan was proposed for further
enhancing the gender diversity target of the Board for the
time being. The Nomination Committee will continue
reviewing the composition of the Board to maintain
diversity.

As at 31 March 2023, our total workforce comprised of
44% female and 56% male, whereas senior management
comprised of 10% female and 90% male. The current
gender diversity of workforce was appropriate taking into
account the business models and operational needs.

The term of appointment of the INEDs are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election provisions under the
Bye-laws of the Company and the Listing Rules. The INEDs
had provided their confirmation of independence to the
Company. Based on the annual review conducted by the
Nomination Committee, the Board considered each of them
to be independent with reference to the factors as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Board Process

Besides regular Board meetings are held during the Year,
additional Board meetings, or meetings of a Board committee
established by the Board to consider specific matters, were
convened, when necessary.

The attendance of Directors at the meetings during the Year is
set out below:

' CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EHREEF

B T AE AR B2 1 B S S0 R ok
DR ARSI E R EE EF R
SMMEFREER BT DFERRESRE

AR L e 2 DL T

Non-executive Director FiTES

Ms. Semon Luk e 10/10 (C) - - - - - 212
Executive Directors WiES

Mr. Bryan Wong ik 10/10 - 11 - - 21/21(C) 2/2
Ms. Vanessa Fan ikt 10/10 - - 11 1/1(C) 21/21 212
Independent Non-executive Directors B Jk 17 %

Ms. Kwan Shin Luen, Susanna WisExt 10/10 3/3 - 1/1(C) 11 - 2/2
Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May REBA4L 10/10 33 1/1(0) 11 - - 22
Mr. Yeung Man Sun (Note 1) W REE () 5/5 22 (C) 11 - - - 11
Mr. Yu King Tin (Note 2) KERSE (i) 5/5 1/1(C) - - 11 - 11
Total number of meetings held Lk Ve 10 3 1 1 1 21 2

C:  Chairperson/Chairman of the Board/Committee
Notes:

1. Mr. Yeung Man Sun was appointed as Director at the 2022 AGM
2. Mr. Yu King Tin retired as Director at the 2022 AGM

During the Year, the Chairperson held a meeting with INEDs
without the presence of Executive Directors in compliance with
code provision C.2.7 of the CG Code.

The Company has received confirmation from each director
that he/she has given sufficient time and attention to the affairs
of the Company during the Year. Directors have also disclosed
to the Company the changes, if any, in the number and nature
of offices they hold in public companies or organisations and
other significant commitment, including the identity of the
public companies or organizations and an indication of the time
involved.
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Ms. Semon Luk acts as the Chairperson of the Board who
provides leadership to the Board. The day-to-day management
of the Group is delegated by the Board to the Executive
Directors, Mr. Bryan Wong and Ms. Vanessa Fan who are
responsible for the Group’s strategic planning, business growth
and development. The segregation of duties make the Board
and the operation of the Group function effectively.

Ms. Semon Luk sets the agenda for the Board and ensures
that members of the Board receive accurate, timely and clear
information, and that matters to be taken into consideration are
given their due weight, so that sound decisions can be made.
With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the Chairperson
ensures that the Board properly exercises its powers, holds
its meetings and implements procedures in compliance with
all rules and requirements, and full and proper records are
maintained.

If a Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material,
the matter will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather
than a written resolution. That Director will abstain from
voting on the relevant Board resolution and he/she shall not be
counted in the quorum present at the Board meeting.

Procedures are also put in place for each Director to have
access to supporting papers and relevant information for
each scheduled meeting. All Directors also have access to the
services of the Company Secretary and her team, and may
take independent professional advice upon request, at the
Company’s expense.
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Induction and Training for Directors 2R 28 i K o 535

The Company provides Directors with regular updates on A2 ) wh A< 48 M SE 75 (1) 5 B S 35 )@ > L A
changes to and developments of the Group’s business, and B # =5 Bkgs S 5 0 5 A~ B0 B K880 19 A
on the latest developments in the laws, rules and regulations ¥ %8 J& & W v 3 = $2 {1k & 07 bl > DA Bl 0
relating to Directors’ duties and responsibilities to help % /E i FE e KB AT HAE 2 # 5 1 BB )
them make informed decisions and discharge their duties B&E -H{TEHFERITHEFRZ SR EH
and responsibilities as Directors. Such materials will also be ki #2 {1 5% 2 i AT 3 = J8 50 & R} o
provided to newly appointed Directors shortly upon their

appointment as Directors.

During the Year, each Director had participated in continuous AR > £ #HHEHE 2 PR HERE
professional development by attending seminars/workshops/ — ##8 Hi f A B LA~ 82 sk & 018 &
reading materials on the following topics to develop and refresh B ARl > LLEE & K 0 i 5 2 0k S 4 6E >
their knowledge and skills and provided a record of training to i E ] A< 28 w) S AL 15 31 40 8%

the Company:

Ms. Semon Luk (1) Corporate governance
W 2+ EER

Mr. Bryan Wong (2) Finance

e A5

Ms. Vanessa Fan (3) Industry specific
it GEZL

Ms. Kwan Shin Luen, Susanna (4) Regulatory

B 5 8 Lt BE

Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May
REBL L

Mr. Yeung Man Sun (appointed on 18 August 2022)
Wy RSeE (1202248118 H H#EZAT)

Mr. Yu King Tin (retired on 18 August 2022)
RER AL (12022481 18 HABIE)
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BOARD COMMITTEES HEZHE

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and facilitate
effective management, certain functions of the Board have
been delegated by the Board to the Executive Committee, Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee
and Corporate Governance Committee. Clear written terms
of reference of all the Board Committees are given to the
respective members of these Committees.

1. Executive Committee (set up on 25
November 2014)

The Executive Committee consists of all Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Bryan Wong (Chairman of the
Committee) and Ms. Vanessa Fan. It has all powers and
authorities of the Board except the following major matters
as set out in a “Formal Schedule on matters reserved for
and delegated by the Board”:

determining the Group’s objectives and strategies;

approving annual and interim results and financial
reporting;

declaring or recommending payment of dividends or
other distributions;

approving major changes that require notification by
announcement under the Listing Rules;

approving publication of announcements for notifiable
transactions (except for discloseable transactions in
relation to lease transactions recognising the right-
of-use asset according to HKFRS 16 Leases) under the
Listing Rules;

approving non-exempt connected transactions/non-
exempt continuing connected transactions (other than
those transactions took place from time to time under
the master agreement(s) previously approved by the
Board/Shareholders (as the case may be)) under the
Listing Rules; and

approving major capital restructuring and issue of new
securities of the Company.
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2. Audit Committee (set up on 15 September
2004)
The Audit Committee consists of three INEDs, namely Mr.
Yeung Man Sun (Chairman of the Committee), Ms. Kwan
Shin Luen, Susanna and Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee
are set out in its terms of reference which include duties
specified in the CG Code and are posted on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

A summary of the work performed by the Audit Committee
during the Year is set out as follows:

i

ii.

iii.

1v.

vi.

38

reviewed with the management/finance personnel
and/or the external auditor the effectiveness of audit
process and the accounting policies and principles
adopted by the Group. When reviewing the accuracy
and fairness of the annual consolidated financial
statements for the financial year ended 31 March
2022 (“Previous Year”) and the interim consolidated
financial statements for the six months ended 30
September 2022 before submission to the Board for
consideration, the Audit Committee has focused
not only on the impact of the changes in accounting
policies and practices, but also on the compliance with
applicable accounting standards, the Listing Rules and
relevant legal requirements;

reviewed with the senior management and finance
personnel the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group during the
Previous Year;

performed annual review of the non-exempt
continuing connected transactions of the Group for the
Previous Year;

recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of
independent auditor at the 2022 AGM;

reviewed the audit fees and the fees for non-audit
services payable to the independent auditor;

approved the audit plan for the Year, reviewed
the independence of the independent auditor and
approved its engagement;

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited ¥ 244 % AR /AR
Annual Report 2022/2023 43

" CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

2. HBRZEE (H200499H15
H & r)
AT BT B = 40 S AT AL
AR R TTIRGE (Z AR EE) - B

i h L RBEF R AL

1796

A% ZE B0 A 0 T I R RO LI
MERE IR b 48 A SR ST R AT B Y
BT Sl 6 ORI S T B AR W) A

WAL B R AR R T AT 2 TAR R
ZHIIE

i

ii.

iii.

iv.

Vi.

S IR A N B B A B A
S 2 A A 42 ) T B AN 2 SRR Y
B b Bk K R R 2 B - B2
BErEHEGHLTEREGIESE
Z M FE 202243 H 31 H 1k I B AR B
([ B4R ) 2 FF 46 WH ok &
B E20224E9 30 H 1 /AM8 A 2
W% A PRS2 ME R BN T
W7 o 14 B € IO BRLED RS A )
(52 288 R B 1A 75 1< 8 &
AR ~ b TR R B B VA R

Ly AR TN B R B N BAm T b
A JRE 7R A T e A B R oA S B P AR
% &

HIA LR B B AR I A A R
AL 5 AT AR AR B

HUR20224F AU A K & LB &
A 8 S A S 1) o R o R

58 o8] MR AST 3 8 S7 A% S 19 3 A% 2
Lo I AR

HEHEAS AR B 2 T A% R At e S
A 2 o ST S 2R 0




vii. reviewed the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Group ’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions as well as those relating to the
Company’s environmental, social and governance
(“ESG”) performance and reporting; and

viii. reviewed and recommended to the Board on the
adoption of new anti-corruption policy and procedures
and the revised whistle-blowing policy and reporting
procedures for the Company.

. Remuneration Committee (set up on 11 July
2005)

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members,
namely Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May (Chairperson of the
Committee) and Mr. Yeung Man Sun, both being INEDs,
and Mr. Bryan Wong, being an Executive Director.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration
Committee are set out in its terms of reference which
include duties specified in the CG Code and are posted on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the Directors’ fees and made recommendation
to the Board;

ii. reviewed the current remuneration structure/package
of the Executive Directors and senior management and
recommended to the Board to approve their specific
packages; and

iii. reviewed the terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee and made recommendation to the Board
for approval.

Before recommendation to the Board, the Remuneration
Committee has reviewed and assessed the remuneration
package of the Directors with reference to the Group’s
operating results, duties and level of responsibility of the
Directors and the prevailing market conditions. Details of
the remuneration of each of the Directors for the Year are
set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.
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4. Nomination Committee (set up on 28 March 4. & Z B G (H201243/728

2012)

The Nomination Committee consists of three members,
namely Ms. Kwan Shin Luen, Susanna (Chairperson of the
Committee) and Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May, both being INEDs,
and Ms. Vanessa Fan, being an Executive Director.

The major roles and functions of the Nomination
Committee are set out in its terms of reference which
include duties specified in the CG Code and are posted on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for formulating
policy and making recommendations to the Board on
nomination, appointment and re-appointment of Directors,
and Board succession pursuant to the Nomination Policy
adopted by the Company.

The Nomination Policy of the Group aims at assisting the
Nomination Committee in identifying and nominating
suitable candidates for directorship based on the Board
Diversity Policy and sets out the nomination criteria
and the nomination procedures for (i) nominating new
Director to fill a casual vacancy on the Board; (ii) making
recommendation to Shareholders regarding any Director
proposed for election or re-election at general meeting;
and (iii) nomination by Shareholders on election of new
Director.

The Nomination Committee may identify potential
candidates from any source as it may consider appropriate
and evaluate them by considering various factors, including
their professional expertise, industry and business
experience, time commitments, potential contributions to
board diversity, material conflict of interest with the Group
(if any) and independence (for INEDs). The Committee
will then make recommendation for suitable candidates
to the Board for consideration of appointment. In case
of reappointment of existing Directors who will retire
at an annual general meeting (“AGM”), the Committee
will review retirement by rotation of Directors and make
recommendations to the Board accordingly.
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A summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity
of the Board,

ii. reviewed the revised Board Diversity Policy, Nomination
Policy and terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee and made recommendations to the Board for
approval;

iii. reviewed the independence of INEDs;

iv. reviewed the confirmation from the Directors on time
commitment in performing their duties as Directors;

v. made recommendation to the Board on the re-election
of Directors and nomination of new Director at the
2022 AGM; and

vi. made recommendation to the Board on the gender
diversity target at Board level.

. Corporate Governance Committee (set up on
28 March 2012)

The Corporate Governance Committee (“CG Committee”)
consists of five members, namely Ms. Vanessa Fan
(Chairperson of the Committee), being an Executive
Director, Ms. Kwan Shin Luen, Susanna and Mr. Yeung Man
Sun, both being INEDs, a representative from company
secretarial function and a representative from finance and
accounts function.

The specific written terms of reference of the CG
Committee is available on the website of the Company. The
primary duties of the CG Committee are (a) developing
and reviewing the policies and practices on corporate
governance of the Company (“CG Policy”) and making
recommendations to the Board; (b) reviewing and
monitoring the policies and practices of the Company
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
(c) developing, reviewing and monitoring the codes of
conduct applicable to Directors and relevant employees of
the Group regarding dealings in the Company’s securities;
(d) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management; and (e) reviewing the Company’s compliance
with the CG Code and disclosure in this report.
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A summary of the work performed by the CG Committee
during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the CG Policy and made recommendation to
the Board;

ii. reviewed the policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements;

iii. reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

iv. reviewed the said codes of conduct applicable to
Directors and relevant employees of the Group; and

v. reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in Corporate Governance Report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the Year, the Company Secretary, being an employee of
the Company, had duly complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules by taking no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS OF
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted EEH Securities Code as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transactions on no less exacting
terms than the required standards as set out in the Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules regarding Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers. Having made
specific enquiry to Directors, all of them confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard of dealings as set out
in EEH Securities Code throughout the Year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities to prepare
the annual consolidated financial statements of the Group and
other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules.
The management has provided all members of the Board with
monthly updates on internal consolidated financial statements
which give a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group’s performance, position and prospects as at the reporting
date.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the Year, the
Board adopted appropriate accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgment and estimates that were prudent and
reasonable and ensured the consolidated financial statements are
prepared on a “going concern” basis (with supporting assumptions
or qualifications as necessary) and showed a true view of the
state of affairs of the Group for the Year. The management had
provided sufficient explanation and information to the Board
on the consolidated financial statements to enable it to make an
informed assessment of the financial and other information put
before it for approval. The independent auditor of the Company
had made a statement about their reporting responsibilities in the
Independent Auditor’s Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL
A. Goals and Objectives

Internal control is fundamental to the successful operation
and day-to-day running of a business and it assists a
company in achieving its business objectives. Internal
control policies and procedures within the Group are
updated regularly with the primary objective of providing
general guidance and recommendations on a basic
framework of risk management and internal control
systems (“Control Systems”).

A review has been conducted on (i) the Group’s internal
control measures and procedures covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls; and (ii) risk management functions in the
principal subsidiaries of the Company for the Year as
follows:

The Board is responsible to ensure that the Group
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective Control
Systems. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate risks of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The key objectives of the Control Systems include:
- safeguarding assets;

- ensuring completeness, accuracy and validity of
financial records and reports;

- promoting adherence to policies, procedures,
regulations and laws; and

- promoting effectiveness and efficiency of operations.
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B. Internal Control

" CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

B. ¥

(1) Governance Control (1) EIRE f”’
The control structure of the Control Systems is set out EERG BRI T
as follows:
The Board HHEE
e responsible for the Control Systems and reviewing LIINE =R i A A SR

their effectiveness;

oversee the Control Systems on an ongoing basis
with the assistance of the Audit Committee;

ensure maintenance of appropriate and effective
Control Systems;

define management structure with clear lines of
responsibility and limits of authority; and

determine the nature and extent of significant risk
(including the ESG risks) that the Group is willing
to take in achieving the strategic objectives and
formulate the Group’s risk management strategies.

Audit Committee

review and discuss the Control Systems with
the management annually to ensure that the
management has performed its duty to maintain
effective Control Systems. This discussion
also includes the adequacy of resources, staff
qualification and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting function as well as
those relating to the Company’s ESG performance
and reporting;

review the nature and extent of significant risks
(including ESG risks), and the Group’s ability to
respond to changes in its business and the external
environment;

review and discuss annually with significant
control failings or weaknesses that are identified
by the auditors; and
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Executive Committee

* review the effectiveness of ESG-related risk
management and internal control systems and
report to the Audit Committee for its review.

The management (includes heads of business units,

departments and divisions)

* design and implement the Control Systems’
policies and procedures duly endorsed by senior
management and the Board;

* monitor the Control Systems properly and ensure
the Control Systems are executed effectively;

* monitor risks and take measures to mitigate risks
in their day-to-day operations;

e give prompt response to, and follow up the
findings on internal control matters raised by
internal or independent auditors; and

e provide confirmation to the Board on the
effectiveness of the Control Systems.

Internal Audit Department

e carry out the analysis and independent appraisal
of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Control
Systems in respect of all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance
aspects;

e alert the management to the audit findings
or irregularities and advise them on the
implementation of necessary steps and actions to
enhance the internal controls of the Group; and

* report results of internal audit reviews and agreed
action plans to the Audit Committee and the Board
on regular basis.
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(2) Operational Control

The management is responsible for analysing the
control environment, identified risks pertaining
thereto, and implemented various controls therein as
follows:

46

i

ii.

iii.

iv.

Approach taken: The management communicates
with relevant staff and reviews relevant documentation
of the Control Systems and evaluates findings of any
deficiencies in the design of the Group’s internal
control system, then provides recommendations
for improvement and assesses the effectiveness of
implementation of such recommendations, where
appropriate. The scope and findings of review on the
Control Systems will be reported to and reviewed by
the Audit Committee annually.

Procedure manuals and operational guidelines:
They are in place to safeguard the assets against
unauthorised use or disposition and ensuring
maintenance of proper accounting records that are
in compliance with the applicable laws, rules and
regulations for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use and/or external
publication.

Management information system and technology:
To control over the business activities, it allows close
tracking of various inputs and outputs of the Group’s
business such as inventory, products and customer
relationship and human resources. It also tracks
audit trails in the authorisation system, under which
permissions and responsibility of authorisation
are clearly identified and adequate records can be
maintained in the Control Systems.

Reports and variance analysis: Reports and
analysis of each segment are conducted on regular
basis.

Information flow: The transparent information
flow alerts the management promptly of any
deviations. Benchmarking with historical database
and comparisons with the same also acts as a
detecting device for spotting unusual activities.
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vi. Safeguarding of assets: Surprise physical count of vi. DR B R - R B BRALI R A
cash and chips (“Relevant Cash and Chips”) held Fa/NALB RIS AR 2 B
in casino and coupons for casino are performed by G R EAS (MBS R E])
Income Audit Team of Grand Emperor Hotel and T it 355 8 B 5 AT SR R BRI
reviewed by Internal Audit Department. Full count A TR 0 2 A% TS 1 2 B o A B B
of the Relevant Cash and Chips and inventories G Fe B LA B A7 B TR & o2 B
are also performed regularly. To safeguard the HEAT 2 T B A o IR R R E
assets, CCTV and security systems are installed B B W T SR SR R e e 8
in each money and chips exchange counter and i E A P B R SR R
casino exit which are monitored by Security and Bt o PR B IR P HEA T B
Surveillance Department. Insurance coverage on PR 2 BRI S W) € ) R
the hotel properties is periodically reviewed by B 45 ] 2 5 78 R AT MR I
the management for sufficiency, and to ensure TR 75 5 DR B I3 119 Ml 2 Mk
compliance with the terms and conditions of the e
insurance policies.

vii. Credit control: Relevant policy and procedures vil. f5 S8 T AR B EOR )
are in place and the collectability of debts owed TP M EFERIHEEF R
by gaming patrons, customers and tenants are N F B K AR B 7 AT i (]
reviewed regularly. If there is indication of delay P o fiff A7 A B AN KBRS R Y
payment or doubtful debt, corresponding actions IR 5o 1% £R HUA JRE 5 it 4 B A
such as follow-up call, reminder, demand letter TR R KK L
or even legal action will be taken to follow up the AT ) DA R A o
debts.

viii. Service quality control: Regular review on viii. AR B B 5 - E 0 B
operational systems of hotel and gaming business Je R 605 0 v ) 7 AR A LA
segments to ensure the service quality, and PR 8 e 55 ot B - Sl AE 22 4 P s
questionnaires are provided in different outlets AT G T A DLEOR % P A B
to welcome customers’ feedbacks for our service WU IR 5 1 S o
improvement.

(3) Financial Control (3) MBE#

i. Policies, procedures and systems are in place i CEVEENESR-BFRE
for the recording of complete, accurate and timely R o T PR 4 T~ YRR B VE IRF RC
accounting and management information; BRE R L HER

ii. Annual budget of hotel and gaming operations . A RO IR s 2 AR
is prepared and reviewed regularly to ensure any B T 5 18 T LR OR AT PR AT
action can be taken to mitigate any changes in fa A7 By LA SR 0 K i 355 AT
conditions and market accordingly; ol AR EZ AL 5

iii. Financial management reports are provided to i, 1) BT A o o R AR E BN B 4R
all Directors and senior management which give PR B A B DI L R A
a balanced and understandable assessment of FERR TG 2 A B R B B RS
the Group’s performance, financial position and AR K il 5 ) 455 K 5 T L i
prospects in sufficient details; R4l 5
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(4)

iv.

Vi.

Operational reports on revenue, marker receivables’
ageing and debtors’ ageing and internal financial
analysis are prepared to the management which give
a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group’s operation performance;

Available fund report and cash flow forecast are
regularly reviewed to monitor the cash flows and
working capital requirement of the Group; and

Annual audit by independent auditor is carried
out to ensure that the consolidated financial
statements are prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, the
Group’s accounting policies and the applicable
laws and regulations.

Compliance Control
The following policies and procedures are in place to
safeguard the compliance control:

L.

ii.

iii.

Systems and procedures on disclosure of inside
information to ensure, with the assistance of an
internal work team (if required), that any material
information which comes to the knowledge of any
one or more officers should be promptly identified,
assessed and escalated, where appropriate, for the
attention of the Board. The Board shall make timely
decisions on disclosure, if necessary, and take
appropriate measures to preserve confidentiality of
inside information until proper dissemination of the
inside information;

Policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements which shall be
reviewed and monitored regularly by the Corporate
Governance Committee as delegated by the Board
in order to ensure the Group is in compliance with
all applicable laws, statutes, rules and regulations;
and keep up on any legal developments;

CCT Compliance Committee is established to
monitor, control and regularly review connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions
of the Group and ensure proper compliance with all
relevant laws and regulations, the Listing Rules and
disclosure requirements;

" CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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iv. Whistle-blowing policy is established to provide
reporting channels and guidance for employees
and related third parties who have business
dealings with the Group (e.g. customers and
suppliers) to raise concerns, in confidence and
anonymity, about any suspected misconduct
or malpractice within the Company. The Audit
Committee, delegated by the Board, shall ensure
that proper arrangements are in place for fair and
independent investigation of any concerns raised,
appropriate follow-up actions are taken and other
recommendations are provided, if thinks fit;

v. Anti-corruption policy is established to outline
the Group’s zero-tolerance stance against
bribery and corruption and assists employees in
recognising circumstances that may lead to or give
the appearance of being involved in corruption
or unethical business conduct, so as to avoid
such conduct which is clearly prohibited, and to
promptly seek guidance where necessary or report
any reasonably suspected case of corruption or any
attempts thereof, to the management through an
appropriate reporting channel; and

vi. Anti-money laundering and counterterrorist
financing policy and procedures is established
to set out the general framework for combating
against money laundering and financing of
terrorism. It provides guideline to combat money
laundering and terrorist and help the Group’s
employees identify and assess clients/customers/
suppliers/vendors/contractors/transactions/
activities of high risk of money laundering,
terrorist financing or other financial crime and
take appropriate measures and actions.

(5) Review of Internal Control
Effectiveness of internal controls is tested by Internal
Audit Department regularly. Internal audit reviews and
agreed action plans should be reported to the Audit
Committee and the Board on timely basis.
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C. Risk Management

(1) Risk Management Process

50

The risk management process includes risk identification,
risk evaluation, risk management measures and risk
control and review.

The management is entrusted with duties to identify,
analyse, evaluate, respond, monitor and communicate
risks associated with any activity, function or process
within its scope of responsibility and authority. Risks
are evaluated by the Board and management based on
(i) the severity of the impact of the risks on the Group’s
finance and operations; and (ii) the probability and
frequency that the risks will occur.

Based on the risk evaluation, the Company will manage
the risk as follows:

* Risk elimination - the management may identify
and implement certain changes or controls that in
effect eliminate the risk entirely.

e Risk mitigation - the management may implement
risk mitigation plan designed to reduce the
likelihood and impact of the risk to an acceptable
level or contingency plan for possible loss scenarios.

e Risk control and monitoring - it involves making
decisions regarding which risks are acceptable and
how to address those that are not; accidents and
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other situations involving loss or near-loss will be S PR B 2 — R B K

investigated and properly documented as part of i AR R BT IR R 2

the effort to manage risks. H A1 DA AT 78 Al A
i

* Risk retention - the management may decide o Ak Il B K OF — 8 B AT E

that the risk rating is low enough that the risk is TP J B A T 2 A A B

acceptable level and no action is required and the
risk will continue to be monitored as part of the
risk management program to ensure the level of
risk does not increase to an unacceptable level.

s AR

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited #t&
Annual Report 2022/2023 43

6k JB 7T % 2 K S T U BR AT
] 185 3 5 A B FE 7y Ja\ B 8 B T
Bz — o ﬂ%ﬁl%%%%%)ﬁwfz
DLW R R B AN & B B OR AT
Ko




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
e et

(2) H A Bi K 5 W
AR [ 2 8 R Bl B REAG R
bl 9 A T E R LB o A 4R 1 B T [
) 5% S5 B A L oy 7 ] LA B 2 2 %

(2) Signifticant Risks and Strategies
Certain significant risks have been identified through
the process of risk identification and assessment.
Such significant risks of the Group together with their

respective key strategies/control measures are set out HEms e R S

below:

a) Changes in social, economic and political a) g AR EGIK I ) -
conditions:

v 36 BUR B 5 T i A SR
S AR L 5 B % e B DA
Hh el v e BORF K2 IR PR P i
AT H) B A R B TR i M
Jif 2% ) I 15 Bl o b AT AT SR P
i — 20 AL B A SR B S
N A

Changes and volatility in general economic
conditions caused by China-USA political/trade
disputes, and stringent policies implemented by
PRC Central Government and Macau Government
impacting hospitality and travel related activities
in Macau etc. Any more adverse change in one of
the above situations would have significant impact
to the Group’s business.

Stay alert to changes in economic and market
conditions in mainland China or global
economy and adjust business strategic plans
to cope with these changes.

Explore opportunities to expand business or
market and broaden the Group’s customer
base. For instance, in September 2022, the
Group completed the acquisition of The Unit
Davis serviced apartments in Kennedy Town
Hong Kong from a connected party. Such
acquisition expands the Group’s serviced
apartment business, widens its income
source and also achieves better utilisation of
resources, streamline the decision-making
process of the respective management teams
and enjoys an integrated marketing strategy
for the entire hospitality business of the
Group.

While keeping high-quality hospitality
services, endeavor to control the expenses
and manpower or reallocate resources in
an efficient manner. For example, setting
up of hotel management companies aim
to better utilise the manpower and human
resources within the Group and regular review

BT 1 I A I
LR 2 B 409 ) 200
I 5 5w 1 L
T

R 2R K S BT 1 0 B
& ERALEENE PR -
B> jA20224F9 H 5 A £
B L 58 AR By I
W BL e M3k i The Unit
Davisl 1 A 5 - 3% Ik i
PR KA IR N E
¥ R H AR

DN S I e ]
E-FEk=2:=1u 11" SO
T2 36 A 7 4 18 R B G
T PEMLLE A B PR o

TE A5 RIS T A5 114 7]
IR > 38 JHE I BH S e N
Bl DL &0y U T I B
Ui o 40> B 57 T N5 A
28 A A S M A SR
P PR A N R E
Ml s X A HELAY R

of the performance of serviced apartment 1 24 15 7 2 ) A Bk
management company aims to control cost BrE & -
and quality of service.
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b) Occurrence of disaster events: b) BEXEFFM:

52

Any “Act of God”, natural disaster (e.g. severe
typhoons or inclement weather) or outbreak of
contagious diseases such as Covid-19, SARS, Ebola
or Avian Flu happening could have adversely effect
on the Group’s business and reputation.

Over the past few years, the Covid-19 pandemic
has severely affected the tourism and hospitality
industry in Macau and Hong Kong. Stringent or
frequent changes in entry and exit policies in Hong
Kong, Macau and mainland China have hindered
the visitation of travelers to Macau and Hong
Kong which have adversely effect on the Group’s
business performance.

e Stay alert to the changes in Covid-19 policies
as required by Hong Kong and Macau
governments and ensure all safety and hygiene
measures are fully implemented.

* Keep update on development of disaster events
and follow the instructions and guidance
given by Hong Kong and Macau governments
and other professional bodies such as the
Stock Exchange, the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and The Hong
Kong Chartered Governance Institute so as to
mitigate the impact of the events to the Group.

* Develop an emergency plan, organise proper
insurance and give regular training to our
staff in first aid and knowledge of hygiene and
sanitation as well as evacuation procedures to
deal with occurrence of these events.

* Create a natural disaster recovery plan which
includes recovery instructions, procedures
and a quick reference guide for departments
to use in order to assist the Group to respond
and recover from the disasters quickly.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited ¥ 244 % AR /AR
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c) SIM’s operating license and services agreement: c) MIEHIASE AT AT RIRES Ih ik -
The Group’s gaming business is solely relied on A £ B 14 1 R 2605 o8 4 far JELIR
SJM’s Concession Contract which was granted by I b 1R B A b A R (T 1
Direc¢do de Inspeccdo e Coordenacdo de Jogos Ja ) 3T 2 BUEHES A J B
(“DICJ”) and the services agreement with SJM. 18 5T 57 1 RS 1 e o PRI AT ] SR
Termination of the SJM’s Concession Contract P A b R e 2 B S 4 Bk B
or the services agreement with SJM for whatever IR 2 i 5 Tih > BRI AR g
reasons or the renewal thereof is not granted to or T A B A R B TR
made by SJM or unfavourable change in the terms A IR T o BB 5 1w
of the services agreement would have impact on AR ) B AN ) 5 o oty 3 A 4 1)
the gaming business of the Group. 14 17 R S 55 7k L 2B
e Despite the Group ceased its gaming o R ALE H20224F6 H
business from 27 June 2022 to 31 December 27H FE2022412H31H
2022 (“Relevant Period”), the management ([HH R SBIR ) 4 1k LR
responded quickly to the change by provision SEW > B4 B 5 IR
of hotel rooms, catering and ancillary services BT S 2 R S G A 1Y
to SJM for the gaming operation run by SJM in TR S5 1) HL (3t i %
Grand Emperor Hotel. This strategy enabled [~ A R S FL At A s - iR
the Group to maintain a stable income stream 3 5% AL A R - %
during the Relevant Period and gave the SR e A A2 9] B 00 7 AH B
management extra time to explore any other 309 ] PR A7 2 5 B AU
business opportunity. Sz fe 8 S IE ARE A1 I ] 4R
ESEREERUNIES Sog

¢ When business and leisure travels have o BEF BN M WM L EF
revived somewhat with the gradual easing R AT B ) B2 A 8 A e
of travel restrictions as well as inbound R Z A R - TS AR
quarantine requirements in mainland China, [l iR A7 A BT 4 > DL R
Macau and Hong Kong and SJM was granted B 20224£12 H #E 45 HL M
the award of 10-year gaming concession by BUG #2125 BI104F 19 1
Macau government in December 2022, the R BB HE B TE I (]
management took a quick response with SJM R SIf7 B R #5 RT 57 oK AR 34E
for entering into a new service agreement for f14 7 A 5 15 > SIf 122023
next 3 years and resumed its gaming business FEIHH AR H R
on 1 January 2023. 15 o

e Stay alert to the policy and government o EEABBUR R BUN
practice and the industrial practices and make B B AT 26 W B > 7 98 IR A
changes to the existing business plans or BUA S5 wt # R A
strategies, as and when appropriate. ST o

* Explore any other potential business in Macau o BREACWP SR U 1AL AT
or Hong Kong to strengthen the Group’s FABTEEAE ZEH5 LA 48 A 4R
income base. B A WS A R
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d) R ERTT R FHAY

d) Keen competition in hotel and gaming industry:

Increased competition in hotel and gaming
industry in Macau due to opening of more luxury
hotels by competitors as well as increasing in
numbers of VIP rooms, gaming tables and slot
machines from existing casinos and among
other Asian countries. No assurance that the
growth of Macau’s tourism industry would
increase in line with or outpace the supply of
hotel accommodation, casino gaming tables and
slot machines and this could adversely affect the
Group’s business.

* FEnlarge and expand the footprint of the Group
in sourcing hotel patrons.

e Devote to provide the best personalised
service to the guests in order to give them a
memorable experience; thereby differentiating
Grand Emperor Hotel from other hotels and
enabling them to make Grand Emperor Hotel
be their first choice when they come back to
Macau.

* Cooperate with travel agencies and airline
companies to develop long-haul visitor
market.

e Launch promotions featuring Grand Emperor
Hotel’s excellent location to attract guests to
extend length of overnight stay, integrating
with local tourism resources, especially World
Cultural Heritage scenic spots.

e Improve marketing strategy and enhance
promotions and publicities from time to time
in order to encourage existing gaming patrons
to come back to Grand Emperor Hotel and
attract new customers around the world.
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f)

Anti-money laundering (“"AML”): e) BrilvEHEEE ([Brik A BEE)) -
Non-compliance with applicable AML laws 72 S 9E By 153 SR B8 L A T RE
would adversely affect the Group’s business and i"]“i‘%%lﬁ’ﬂ%f%&%%%%ﬁiﬁ
reputation. 5 2

e Develop and/or continuously review the AML ol B BORE A R B B L
compliance policy and procedures to ensure PR B SR BUR L7
they remain up-to-date and meet all regulatory DA DR DR 55 fo o I
requirements. R PTA B EK

e Comply with the reporting and compliance o RSN B R BB G R
procedures as requested by DICJ or the R E 2 i
compliance department of SJM or under the HBHRET -
applicable laws.

* Regular internal audit review to ensure o I A A R A DL
adequacy of internal control procedures as AR £ TR 710 B 2 P ) 1Y 72
well as being carried out effectively. I3 B A RO o

e Give sufficient regular training to the staff. o GEMAS B TR TR s

il o
Dependence on people and shortage of labour and ) HATIBIIHE LIS 55 8) Ty R A%
experienced staft: s o BN L

The pool of experienced management personnel TE IR B9 1 % 2 B A 0 KB

in Macau’s gaming industry is limited. No AN B NBUA R — B

assurance to recruit and retain the replacement KBEAREERANE > kR

of the existing key management personnel once EOLIEE) LY SR (W = I

loss of their service. In addition, there is intense B AN IR B Y 25 B )

competition to recruit and retain a sufficient TS AR S AT B 4808 L i A 2

number of qualified and skilled casino or hotel B R B R RS B R A

employees due to a relatively limited labor market B B JE R B A S R W

of the supply of employees. Ze

e Ensure competitiveness of the reward system o ZIRTTIG L YE S e (R A2 )
and incentive system with reference to market il B L 8 ) BE 1) 3
bench. Jye

e C(Clear line of sight on career ladder. o IEMT AT LA E R o

* Maintain regular dialogues with staff on o B T I € B R A 1A
personal goals for career advancement. ERFEIS SV GE K

e Provide specific skills trainings to different o RATE SR IR B 52 Ry
level of staff. JE [ 452 REHE Al <
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* Develop and implement Staff Development
and Learning programs as well as staff
recognition and work-life balance programs.

* Expansion of talent acquisition pipelines
via close communications with vocational
institutions and universities to attract “new
blood”.

D. Management Confirmation

The Board acknowledged that it had received a
confirmation from the management on the effectiveness
of the Control Systems of the Group for the Year. The Audit
Committee and the Board upon reviewing the Control
Systems, were not aware of any significant issues that would
have an adverse impact on the effectiveness and adequacy
of the Group’s operational, financial and compliance areas
of the Control Systems.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy setting out the
principles for the Board to determine appropriate amount of
dividend to be distributed to the Shareholders. The Company
intends to provide Shareholders with regular interim and
final dividends (as the case may be) based on the earnings
attributable to its Shareholders after taking into consideration
of the factors as stated in the policy, including inter alia, (i) cash
flow requirements for business operations; (ii) cash available,
financial liabilities and capital commitment; (iii) market
environment and challenges; and (iv) future development
and investment opportunities. The declaration of dividends
or recommendation on such payment shall be subject to all
applicable laws, rules and regulations including but not limited
to the Listing Rules, the applicable laws of Bermuda and the
Bye-laws of the Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company’s Shareholders” Communication Policy (available
on the website of the Company) sets out the strategies, practices
and commitment for maintaining ongoing and effective
communication with Shareholders, both individual and
institutional, and in appropriate circumstances, the investment
community at large so as to enable them to engage with the
Company and exercise their rights as shareholders in an
informed manner. To this end, the Company strives to ensure
that all Shareholders have ready and timely access to all publicly
available information of the Group. To facilitate communication
with Shareholders and the investment community, the Company
has established various communication channels, as follows:
(i) the holding of AGMs and special general meetings (“SGMs”),
if any, which may be convened for specific purposes to provide
opportunities for the Shareholders to communicate directly
with the Board; (ii) the publication of announcements, annual
reports, interim reports and/or circulars as required under the
Listing Rules and press releases providing updated information
of the Group; (iii) the availability of latest information of the
Group on the Company’s website at https:/www.Emp296.com;
(iv) the holding of press conference(s) from time to time; and
(v) meeting with investors and analysts on a regular basis and
participating in investor road show and sector conference.

Regular dialogue with institutional Shareholders and general
presentations are made when financial results are announced.
Shareholders and investors are welcome to visit the Company’s
website to raise enquiries through our Investor Relations
Department whose contact details are available on the
Company’s website and the “Corporate Information and Key
Dates” section of this annual report.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings for
substantial separate issues, including re-election of retiring
Directors. The Company’s notice to Shareholders for AGM is
sent to Shareholders at least 21 clear days before the meeting
and notices of other general meetings are sent to Shareholders
at least 14 clear days before the meetings. The Chairperson
of the Board and the chairperson/members of the Board
Committees, appropriate management executives and the
independent auditor were available to attend the 2022 AGM to
answer questions from the Shareholders. With the assistance
of the Company Secretary, the Chairperson of the meeting had
explained the procedures for conducting a poll voting during
the meeting.

L R 2 08
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The Company shall review the Shareholders’ Communication
Policy annually to ensure its implementation and effectiveness.
Having considered the multiple channels of communication
and engagement in place, the Board is satisfied that the
Shareholders” Communication Policy has been properly in place
during the Year and is effective.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the Shareholders
as required to be disclosed pursuant to the CG Code:

RIGHT TO CONVENE/CALL A GENERAL
MEETINGS

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and the Bye-
laws of the Company, Shareholder(s) holding at the date of
the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company shall have the right to
submit a written requisition requiring a SGM to be called by
the Board. The written requisition (a) must state the object(s)
of the meeting; and (b) must be signed by the requisitionists
and deposited at the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong for attention of the
Company Secretary, and may consist of several documents in
like form, each signed by one or more requisitionists. Such
requisitions will be verified with the Company’s Hong Kong
Branch Share Registrar and upon its confirmation that the
requisition is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will
ask the Board to convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice to
all Shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition has been
verified as not in order, the requisitionists will be advised of
this outcome and accordingly, the SGM will not be convened as
requested.

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of a valid requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM
for a day not more than 2 months after the date of deposit
of a proper requisition, the requisitionists or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may themselves convene a SGM, but any SGM so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months
from the said date of deposit of the requisition. In addition,
such meeting convened by the requisitionists shall be convened
in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
meetings are to be convened by Board.
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PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT
GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, either any
number of the Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth
of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having at the
date of the requisition a right to vote at general meetings of
the Company (“Requisitionists”), or not less than 100 of such
Shareholders, can request the Company in writing to (a) give
to Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the next general
meeting notice of any resolution which may properly be moved
and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate
to Shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting
any statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business
to be dealt with at that meeting. The requisition signed by all
the Requisitionists must be deposited at the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong with a sum reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant expenses and not
less than six weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution or not less than one week before
the meeting in the case of any other requisition. Provided that
an AGM is called for a date six weeks or less after the requisition
has been deposited, such requisition though not deposited
within the time required shall be deemed to have been properly
deposited for the purposes thereof.

PROPOSING A PERSON FOR ELECTION
AS A DIRECTOR

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election
as a Director are available for viewing on the Company’s website.

ENQUIRIES FROM SHAREHOLDERS

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited. Other Shareholders’
enquiries can be directed to the Investor Relations Department
of the Company.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

For the purpose of (i) conforming with the latest Listing
Rules and the applicable laws of Bermuda; (ii) providing the
flexibility to the Company in relation to the conduct of general
meetings (including allowing the general meetings to be held
as a hybrid meeting or an electronic meeting in addition to a
physical meeting); and (iii) making other consequential and
housekeeping amendments, the Company adopted a new bye-
laws (the “New Bye-laws”) during the Year. The adoption of the
New Bye-laws was approved by the Shareholders at 2022 AGM.
The New Bye-laws is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE AND
REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor the
independence of the auditor to ensure objectivity and the
effectiveness of the audit process of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with applicable standards. Members
of the Audit Committee were of the view that the Company’s
auditor, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) is
independent and had recommended the Board to propose its re-
appointment as the Company’s auditor at the 2023 AGM. During
the Year, Deloitte had rendered audit services and certain non-
audit services to the Group and the remuneration paid/payable
to it by the Group is set out as follows:
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Audit services 4,016
B 5
Non-audit services (reporting services in respect of acquisition of subsidiaries) 400
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’ S REPORT

BN A S

Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF EMPEROR ENTERTAINMENT
HOTEL LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 68 to 166, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2023, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2023, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matters
AAT 40 o i B [ o A A O

Valuation of investment properties located in Macau

PR R Z &P Z A

We identified the valuation of investment
properties located in Macau as a key audit matter
due to the significant management’s assumptions
involved in the valuation.

AT E LA R 2 B W) 3 2 k(B 7 — TH B S o %
JEIH > JEUE A il (B K B Y BRI

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group’s investment
properties held for earning rental income under
operating leases of commercial properties in
Macau amounted to HK$492,200,000 as at 31
March 2023. Fair value gains arising from those
investment properties of HK$10,700,000 were
recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 March 2023. The fair value
of the Group’s investment properties in Macau
was estimated based on a valuation on these
properties conducted by an independent firm of
qualified professional property valuers engaged
by the Company and approved by the directors
of the Company using income capitalisation
method with significant unobservable inputs and
assumptions of market conditions. The relevant
inputs and conditions include capitalisation rates
and comparable market rents and transactions
with adjustments to reflect different locations or
condltlons and changes in market conditions.
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Our procedures in relation to evaluating the
appropriateness of the valuation of investment
properties in Macau included:

Zf»‘ﬁ?iﬂnﬁﬁ( F‘ﬂﬁ%‘%%ﬁﬁzl‘“%ﬁz&%@ﬁ
Understanding management’s process for
reviewing the work of the independent qualified
professional property valuers engaged by the
Company;

TEHEEE BARRMEEAL G G
FbAEL R B AR 2 Wi 5

e Evaluating the competence, capabilities
and objectivity of the independent qualified
professional property valuers engaged by the
Company;
nﬂﬁ BN ) W B S A AR BEY SE AL (R A
i e M B

. Understanding the valuation techniques and key
inputs applied by holding discussion with the
management of the Group and the independent
qualified professional property valuers engaged by
the Company with the involvement of our internal
valuation specialists; and
LIS S QU SLN D SN NI LD IVAS R gl S
W) AG (B AT ) o > I AT 2 Wjﬁ1ﬁfﬁiﬁrﬁf}é§ﬁi )
AT 5 JIT 8 Y 114 A6k (B35 007 B B ot i A\ e 5 I

e Assessing, with the involvement of our internal
valuation specialists, the reasonableness of the
valuation conducted by the independent qualified
professional property valuers engaged by the
Company by (i) checking details of rentals, on
a sample basis, to the respective underlying
existing tenancy agreements; (ii) comparing to
relevant market information on rentals achieved
and capitalisation rates adopted in other similar
properties with the consideration of changes
in market conditions; and (iii) developing an
independent estimate based on market available
data.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matters
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Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets in respect of hotel

and related operations in Grand Emperor Hotel

SRl % 5L R 0 2 8 N R R S B A R W 3~ R A it A e O DAL A

We have identified the impairment assessment on
the recoverable amounts of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets in respect of
hotel and related operations in Grand Emperor
Hotel (collectively “Grand Emperor Hotel
Properties”), being a single cash-generating
unit, as a key audit matter due to the significant
management estimation involved to determine
the recoverable amount of the Grand Emperor
Hotel Properties.
ASAT Wl g B3 2 QR 4P T T T N R B SE A B 2 W)
2 WA L S R (A [ 9% B I e 08 1
X HHE—BEEAR) ZTWE%%EZ?@UEEWE?
I — T ) 9 A T L i RO A R E O R R BRI SR )
SE 2 AT W Im] 4 B I 90 1 A PR B E R A L o
As disclosed in notes 15 and 16 to the consolidated
financial statements, as at 31 March 2023, the
Grand Emperor Hotel Properties comprise
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets in respect of hotel and related operations
with carrying amounts of HK$502,474,000 and
HK$118,768,000, respectively. During the year
ended 31 March 2023, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, no impairment loss
is recognised on the Grand Emperor Hotel
Properties
uﬁﬂﬂ ok G AR I 5E 15 S 16 Bk 8% - 12 20234E3 A 31
215 B i ) 3 B0 A IR T {23 7l £4502,474,000
iﬁ%ﬁ:&ll&%&OOO‘F&fﬂZﬁEﬁ?@)ﬁ&*ﬁ BEH 2 W
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Our procedures in relation to the impairment

assessment of the Grand Emperor Hotel Properties

included:

Zf-‘ﬁﬁ35]9%5'5ﬁb&“z@FS%%ZJ&@HEZEF@E
Understanding the impairment assessment
process of the Group with involvement of the
independent qualified professional valuers
engaged by the Company to estimate the
recoverable amount of the Grand Emperor Hotel
Properties;
TR A R RIS S G R SR A (R R A RS
WG E Y S 2 AT U Bl e BT B AR W
G TR

* Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent qualified professional
valuers engaged by the Company;
FEAL BN Y L G M B A R 2 A
RE T [ 2 B

* TEvaluating the key assumptions adopted by
the management of the Group in determining
the recoverable amount of the Grand Emperor
Hotel Properties based on fair value less costs of
disposal, including the forecasted revenue and
costs, and discount rate applied in the model
with reference to market available data and the
involvement of our internal valuation specialists;
GRS FAPINERIERT R S R N e U RE ST N
e 5L R AT I ) 3 T o [ < IR R A 2 E ARG B
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JEAS L B AT B > A AT Z MR E R K 2 0L

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited ¥ £ 4244H% A R/AF 63
Annual Report 2022/2023 £



inRYA 3 T R ey

Key audit matters
oA 4 % o IR

" INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’ S REPORT

How our audit addressed the key audit matters
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Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets in respect of hotel

and related operations in Grand Emperor Hotel (continued)

Sl 3 5 R R 0 0 2 0 N R R S B A R 2 W S ~ e e e B R A A RE A (AT

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, impairment assessment of the
Grand Emperor Hotel Properties is performed by
comparing the recoverable amount of the Grand
Emperor Hotel Properties, which is the higher of and
the fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use, to its carrying value as at 31 March 2023.

AR S A5 R B REART MR o A B R AR, e
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The recoverable amount of the Grand Emperor
Hotel Properties is estimated based on fair value
less cost of disposal using income approach
with significant unobservable inputs and key
assumptions adopted by the management of

the Group including forecasted revenue and
costs, and discount rate applied in the valuation
conducted by an independent firm of qualified
professional valuers engaged by the Company and
approved by the directors of the Company.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

64 Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited ¥ 244 % AR /AR
Annual Report 2022/2023 43

Evaluating the reasonableness of the recoverable
amount by developing an independent estimate
based on market available data with the
involvement of our internal valuation specialists;
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Assessing whether the disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements are appropriate
and sufficient.
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Responsibilities of Directors and Those
Charged with Governance for the

Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Au Mei Yin.
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.'. -CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £2023%3/1 31 H I &

Revenue A

Contracts with customers EEGH 5(a) 260,673 391,860

Leases HE 5(b) 30,446 24,034
Total revenue A 291,119 415,894
Cost of sales B A (23,061) (25,075)
Cost of hotel and gaming operations 5 B R 05 2 AR (370,722) (467,157)
Direct operating expenses in respect of Fl & # & ¥ ¥~ H#%

leasing of investment properties Y -1:53 (13,025)
Gross loss E18 (115,689) (83,267)
Other income Ho A A 19,321 19,602
Other gains and losses Ho Al 8 K s 18 7 21,319 3,893
Impairment losses reversed (recognised) ¥ 3 - &% K s -

on property, plant and equipment, ok P AR S T

right-of-use assets and goodwill M (R ) 2 WE R 31,781 (271,120)
Fair value changes of investment BEWEAREEZ

properties 5T 19,700 (143,000)
Impairment allowance for trade 5 5 BEMUK 2 A 1%

receivables (590) -
Selling and marketing expenses S8 e Tl 35 4 B 2 (35,133) (73,093)
Administrative expenses T HCE A (120,811) (175,992)
Finance costs A B 8 (1,109)
Loss before taxation R i s 15 9 (181,211) (724,885)
Taxation credit ol T (7] 4% 11 53,214 80,640
Loss and total comprehensive expense — 4F & i 48 K 4 18 B 3¢ 48 5A

for the year (127,997) (644,245)
Loss and total comprehensive expense M fifi 4F & s 8 &% 4 181 B 2

for the year attributable to: A

Owners of the Company EN/NGIE ZEPN (98,192) (528,317)

Non-controlling interests IF FE I 4 (29,805) 115,928

(127,997) (644,245)

Loss per share (5300 Fic

Basic E %N 13 HKS$(0:08)75 70 131 (AN
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
sRE A BHIN LR

At 31 March 2023 202343/ 31 H

Non-current assets I E) &
Investment properties Ei'g-L7/E 3 14 1,506,200 996,500
Property, plant and equipment ERE S 1Y & 15 2,361,668 2,417,802
Right-of-use assets o J1 M 16 401,922 420,417
Deposits paid for acquisition of i ) S W SRR
property, plant and equipment Z e AR 1,162 1,681
Pledged bank deposit CHCHRERAT K 19 - 64,134
4,270,952
Current assets LB &
Inventories 8 11,312 12,014
Trade and other receivables B 5y B FoAth Wi K 18 52,145 132,085
Pledged bank deposits C KA AR AT 73K 19 66,187 354
Short-term bank deposits JL A SRAT A7 3K 19 56,789 314,339
Bank balances and cash BRAT RS B M B 19 380,330 671,097
566,763
Current liabilities b U R=R
Trade and other payables B 5y Be FoAth EAT 3k 20 96,744 117,146
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries UG ) FNEIF O 21 21,889 4,540
Amounts due to non-controlling KA mZ 22
interests of subsidiaries I HE P W 4 K IH 39,523 39,523
Taxation payable JREAS ol T 94,255 145,614
Lease liabilities g AR 26 802 2,328
253,213
Net current assets i) 313,550
Total assets less current liabilities AR WO ) BUAR 4,584,502
Non-current liabilities B B fE
Lease liabilities B A 26 26,444
Deferred taxation AR SERL A 27 48,735
75,179
Net assets B HE 4,509,323 4,641,731
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' CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
BRI BHIR DR

At 31 March 2023 #202343/31H

Capital and reserves AR Ak M

Share capital JgeA 28 119

Reserves bt 3,691,693
Equity attributable to owners of the AN A N A HE £

Company 3,691,812 3,794,415
Non-controlling interests IF P o 2 31 817,511 847,316
Total equity HE 35 48 AH 4,509,323 4,641,731

The consolidated financial statements on pages 68 to 166 were 568 E & #5166 H T #ii 2 4 & M B M £ C 7
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 202346 H 23 H 48 # & & b 1 K 2 HE 7155 > 3

23 June 2023 and are signed on its behalf by: N P SR
Wong Chi Fai Fan Man Seung, Vanessa
Director Director
#HH HH
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S

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY |

G oy R S 3

#E20234F3H 31 H IEF &

For the year ended 31 March 2023

A1 April 2021 0E4ALE 121 677 ) B 695 IS4 4433694 963l 539755
Loss and total comprehensive expense 4 5 R 2 T B X 44

for the year - - - - S sms3 G) (115928 (64.249)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (ote 25) VMR AR (H725) - - - - - - - (875) (875)
Acquisition of additional interestsin i~ HF 2 EMEAF

anon wholly-owned subsidiary ZHAMER - - - - (566) - (566) 558 8)
Ordinary shares repurchased and FEE Rt

cancelled (note 28) (H3£28) 1) 1 - - - (14,611) (14,611) - (14,611)
2021 final dividend paid BRI - - - - - 790 (17960) - (17,960)
2022 interim dividend paid B R22FH L - - - - W) (17%60) )
2022 special dividend paid ER20224E4F RIS, - - - - - (59,865) (59,865) - (59,865)
At31 March 2002 W02ESA3IA 06302 2995591 3794415 4,641,731
Loss and total comprehensive expense 4 {8 R 2 T B 4 44

for the year (98192 (98192  (29805)  (27990)
Ordinary shares repurchased and T Rk R

cancelled (ofe 28) (H:28) - (4411) (4411) - (4411)
At 31 March 2023 R2023%3A31H 119 287 396,392 2,832,988 3,691,812 817,511 4,509,323

Note: The other reserve of the Group arose from acquisition of additional M7t : 7 8 B 2 HoAb ¥ 4 £ i # £ 20224F3 H31H

interests in non wholly-owned subsidiaries from non-controlling
interests during the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2019.

K 20194E3 731 A Ak 4F BE N [ I $8 IR 45 i
W I 4 o 2w 2 AN AR BT A o
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""" " CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £2023%3/1 31 H I &

Cash flows from operating activities A KL G B 2 BB
Loss before taxation o Fod I Js 12 (181,211) (724,885)
Adjustments for: P
Interest income FLE A (8,853) (15,424)
Interest expenses RS 952 1,640
Fair value changes of investment BEYEN REEZ
properties 55 ) (19,700) 143,000
Impairment allowance for B 5 ek 2 BifE
trade receivables B 590 -
Impairment losses (reversed) ERE STV SN
recognised on property, plant and 1 I HE S
equipment, right-of-use assets and P2 (B FERR 2
goodwill 11 5 4L (31,781) 271,120
Depreciation of property, plant and Yy~ ks St 2
equipment e 113,572 136,677
Depreciation of right-of-use assets M AREE A 2 T 17,008 19,739
(Gain) loss on disposal/write-off of e e
property, plant and equipment B LS Skl 2
(W4 ) s 18 (1,291) 64
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary A — S~ Rl 2
i g (1,434) -
Gain on lease modification LB SOk 48 (381) -
Operating cash flows before ReHEEEAR BT 2
movements in working capital WEBH SR (112,529) (168,069)
Decrease in inventories fERZ WD 702 487
Decrease in trade and other receivables & 5 K HoAth Ui 3k 22 Tk 2> 78,257 32,443
Decrease in trade and other payables & 5 S H At JE £+ 5k 2 i > (31,463) (27,447)
Increase in amounts due to fellow YNGIEN o) VA e Pd
subsidiaries Ha 17,349
Net cash used in operating activities TG B T 2 B T (47,684)
Cash flows from investing activities A H G ) 2 B A
Withdrawal of short-term bank P U B ERAT AE 3K
deposits 336,703 1,429,633
Interest received B A S, 9,669 28,010
Proceeds from disposal of property, HE Y e s 2
plant and equipment I A5 3K H 1,747 16
Withdrawal of a pledged bank deposit — #2 B H& #8147 47 5K 355 -
Acquisition of investment properties Y 4% &4 % (490,000) -
Placement of short-term bank deposits  f# A i #14R17 77 3K (79,153) (328,307)
Acquisition of property, plant and i ) 2 - W SR
equipment (14,011) (10,668)
Placement of pledged bank deposits AR RT3 (2,054) (1,135)
Deposits paid for acquisition of i ) - B MR
property, plant and equipment EAfRT 4 (522) (776)
Net cash outflow from disposal of A — FHT BA B s W 2
a subsidiary B4 0 R A (100) -
Acquisition of subsidiaries 1k i B Jg 2 ) - 2,030,008
Net cash used in investing activities G B T 2 B4 A (237,366) (913,235)
72 - Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 5% 5 4505 AR/ ]
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS o
S R TH s

For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £202343/ 31 H Ik &

Cash flows from financing activities A& Bl B 2 B R
Payment on repurchase of shares LA T (4,389) (14,561)
Interest paid gL (952) (1,640)
Repayments of lease liabilities TR A (354) (1,926)
Transaction costs attributable to ] ] B 3 A 2 32 5
repurchase of shares AR (22) (50)
New bank borrowings raised CEEMMATIER 210,000
Bank borrowings repaid C R SRATIE K (210,000)
Dividends paid IR E (95,785)
Repayments to non-controlling interests & & — i jft J#§ 23 7] 2
of a subsidiary T 422 FEOHE i K (1,567)
Acquisition of additional interests in a AT S 7 — ] B 2 ] 2
subsidiary BOME RS (8)
Net cash used in financing activities Rl ) T 2 B I R (5,717) (115,537)
Net decrease in cash and cash Bla LBl a5 EY 2 Wb
equivalents iR ] (290,767) (1,189,955)
Cash and cash equivalents at the BN 2 Bl KBS EY
beginning of the reporting period 671,097 1,861,052
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of ~ 2#IARZ B4 KB HEY) -
the reporting period, representing RISRAT 45 8% e Bl &
bank balances and cash 380,330 671,097
Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 5% S 18447 5 AR /A ] 73 B
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" NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
sE e ISR b T

For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £2023%3/1 31 H I &

1. General Information 1. — &R

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited (the “Company”)
is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The Company’s immediate holding company is
Emperor Entertainment Hotel Holdings Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(“Hong Kong”) with limited liability. The intermediate
holding company of the Company is Emperor International
Holdings Limited (“Emperor International”), a company
incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability, the shares
of which are also listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. The ultimate holding company of the Company
is Albert Yeung Holdings Limited, a limited liability
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands which
is in turn held by First Trust Services AG, being the trustee
of The Albert Yeung Discretionary Trust (“AY Trust”), the
founder and settlor of which is Dr. Yeung Sau Shing, Albert
(“Dr. Albert Yeung”). The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the “Corporate Information and Key Dates”
section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 40.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SE e s EE

For the year ended 31 March 2023  # E2023%3/1 31 H I &

2. Application of New and Amendments 2. J&JI# 38 & 81557 Z 7 i

to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”)
Amendments to HKFRSs that are

mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for
the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
Group’s annual periods beginning on 1 April 2022 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

Amendment to HKFRS 3

Amendment to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment - Proceeds
before Intended Use

Amendment to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2018 - 2020

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

S 5 e ok R L (T 7 98 S 5

et L )
TP A A JE 5 ] A B 2 BB RT 2
A o 7 B O

T AR A BE > A S B UCE R A s o R
NE([HFEEGEHmAG])HEMmZ 5
A B s e R 2 B RT R A
20224F4 H 1 H B U 22 4F 5 30 ] 52 ) 24
R L BEAR B BB R

Tl AR B ASE LSS
EIEZ BET
il g Rt Y2~ H2s Ml —
1652 BT YESE 2 R 2
Jir 15 7 A
il g st EEAH-BITHH
B3THEZAEET LA
Tl AR W R
ZIEFT 20184 £20204E 2
GRIE§

T 7 R R T s o 5 i o I 2 A RT
A P A4 JBE BB TR 4R BE 22 B 551K
UL R R B T,/ Bl Ao 5 B 5 0 3 O o 2
ENET PN 2 N

5 A8 i AL 5 AR A 28 = 9 4
A5 5T A v 0 e v e
A% A5 I R 7R P DA LR 104 R
0 2 T A T 2 1 B A
K

HKERS 17 Insurance Contracts! T s A 75 1 6 TRB A &
F179E
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets T s SV 4 1 ) & W s
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its S10%E M & it & Rt AT A EAE
Associate or Joint Venture? HE RIS 285E 2 (57T i ERE PN
B2
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SR O ISR IR

For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £2023%3/1 31 H I &

2. Application of New and Amendments
to Hong Kong Financial Reportin
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continued
New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective (continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in Sale and
Leaseback®

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5

(2020)?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants?®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting
and HKFRS Practice Policies!
Statement 2
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates!

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction!

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

’ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all these new and amendments to HKFRSs will have
no material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SE e s EE

For the year ended 31 March 2023  # E2023%3/1 31 H I &

3. Hot A S A o I Y

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies
Basis of preparation of consolidated

financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence decisions
made by primary users. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment properties
which are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment
(“HKFRS 27), leasing transactions that are accounted for
in accordance with HKFRS 16 Lease (“HKFRS 16”), and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS
2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of
Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefit by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

FEEFEBOR
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" NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SR O ISR IR

For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £2023%3/1 31 H I &

3. Hot A S A o I Y

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (continued)

For investment properties which are transacted at fair
value and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs
is to be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods,
the valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial
recognition the results of the valuation technique equals
the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

* Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

* Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee

if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SE e s EE

For the year ended 31 March 2023  # E2023%3/1 31 H I &

3. Hot S A o I Y

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent ownership interests entitling their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets of the relevant
subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Business combinations or asset acquisitions

Optional concentration test

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration
test, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The concentration
test is met if substantially all of the fair value of the gross
assets acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset
or group of similar identifiable assets. The gross assets
under assessment exclude cash and cash equivalents,
deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting from the effects
of deferred tax liabilities. If the concentration test is met,
the set of activities and assets is determined not to be a
business and no further assessment is needed.

ERGETBOR (4)

ERGEEOR ()
7B H 2 ()

A A D 75 B 2 1 2 1
AESE N S N ) PR
HE B 4% 1k A o HLB T &5 0 1 4F BE 7 i
S8 — T B 2 7 2 W A B S i
S A S 0 B 75 P HE AR A
i B CH Al 4 T e 3 4% > A D
b P 2 ) 2 PRI RERC 1 A 2 O -

1R 4t )5 i i R A o WA N R 4 e
it o B JB 2 ) 22 2 T A i 4EVRE B T AR
O AR N R P RO A > RO UL B
BRI i 7 A M Al A B

fisi A 75 2 Wi 2~ =l 2 s iR B AR
o R fol L B B R AR B 2w
e

P A R AL R B 2~ w225 2 SR
N2 ) ) R R MR S A S S
LBl i A i 51 SRRy T LA A ) 6 o

i B a8 2 ) 2 FF 2 JBOE 2 BELAS 4R [T A
Z MEAR oy B 2 81 > AR B A HEHE 4 I
T HCAF AT N TG B8 IR i U A5 23 ik AR BRI B
J& o~ F 2 EE E

T & 0F 2B O

ks ase Rty

AR [ W] 9 T AL By AR T A AR M AR
2R > Fo o AL WP Al o 2 3 B K
L AL R T A SR o A B 2 A
B 2 MR SR (AR R B ]
i 7] O ALL AT i ] E AL > B4
FHEF BB - Z A 2 A E A
BekBReSEY - EREMEEE MU
Joe TR0 A0 ot TH 4 fo 0 B T B 22
AT AR R R T B K A R
B 2 3 IR S > e AR A A -

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited ¥ £ 4244H% A R/AF 79

Annual Report 2022/2023 £



""" " NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
wro B AR b

For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £2023%3/1 31 H I &

3. Hot A S A o I Y

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions (continued)
Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies
and recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price
first to investment properties which are subsequently
measured under fair value model and financial assets/
financial liabilities at the respective fair values, the
remaining balance of the purchase price is then allocated
to the other identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis
of their relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such
a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain
purchase gain.

Business combinations

A business is an integrated set of activities and assets which
includes an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.
The acquired processes are considered substantive if they
are critical to the ability to continue producing outputs,
including an organised workforce with the necessary skills,
knowledge, or experience to perform the related processes
or they significantly contribute to the ability to continue
producing outputs and are considered unique or scarce or
cannot be replaced without significant cost, effort, or delay
in the ability to continue producing outputs.

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SE e s EE

For the year ended 31 March 2023  # E2023%3/1 31 H I &

3. Hot A B A o I Y

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions (continued)
Business combinations (continued)

For the business combinations in which the acquisition is
on or after 1 April 2022, the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of an asset
and a liability in the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 issued in June 2018 (the “Conceptual
Framework”) except for transactions and events within
the scope of HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets (“HKAS 37”) or HK (IFRIC) - Int 21
Levies (“HK (IFRIC) - Int 217”), in which the Group applies
HKAS 37 or HK (IFRIC) - Int 21 instead of the Conceptual
Framework to identify the liabilities it has assumed in a
business combination contingent assets are not recognised.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 at
the acquisition date;

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard; and

* lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases for
which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months of the
acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low
value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and measured
at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities,
adjusted to reflect favorable or unfavorable terms of
the lease when compared with market terms.
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""" " NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £2023%3/1 31 H I &

3. Hot A S A o I Y

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions (continued)
Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition
date. If, after re-assessment, the net amount of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss
as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
the acquirer’s identifiable net assets or at fair value.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or
group of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not longer than an operating
segment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SE e s EE

For the year ended 31 March 2023  # E2023%3/1 31 H I &

3. Hot S A o I Y

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Goodwill (continued)

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently when there is
an indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or
group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating units or any
of the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-
generating units, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the amount of profit or
loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of an operation
within the cash-generating unit (or a cash-generating
unit within a group of cash-generating units), the amount
of goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of the
relative values of the operation (or the cash-generating unit)
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit (or
the group of cash-generating units) retained.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation
is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £2023%3/1 31 H I &

3. Hot A S A o I Y

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

* the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations (including
allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations including bundle sales for hotel accommodation,
and food and beverage, the Group allocates the transaction
price to each performance obligation on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined
at contract inception. It represents the price at which the
Group would sell a promised good or service separately
to a customer. If a stand-alone selling price is not directly
observable, the Group estimates it using appropriate
techniques such that the transaction price ultimately
allocated to any performance obligation reflects the amount
of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled
in exchange for transferring the promised goods or services
to the customer.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  # E2023%3/1 31 H I &

3. Hot S A o I Y

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation
Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is
to recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements
of the value of the services transferred to the customer to
date relative to the remaining services promised under
the contract, that best depict the Group’s performance in
transferring control of services.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether the
nature of its promise is a performance obligation to provide
the specified goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a
principal) or to arrange for those goods or services to be
provided by the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good
or service before that good or service is transferred to a
customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified good or service by
another party. In this case, the Group does not control the
specified good or service provided by another party before
that good or service is transferred to the customer. When
the Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in the
amount of any fee or commission to which it expects to be
entitled in exchange for arranging for the specified goods
or services to be provided by the other party.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £2023%3/1 31 H I &

3. Hot A S A o I Y

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Performance obligations for contracts with customers

The Group provides services to a gaming concessionaire in
Macau under service arrangements for gaming operation
in mass market hall, VIP room and slot machine hall. The
performance obligation represents provision of gaming-
related marketing and public relation services to the
gaming concessionaire. Revenue from such services are
recognised as a performance obligation satisfied over
time as the Group is entitled to receive its service income
according to the relevant operating performance from
the gaming concessionaire which simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs.

The Group also provides hotel rooms to customers. The
performance obligation represents provision of hotel
accommodation services for the customers. Revenue from
hotel rooms is recognised as a performance obligation
satisfied over time as the Group is entitled to receive its
income according to the relevant operating performance
from the customers and the customers simultaneously
receive and consume the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs.

The transaction price of food and beverage sales is the
net amount collected from the customers for such goods.
The transaction price for such transactions is recorded as
revenue when the goods are transferred to the customer.
There is no other separate performance obligation
identified except for delivery of goods. The revenue on food
and beverage sales is recognised as revenue when the food
and beverage are delivered.

The Group has other contracts that include multiple
goods and services, such as packages that bundle food
and beverage and other services with hotel stays. For such
arrangements, the Group allocates revenue to each good or
service based on its relative stand-alone selling price. The
Group primarily determines the stand-alone selling price
of hotel rooms and food and beverage based on the amount
that the Group charges when each is sold separately in
similar circumstances to similar customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SE e s EE

For the year ended 31 March 2023  # E2023%3/1 31 H I &

3. Hot S A o I Y

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at fair values, adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued
operating lease income. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment properties are
included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets including
buildings that are held for use in the supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes. Property, plant
and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost or deemed cost upon transfer
from investment properties, less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests
of properties which includes both leasehold land and
building elements, the entire consideration is allocated
between the leasehold land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values at initial recognition.
To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented
as “right-of-use assets” in the consolidated statement of
financial position except for those that are classified and
accounted for as investment properties under fair value
model. When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably
between non-lease building element and undivided interest
in the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £2023%3/1 31 H I &

3. Hot A S A o I Y

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or
deemed cost of items of property, plant and equipment
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs which are not directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application of HKFRS 16 or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is
or contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  # E2023%3/1 31 H I &

3. Hot S A o I Y

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components including contract
for acquisition of ownership interests of a property which
includes both leasehold land and non-lease building
components, unless such allocation cannot be made
reliably.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and instead
account for the lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of land and buildings and motor
vehicles that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised
as expense on a straight-line basis or another systematic
basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

e the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

* any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

* an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.
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3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

Except for those that are classified as investment properties
and measured under fair value model, right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease
term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the
definition of investment property or inventory as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees; and

e payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SE e s EE

For the year ended 31 March 2023  # E2023%3/1 31 H I &

3. Hot S A o I Y

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

e the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

* the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

e the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

* the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price for
the increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments
to that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability,
less any lease incentives receivable, based on the lease
term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date
of the modification.
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3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated 3.

Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease modifications (continued)

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset.

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee,
the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset, and such costs are recognised
as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease term
except for investment properties measured under fair value
model.

Rental income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (“HKFRS 157) to allocate
consideration in a contract to lease and non-lease
components. Non-lease components are separated from
lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone
selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not
part of the original terms and conditions are accounted for
as lease modifications, including lease incentives provided
through forgiveness or reduction of rentals.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SE e s EE

For the year ended 31 March 2023  # E2023%3/1 31 H I &

3. Hot S A o I Y

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessor (continued)

Lease modification (continued)

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the original lease as part of the lease payments for the
new lease.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an asset
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are also allocated to the relevant cash-generating
units when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be established, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
established. The recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units to
which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared with
the carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or
group of cash generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.
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3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment on property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets other than goodwill (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating
unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if
applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or
the group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount
of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset
is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit
or a group of cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories represent food and beverage, consumable and
other goods of hotel and are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on
a first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
Costs necessary to make the sale include incremental costs
directly attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs
which the Group must incur to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SE e s EE

For the year ended 31 March 2023  # E2023%3/1 31 H I &

3. Hot S A o I Y

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the
time value of money is material).

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction cost directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediate in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £2023%3/1 31 H I &

3. Hot A S A o I Y

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

* the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

* the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on
the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SE e s EE

For the year ended 31 March 2023  # E2023%3/1 31 H I &

3. Hot S A o I Y

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and lease receivables subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL”) on financial assets (including
trade and other receivables, pledged bank deposits,
short-term bank deposits and bank balances) and lease
receivables which are subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12 months ECL (“12m ECL”)
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected
to result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessment are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experiences,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of
future conditions.

The Group always recognises a lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and lease receivables.

For other financial instruments, the Group measures
the loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, in which case the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should
be recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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" NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
sE e ISR b T

For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £2023%3/1 31 H I &

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated 3. ##& M8 MR M WL R

Financial Statements and Significant FEGEEOR (4F)

Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued) FEEGREOR ()

Financial instruments (continued) s TR (%)

Financial assets (continued) EEE (4)

Impairment of financial assets and lease receivables subject ARARE A o J 5 i Y4 R SR O B A AT (L

to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued) FEA 1 45 il A % AR B I AR 2 ek
(%)

(i)

98

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

* existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and

e an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  # E2023%3/1 31 H I &

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and lease receivables subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than
30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

(ii) Definition of default
For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;
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" NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
sE e ISR b T

For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £2023%3/1 31 H I &

3. Hot B A o L Y
FEEGETBR (4)

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued) FEGHEEOR ()
Financial instruments (continued) #H LA ()
Financial assets (continued) Zl & ()

Impairment of financial assets and lease receivables subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets (continued)

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(iv) Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate.
A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (v) whiE RrERR G B R

The measurement of ECL is a function of the ARG B R )y E AR &
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the )RR E (R 8 A 72 40 2 R %
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the T ) B 78 #0 Ja\ B < bR B o 392 40
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability B 5 S 2 HI AR SRR B 22 BEAG T R
of default and loss given default is based on historical JRE Sb SO B i IS M DRI W o Al R
data and forward-looking information. Estimation of TEL 15 B Ml 4R Il ABE % i E
ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted RH > LAEE AR A 1 A TR R B 2 E
amount that is determined with the respective risks of i 7E
default occurring as the weights.
Generally, the ECL is the difference between all — M > A SR F DL IR S A R A
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in AL 2 BT A & #) B4 T R B A
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that ] S 2 B R T A
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective il w7 HAE B s 48 > I 4 ) b R
interest rate determined at initial recognition. For a IR i S 2 B I R SR 4T B o il A B R
lease receivable, the cash flows used for determining WK T o AR TR A s A 0 ME R
the ECL is consistent with the cash flows used in SH16%% - i BHME B 18 B A Bl
measuring the lease receivable in accordance with 4 U e LR AH B SRR B
HKFRS 16. e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SE e s EE

For the year ended 31 March 2023  # E2023%3/1 31 H I &

3. Hot S A o I Y

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and lease receivables subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)
Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised cost of the
financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments by
adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception
of trade receivables and lease receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.
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" NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
sE e ISR b T

For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £2023%3/1 31 H I &

3. Hot A S A o I Y

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
amounts due to fellow subsidiaries and amounts due to
non-controlling interests of subsidiaries are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include:

(a) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject to
regulatory restrictions that result in such balances no
longer meeting the definition of cash; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months
or less), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value
and restricted deposits arising from requirement
under the New Gaming Concession Contract that are
held for meeting short-term cash commitments. Cash
equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting short-
term cash commitments rather than for investment or
other purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of bank balances
and cash.

100 Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited ¥ 244 % AR /AR
Annual Report 2022/2023 43

EEGETBOR (4)

ERGEEOR ()

SATH (4D

B R R ()

0 A 0 4 2

B £ B B B Al o 3 K
) 25 I 2 )k e R W i 8 ) 2
T HE 4 4 TE) 2 R PR B R R e i
8 A R o

R IR T oA N =R
AR A G ] 2 BT M AR B DT B
I By > 7 4R T AL e R < R e B
A 1 Tl 0 < 65 Y IR T (L BEL 2 AN S e
R 2 22 B 4R 25 N BT -

B RBI&FHY
W MBS R DR B 91 2 Bl M B %
HY 1

(a) Bl H A5 T BB & s ek
AL 32 B PR A T A B R A
AT G BB E FRAVSRAT AL B 3 [

(b) BEEMEY  HAaHEEH (i F K
P B =R A S ) - aT B
Pt I L R SRR 3R < HLE (5 B Ja
Ba AN K 114 1 Vit BBl P A A A
Je B BRI 2 B I R A A A AR
THUE A 2 Z R Bl
W R A i A e B R > T
A B B A H A

G eRERBERMNE HeHE&%
V) ELARSRAT A5 B LB 4




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SE e s EE

For the year ended 31 March 2023  # E2023%3/1 31 H I &

3. Hot S A o I Y

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profits differs from loss before
taxation because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £2023%3/1 31 H I &

3. Hot A S A o I Y

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is
rebutted, deferred tax for such investment properties are
measured in accordance with the above general principles
set out in HKAS 12 (i.e. based on the expected manner as to
how the properties will be recovered).

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
separately. Temporary differences on initial recognition
of the relevant right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are
not recognised due to application of the initial recognition
exemption. Temporary differences arising from subsequent
revision to the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of lease
liabilities and lease modifications, that are not subject to
initial recognition exemption are recognised on the date of
remeasurement or modification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SE e s EE

For the year ended 31 March 2023  # E2023%3/1 31 H I &

3. Hot S A o I Y

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments,
the Group considers whether it is probable that the relevant
tax authority will accept the uncertain tax treatment used,
or proposed to be used by individual group entities in
their income tax filings. If it is probable, the current and
deferred taxes are determined consistently with the tax
treatment in the income tax filings. If it is not probable that
the relevant taxation authority will accept an uncertain
tax treatment, the effect of each uncertainty is reflected by
using either the most likely amount or the expected value.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.
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" NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
sE e ISR b T

For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £2023%3/1 31 H I &

3. Hot A S A o I Y

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Government subsidies

Government subsidies are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the subsidies will be
received.

Government subsidies are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
subsidies are intended to compensate.

Government subsidies related to income that are receivable
as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable. Such
subsides are presented under “other income”.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SE e s EE

For the year ended 31 March 2023  # E2023%3/1 31 H I &

Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical judgment in applying accounting
policies

The following is the critical judgment, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets arising from investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the directors
of the Company have reviewed the Group’s investment
property portfolios and concluded that the Group’s
investment properties situated in Macau with aggregate
carrying amount of HK$492,200,000 as at 31 March 2023
(2022: HK$481,500,000) are held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in these investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, the directors
of the Company have determined that the presumption that
the carrying amounts of such investment properties are
recovered through sale is rebutted. As a result, the Group
has recognised deferred tax liabilities of HK$58,565,000
(2022: HK$58,390,000) on changes in fair value of the
investment properties subject to Macau Complementary
Tax on the assumption that these investment properties
will be recovered through use as at 31 March 2023.

4. Critical Accounting Judgment and Key 4. 24 & gt A Bi B 5+ 4
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £2023%3/1 31 H I &

Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(continued)

Critical judgment in applying accounting
policies (continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties (continued)
In respect of investment properties that are located in Hong
Kong with aggregate carrying amount of HK$1,014,000,000
(2022: HK$515,000,000), the directors of the Company
concluded that these investment properties are not held
within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in these
investment properties over time. Therefore, in measuring
the Group’s deferred taxation in these investment properties,
the directors of the Company have determined that the
presumption that the carrying amounts of such investment
properties using the fair value model are recovered entirely
through sale is not rebutted. As a result, the Group has not
recognised any deferred tax liability on changes in fair value
of the investment properties situated in Hong Kong, as it is
expected that the Group will not subject to any income taxes
on disposal of these investment properties.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Valuation of investment properties

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties in Macau
was estimated based on a valuation on these properties
conducted by an independent firm of qualified professional
property valuers engaged by the Company and approved by
the directors of the Company using income capitalisation
method with significant unobservable inputs and assumptions
of market conditions. The relevant inputs and conditions
include capitalisation rates and comparable market rents and
transactions with adjustments to reflect different locations or
conditions, and changes in market conditions.

The Group’s investment properties held for earning rental
income under operating leases of commercial properties
in Macau amounted to HK$492,200,000 as at 31 March
2023 (2022: HK$481,500,000). Fair value gains arising
from those investment properties of HK$10,700,000 (2022:
fair value losses of HK$143,000,000) were recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2023.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  # E2023%3/1 31 H I &

4. GG B B A S T

4. Critical Accounting Judgment and Key

Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Valuation of investment properties (continued)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties in
Hong Kong was estimated based on a valuation on these
properties conducted by an independent firm of qualified
professional property valuers engaged by the Company and
approved by the directors of the Company using income
capitalisation method (2022: direct comparison method)
with significant unobservable inputs and assumptions of
market conditions. The relevant inputs and conditions
include capitalisation rates and market rent which is
assessed with reference to market evidence of recent
transaction rents for similar properties with adjustments
to reflect different locations and conditions (2022: market
evidence of recent transaction prices for similar properties
with adjustments to reflect different locations and
conditions).

The Group’s investment properties held for earning rental
income under operating leases of serviced apartments in
Hong Kong amounted to HK$1,014,000,000 as at 31 March
2023 (2022: HK$515,000,000). Fair value gains arising from
those investment properties of HK$9,000,000 (2022: Nil)
were recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31
March 2023.

The basis of valuation is disclosed in note 14. Changes to
these assumptions and inputs would result in changes in
the fair value of investment properties and corresponding
adjustments to the amount of gain or loss reported in the
profit or loss.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties, the Group uses market-observable data to the
extent it is available. At the end of each reporting period,
the designated team works closely with the independent
firms of qualified professional property valuers engaged by
the Company to establish and determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for Level 3 fair value
measurements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £2023%3/1 31 H I &

Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Impairment assessment on the recoverable amounts of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

in respect of hotel and related operations in Grand
Emperor Hotel (collectively “Grand Emperor Hotel
Properties”)

The impairment assessment of the Grand Emperor Hotel
Properties is performed by comparing the recoverable
amount of the Grand Emperor Hotel Properties, which is
the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use to its carrying amount as at 31 March 2023.

The recoverable amount of the Grand Emperor Hotel
Properties is estimated based on fair value less cost
of disposal using income approach with significant
unobservable inputs and key assumptions adopted by the
management of the Group including forecasted revenue
and costs, and discount rate applied in the valuation
conducted by an independent firm of qualified professional
valuers engaged by the Company and approved by the
directors of the Company. Changing the inputs and
assumptions could materially affect the fair value.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, no impairment
loss has been recognised on the Grand Emperor Hotel
Properties (2022: impairment losses of HK$86,210,000
and HK$23,335,000 have been recognised on properties,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets in respect
of hotel and related operations in Grand Emperor Hotel,
respectively).
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  #£202343/131 H I F &

5. REVENUE 5. A

(a) Contracts with customers @Q%FFGH

An analysis of the Group’s AEEZ WA HTAT
revenue is as follows:
Recognised over time: T — B IR i i o
Gaming revenue: R
- Service income from gaming — R AL S Z IRBF A
transactions in mass market hall 80,756 178,950
- Service income from gaming — B EH BRI AL ) Z B
transactions in VIP room 690 65,049
- Service income from gaming — A TR 2
transactions in slot machine hall i &7 3N 6,294 16,582
Hotel revenue: P N
- Hotel room income —I 5 & B U A 85,168 53,342
- Others — HoAt 13,765 524
186,673 314,447
Recognised at a point in time: 7 4 S IR ] e w0
Hotel revenue: P N
- Food and beverage sales — B E 74,000 77,413
Revenue from contracts with KA K aHBA
customers 260,673 391,860
Gaming revenue EEAL PN 87,740 260,581
Hotel revenue T8 5 U A 172,933 131,279
Revenue from contracts with AR FRHBA
customers 260,673 391,860
During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group A B %E20234E3 31 H IE4F A > B
ceased the provision of gaming-related marketing and WRFT 37 2 WROBS o ke 1A 20224F6
public relation services to SJM Resort, S.A. (“SJM”) in 26H BAME - A5 BN AR IR %
Grand Emperor Hotel under service agreements with T w7 B 5L 5 ST 1) IR AR T
SJM upon their expiry on 26 June 2022. R B 3 A PR 2> 7] ([ ) 2 fik i

REAR Bl 2 i 353 4 JBE 2 I P s
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £2023%3/1 31 H I &

5. REVENUE (continued)

(a) Contracts with customers (continued)

Then, on 15 June 2022, Tin Hou Limited (“Tin Hou”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an agreement with SJM for the provision
of the hotel rooms, catering and other ancillary
services for the gaming operation run by SJM in Grand
Emperor Hotel from 27 June 2022 to 31 December 2022,
and on 30 December 2022, entered into a new service
agreement with SJM for the provision of gaming-related
marketing and public relation services to SJM in Grand
Emperor Hotel for a term of 3 years commencing 1
January 2023.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations for contracts with
customers

All sales or services rendered from gaming and hotel
transactions are for contracts with an original period of
one year or less. As a practical expedient under HKFRS
15, the transaction price allocated to these remaining
performance obligations is not disclosed.
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(b) Leases

(b) 5

A A 2 B
W] E 4% 5 AL B A K

Total revenue arising from leases:
Operating lease payments that

112

are fixed
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  # E2023%3/1 31 H I &

6. s+ MEF

6. Segment Information

The executive directors of the Company (the “Executive
Directors”) have been identified as the chief operating
decision makers (“CODM”). The CODM review the Group’s
internal reporting in order to assess performance and
allocate resources.

The segment information reported externally is analysed
on the basis of the composition of its reporting segments
by geographical operations, which are Macau operations
and Hong Kong operations, respectively. The CODM are of
the view that the presentation of the operating segment
information better reflects the Group’s operations and
this is consistent with the internal information regularly
reviewed by the CODM for the purposes of resources
allocation and assessment of performance.

The Group’s operating segments are classified as (i) Macau
operations and (ii) Hong Kong operations. The details of the
Group’s operating segments are as follows:

(i) Macau operations

Operations in Macau derive revenues from gaming,
hotel and leasing transactions: (a) gaming revenue
from services rendered for mass market hall, VIP room
and slot machine hall transactions and provision of
gaming-related marketing and public relation services
for Grand Emperor Hotel, (b) hotel revenue from sales
or services rendered in Grand Emperor Hotel and
Inn Hotel, and (c) leasing revenue from investment
properties in these hotels.

(ii) Hong Kong operations
Operations in Hong Kong derive revenues from hotel
and leasing transactions: (a) hotel revenue from sales
or services rendered in a hotel and (b) leasing revenue
from investment properties in the hotel and serviced
apartments.
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6. FTHER ()
J A PR AN F AN bR AE - BLIE S 4
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6. Segment Information (continued)
The CODM assess the performance of individual operating
and reportable segments based on a measure of adjusted
(loss) earnings before interest, tax, depreciation,
impairment losses reversed (recognised) on property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets and goodwill, exchange
(losses) gains at corporate level and fair value changes of

investment properties (the “Adjusted (LBITDA) EBITDA”). R T n] B2 R B
Information regarding the above segments is reported A B LA R R AT
below:

Segment revenues and results Vg LN ES

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HE2023F3H 31 H 1L JE

14

Segment revenue Vg LN
Gaming revenue A 87,740 - 87,740
Hotel revenue I A 94,079 78,854 172,933
Leasing revenue HEIRA 7,549 22,897 30,446
Total &t 189,368 101,751 291,119
Segment result based on the B K
Adjusted (LBITDA) EBITDA (LBITDA)

EBITDAZ

RS (110,207) (109,799)
Bank interest income SRATFE WA 8,853

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

ERY S &Y P
e

(113,572)

Depreciation of right-of-use assets i FIHER e 2 97 45 (17,008)
Impairment losses reversed on property, #3 ~ # & Kk

plant and equipment
Exchange losses at corporate level
Fair value changes of investment

1 1] 2 i (s 4R
A 3 o THI £ HE S s 1
BEMEA REH

31,781
(57)

properties 5 19,700
Finance costs WH#EH (1,109)
Loss before taxation W B A e 4R (181,211)
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  #£202343/131 H I F &

6. Segment Information (continued) 6. FHER ()
Segment revenues and results (continued) g L UNES o)
For the year ended 31 March 2022 #E20224F3 /] 31 H IFE

Segment revenue Vg LN
Gaming revenue HRRA 260,581 - 260,581
Hotel revenue T 5 YA 80,295 50,984 131,279
Leasing revenue HEIRA 11,537 12,497 24,034
Total At 352,413 63,481 415,894
Segment result based on the HL T KW B LBITDA
Adjusted LBITDA Pyt (170,573) (1,185) (171,758)
Bank interest income ATF B A 15,424
Depreciation of property, plant and W2k~ AR B i 2
equipment Eiik ] (136,677)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets R A 2 e (19,739)
Impairment losses recognised on W2k~ 2 B A
property, plant and equipment, P RE o
right-of-use assets and goodwill e 8 < i (E s 12 (271,120)
Exchange gains at corporate level A 3 o T 9 B 51 i 3,893
Fair value changes of investment BEYIE N REE
properties 5 (143,000)
Finance costs 5% (1,908)
Loss before taxation Wt Tl i 1 (724,885)
Other than the segment information disclosed above, there e b SCBER 2 r UE RS TR 8 22023
was no other information reviewed by the CODM for the 37 31H J20224E3H31H 1L A
year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022. R fe JE At Rt T B AR DR NI -
Segment assets and liabilities o HEE XA
No analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by operating FH 7 AR 45 [ NI 0 5 ) R A R AR S v] B
and reportable segments is disclosed as it is not regularly oo JEE o B B AT T A
provided to the CODM for review. BRI - WOl B 88 A B 4 A o
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £202343/ 31 H 1k &

6. Segment Information (continued)

Geographical information
The Group’s operations are located in Macau and Hong
Kong.

The Group’s revenue from external customers and
information about its non-current assets, other than a
pledged bank deposit, by geographical location of the assets
are detailed below:

Macau

291,119

Information about major customer

During the year ended 31 March 2023, revenue derived
from one (2022: one) customer which contributed over 10%
of the Group’s total revenue amounted to HK$100,536,000
(2022: HK$260,581,000). The revenue related to Macau
operations (2022: Macau operations).
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6. FBEFR (47)
Hb [ % B}
A S B ) S L) B

AW A [ SR % T 2 WA B A B
Mo B E B o 2 I E A (O AE—
JHE R IRAT A7 30 2 BRI RE T

415,894 4,270,952 3,836,400

FHEREPZEHR

A E20234E3A31H ILAFEFEE R 2 H
1 7 42 [ AU A10% LA | 22— 4 (2022
o —4) % F LA 100,536,000
JE (20224F : 260,581,000% 7T ° % Hx A
B P 365 (20224F WM 605 ) A A -
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £202343/ 31 H Ik &

7. Other Gains and Losses 7. Hab Wy £5 K s 18

Forfeiture of unredeemed VTR 205 o T Tl 1)
commission expenses in gaming a2 (hit)
operation (Note)

Net foreign exchange (losses) gains BEE 56, (s 150) i 4 45

Others HoAt

Note: The amount represents the forfeiture of commission payable to BFEE %A AR T T S T i A Y A A
gaming patrons after the expiry of the redemption period. TR 2 5 1 A 6 o
8. Finance Costs 8. MEEH

Interest on: DL & TE A S
- bank borrowings —SRAT A K
— lease liabilities — A fE

Bank charges AT TS

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 5% S 18447 5 AR /A ] . 1 17 B
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" NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SR e ISR R

For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £2023%3/1 31 H I &

9. Loss Before Taxation

Loss before taxation has been arrived
at after charging:

Staff costs, including directors’

9. BB i s 18

B0 i 18 2 1R

B THA > G4 2 5 I

emoluments 254,631 337,611
Retirement benefit schemes AR ) S R

contributions 2,772 6,031
Total staff costs A TA 257,403
Auditor’s remuneration 2% ST T 4 4,016 3,737
Commission expenses in gaming R 15 2 2

operation (included in selling and (T A8 B K Tl 5 44 R

marketing expenses) A 10,324 45,904
Cost of inventories recognised as Tt R 2% B 32 2 A7 B RUA

an expense 23,061 25,075
Depreciation of property, plant and Wy - W B st 2 A e

equipment 113,572 136,677
Depreciation of right-of-use assets R 2 T 8 17,008 19,739
Loss on disposal/write-off of property, & /s % - ## &

plant and equipment A e
and after crediting: KEFA:
Gross rental income from investment PG 2 A I B

properties
Less: Direct operating expenses incurred

BB+ DASHE SR B A B9

for investment properties that B P E A
generated rental income HEREEH
Bank interest income (included in S|ATFLEMA (FFA
other income) HAB WA A )
Government subsidies (included in R Al B (it A Al A AT )
other income) (Note) (B7E)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HH A — [ R B 2\ 2 Wi as
(included in other income) (FEAFABIAR)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and  H &%) 3 - B85 K 3l 2 di s

equipment

Annual Report 2022/2023 4

Note: The government subsidies recognised during the year ended BifFE - R B 2202343 H 31 H K&20224E3)131H
31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 represent certain Covid-19- b4 B PR RfE 0 22 UG A 4 2R B R
related subsidies from Macau and Hong Kong governments T VR IR A R 2 IR A 3 e i A
with no unfulfilled condition. Z A o
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £202343/ 31 H Ik &

10. Directors’ and Five Highest Paid 10. EHF L AR RH A L
Individuals’ Emoluments Z % M
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) % FH M
Directors’ emoluments for the year, disclosed pursuant AR B AR SR T B
to the applicable Listing Rules and CO, is as follows: FEH B 2x mMGe B an

2023
Fees 4
Other emoluments Hfbsm
Salaries and other benefits Fd B R
Retirement benefit schemes R B

contributions
Performance related incentive ~ HEF 4 (32
payment (Note)
2022 20224F
Fees [ - 250 250 220 220 - 220 1,160
Other emoluments HAbH

Salaries and other benefits B e ] - - - - - - - -
Retirement benefit schemes RRFER R

contributions - - - - - - - -
Performance related incentive ~ HEBMBHEE (M7

payment (Note) - - - - - - - -

- 250 250 220 220 - 220 1,160

Note: The performance related incentive payment is determined Bt - 3 B SR 88 4 T 22 BE B R
with reference to the financial performance and Bl R AE N R B i E

individual performance.
Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited BREEEEARAR . 1 19 B
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £2023%3/1 31 H I &

10. Directors’ and Five Highest Paid 10. o 3 o 40 d5e R 0 A+

Individuals’ Emoluments (continued) ZHM ()

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) EFHM ()
The chief executives of the Company are also the AN 2 B AT BON B[R] RIS 5
Executive Directors and the emoluments disclosed FreE s b Ui 2 L 45 1 55
above include those services rendered by them as chief V5 I B AT BUN B BT 2 3t 22 IR 5
executives.
The Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above DA b J7 738 004 HE S 38 T A 2 1
were mainly for their services in connection with the S WU BEASOY R B A A T SRS T 1R
management of the affairs of the Company and the ML AR B 2 i - LA | R JE AT
Group. The emoluments of non-executive director and RS IR AT R I < AR
independent non-executive directors shown above TS AL AR 2 F SR i 2 RS
were mainly for their services as directors of the £ e P <
Company.

(b) Employees’ emoluments (b) & B %i
The five highest paid individuals did not include any A T AR AT BE A > L 24 B e BN
director of the Company for both years. The total AN ELFEA S A AT # o 5% A
emoluments of the five highest paid individuals for 1o AT A R 18 45 B2 2 38 I A
both years were as follows: e

Salaries and other benefits S 4 T A AR A
Retirement benefit schemes B AR A5 H A 2
contributions

- 120 " Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 5 2444 A BR/A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R eI B AR ek

For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £202343/ 31 H Ik &

10. Directors’ and Five Highest Paid 10 EFE AL AR RHMA L
Individuals’ Emoluments (continued) ZHM ()
(b) Employees’ emoluments (continued) (b) & B % ()

Emoluments of the employees were {§ 8 2 8/ F- LA #i & :
within the following bands:

HK$500,000 - HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000

500,000 7T 21,000,000 7T

1,000,001 7T 21,500,000 7T
1,500,001 7T %2,000,0005 7T
2,000,001%% 7T 42,500,000 7C
3,000,001 %% 7T 4:3,500,000¥ G

P TR AR 4 B A 5 A 2 [ M ) 5 S

No remuneration was paid by the Group to the

directors and the five highest paid employees as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office for both years. None of
the directors and the five highest paid individuals has
waived any emoluments during both years.

(c) Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong.
The assets of the plans are held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control of the
independent trustees. The Group and each employee
make mandatory contributions of 5% of relevant
payroll costs with maximum monthly contribution of
HK$1,500 to the scheme.

Lo 04 B e B AR B S AHE TR -
AR 5 W 51 482 55 o A A i A AR B
fh 2 B 5 ol eI 2 A A o R T A
A J5E TN M B S T A A e B
N AT A 7

(c) 38 P Al it 3

AR S TN P A B BRI B
B W M A RE BB o AR 2
G LA RE AR 2 R
Sz B A 4 ) 2 ) B o AR 4R T B
44 18 B Hi AR B 3B <2 A 1959 1)
a1 Lo A A AR BB A
- 1,500 73

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 55 E#S6pEARAT 121 B
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" NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
sE e ISR b T

For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £2023%3/1 31 H I &

10 FF R W mom B £
Z Wi (A7)
(c) 38 Pk At &) (A7)

10. Directors’ and Five Highest Paid
Individuals’ Emoluments (continued)
(c) Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

The Group also operates a defined contribution
retirement scheme for all qualifying employees of a
subsidiary of the Group in Macau since 1 September
2014. The assets of the scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under control of
independent trustees. The retirement scheme cost
recognised in profit or loss represents contributions
payable to funds by the Group at rates specified in
the rules of the scheme. Where there are employees
of the Group who leave the scheme prior to vesting
fully in the contributions, the contributions payable
by the Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited
contributions.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Macau
are members of state-managed retirement benefit
schemes operated by the Macau government. The
Group is required to contribute a certain percentage of
its payroll to the retirement benefit schemes to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to make
the required contributions under the schemes.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the retirement
benefit schemes contributions were HK$2,772,000
(2022: HK$6,031,000).

11. Taxation Credit

Current year

AL

ASEH H2014F9H 1 H # IR A A 4
Bz — R PR g "l AT A A &
& 18 B & e B AL ORI FHE - 5%
BE P -d-:k DA DL | P
SRR 0 B A [ G E A B e
B 25 A R R 2 IR AR EE B AR 45 AR
42 B 2 1 KR R T T LL 2R 1) B 4
TR 2 At 3 o it 74 42 184 B it 3K
B B AR R E o A A R AT
AR I B 1 WAt sk A AR AR I

A [ VAL DA 2 ) 2 AR LTS 2 IR
Y  A B 2 1o A FAR PR AR At
B 2 B o A R AR R B W 2
HEAR G L ) AR AR A A
e A AR ] 3 52 28 PR AR A T ) ZE R
Z FUAL A R i B % w0 2 K i
Fr

A 2023331 H (LB R > iR
PRAR I FE B 3 4 %5 292,772,000
JE (20224F : 6,031,000% 7C) °

11. B¢ I8 ] 43

Macau Complementary Tax (“CT”) R BT 154 7R A
(TFrfemisEst]) (862)
Hong Kong Profits Tax R R (150)
(1,012)
Reversal of CT provision in respect {35 ) 288 11 48 B 2 P 54 ST L
of prior years Gediil 52,371
Deferred taxation (note 27) IRACBLIE (M 7#27) 1,855
Taxation credit o JH [m] 5% 53,214

o

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 3 S {8447 5 AR /A
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oo B R bt

For the year ended 31 March 2023  #£202343/131 H I F &

11. Taxation Credit (continued) 11. BEYE [l ¢ (4 )
The CT is calculated at the applicable rate of 12% of the JIT A5 4l FE B T 4% AR 4F B 4G w8 SR B I
estimated assessable profits for both years. F 2 B AR 12% w5

Pursuant to the CT law, the statutory right to issue CT
assessment on the estimated assessable profit in a year of
assessment will expire in five consecutive years after that
year of assessment. At the end of the reporting period, the
directors of the Company reassessed the adequacy of the
CT provision and determined to reverse part of the Group’s
relevant CT provision of HK$52,371,000 for the 2017 year
of assessment (2022: HK$43,662,000 for the 2016 year of
assessment) accordingly.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years.

The taxation credit for the year can be reconciled to the
loss before taxation per consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

B i i 18

Loss before taxation

HRPE P51 7Bk > RIS B sE Rl A A
A0 T R S B s A 2 B 15 A T B R R
2% GE R K RS R RE B AR B R A
FAFEAR T o Y R OR s AN F E H
LT A5 TR 2 R R E B E
FEAG 5 A B8 I P e 48 (0] 3 4 A 4 R
20174F 5FBLAF B 2 A0 B8 T 45 4 70 Bl 438 A
52,371,000k 7T (20224F : jA20165F B 4F
£43,662,000% 7T) °

T s R 450 T e T AR AF BE A 5 1 IRE SRR i
M2 16.5%%5 -

AF J5E 0 A [0 458 T B A6 5 4R 4 % CH At 4 T
W i 2 BR BRI G B AR

(181,211) (724,885)

Taxation credit at the CT rate of 12%

YT Al BB 1 2% 51 5 2

i 3H [m] 43¢ 21,745 86,986
Tax effect of expenses not deductible — BBLH il & A Al F18 B 32 2
for tax purpose B g 28 (22,989) (51,455)
Tax effect of income not taxable HEBLHS I 5 T R B 2
for tax purpose i 5 B 7,124 5,249
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 7 e 58 Bi JE i 18 2 BLB 52 (12,171) (7,319)
Effect of reversal of tax provision in $3% ] 2 1 4 B TE R A 2 52
respect of prior years 52,371 43,662
Utilisation of tax losses previously ) 1) 2P iy S e R 2 ol T s 18
not recognised 7,353 2,133
Tax effect of deductible temporary ER TATIENE AR
differences not recognised BT 5 2 (599) -
Others HoAth 380 1,384
Taxation credit for the year A B IH [ 45 53,214
Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited #RIEEEARAR . 123 .

Annual Report 2022/2023 4
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SR e ISR R

For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £202343/ 31 H 1k &

12. Dividends 12. ik B

Dividends recognised as distribution AN TERRAE M IR 2 RS
during the year:
Final dividend paid in respect of B JR20224F A i S - fi
2022: Nil (2022: HK$0.015 per (20224F : §20214F 2
share in respect of 2021) AR B 7 B 10,015 7T)
Interim dividend paid in respect of B UR20234F h S - fi
2023: Nil (2022: HK$0.015 per (20224 = i20224F 2
share in respect of 2022) o RS 2 49 00,0153 7T)
Special dividend paid in respect of B JR20234F 45 Fll A S - fie
2023: Nil (2022: HK$0.05 per (20224 = §i20224F 2
share in respect of 2022) RIS 4 19 %0.059 8)
The board of directors has resolved not to recommend any #HR g O R A B E20234E3H31
final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: Nil). H 1k 4F B 2 AT fa] oK 1 % B (20224 -
I) o
13. Loss Per Share 13. # I i 48
The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to AN FIHRAT NG T SR A B 1R T AR R
owners of the Company is based on the following data: DU B st 5

Loss &5 18
Loss for the year attributable to LR IR AS B 1R 2
owners of the Company for the AN F AT N AL AF B R 15
purpose of basic loss per share (98,192) (528,317)

Number of shares J&e 4y 8 H
Weighted average number of ordinary w4 5 A 548 1M 5 2

shares in issue for the purpose of AT 3 78 RO HE - £ 9

basic loss per share RCPRVENG M 1 197,709,695
Diluted loss per share is not presented as there was no T T 18] 4 J3E T S A ] o Y A 2
dilutive potential ordinary share for both years. Jie > RSl 4 5 ) g s A 4
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NOTES TO THE. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
oo B R bt

For the year ended 31 March 2023  # E2023%3/1 31 H I &

14. & ME

14. Investment Properties

The Group leases out various commercial properties and
serviced apartments under operating leases with rentals
payable monthly. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 3 months to 5 years (2022: 3 months to 8 years).
Majority of the lease contracts contain market review
clauses in the event the lessee exercises the option to
extend.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result
of the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in
the respective functional currencies of the relevant group
entities. The lease contracts do not contain residual value
guarantee and/or lessee’s option to purchase the property
at the end of lease term.

AL BB LA E B M EDE
Fe AN E - e - HE—
540 A 2y 338 H 54 (20224F « 31 A
FRAE) o i AR FH AT 2E HAAE > KEB 4
B G K H A 5B oK

mAR A B AR EEERS A2
DI RE B W FHE > WA SR NI A TR A B
Pri 7R 3 S e Ja B o R A A0 I 4 £
) B 1B M PR i %, R AR A AL 3 4
) S T R R

Fair value AR i:

At 1 April 2021 R20214E4 4 1H 624,500
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 25) WS B B JB 2\ (M AE25) 515,000
Decrease in fair value 78 S fEAE D 143,000
At 31 March 2022 JA20224F3H31H 996,500
Additions (note 23) WV (H1EE23) 490,000
Increase in fair value S B 19,700
At 31 March 2023 202343 A31H 1,506,200

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at
the end of each reporting period have been arrived at
on the basis of valuations carried out on those dates by
Savills (Macau) Limited for investment properties in Macau
(2022: Savills (Macau) Limited) and Vincorn Consulting
and Appraisal Limited for investment properties in Hong
Kong (2022: Savills Valuation and Professional Services
Limited), independent firms of qualified professional
property valuers engaged by the Company not connected
to the Group, in accordance with International Valuation
Standards 2020 issued by the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors or the HKIS Valuation Standards 2020 issued by
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.

AEEBEY RS BRI R Z A RME
(B TR B A 2% ) 22 1 B A A2 [ 7 40 3] ok
S A B ) S AT — K
P RAE T (TPT) A R ] (20224 2 26
— RPRAE T (W) A RA ) R ELS5E
A ) e Al A RS R (20224F 15— K
- S0 A 3 A 0 B S R ) A PR A A
%5 H 2y B ) BOE ) S R A
{19 £5 W) SEAR 5% 2 53 A B A
s 2 T Al (L A5 ¥ 2020 350 75 74 ) 2 i 2
AR 2 7 i T S il (Y 1112020
HEAT 2 Al (LTI 16 5 -
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £2023%3/1 31 H I &

14. Investment Properties (continued) 14, &V ()

For the investment properties situated in Macau, they are
held within a business model of the Group whose business
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through sale. The valuation was arrived at with
reference to market rent and transactions with adjustments
to reflect different locations or conditions using the
applicable capitalisation rates.

For the investment properties situated in Hong Kong,
they are not held within a business model of the Group
whose business objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time. Due to the continued reduction in
market transactions of similar properties in the current
year, the directors of the Company considered that income
capitalisation method is more appropriate for the valuation
of investment properties as at 31 March 2023 as there
are relatively more market available data in respect of
comparable market rents and transactions. The valuation
technique is changed from direct comparison method
to income capitalisation method during the year ended
31 March 2023. The valuation of serviced apartments
was arrived by capitalising the rental income with the
applicable capitalisation rate. The market rent is assessed
with reference to market evidence of recent transaction
rents for similar properties with adjustments to reflect
different locations and conditions (2022: The valuation
of serviced apartments was arrived at with reference to
market evidence of recent transaction prices for similar
properties with adjustments to reflect different locations
and conditions).

196 Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited ¥ 244 % AR /AR
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AL IR B BB S > HA% B
Jr W I [ FE (TR0 JF 8 B ) B W 26
B R R 3 R 4 2 AR A T S A
R o %Al (BT 2 BT S i & Je 32 5
90 B R AN [ o A0 P AR o R 4R ()
T B A AL A R E

AR F W B N S HO IR %
1) 2 b I [H] 5 FE 430 ) 26 0T & 48 K5
Gy B8 F 25 2 A KR B E SRR FE A o
AR R S T 8558 5 Ak Y
EN/NEIN o 570 N~ N 7 R e
20233 H31 H & &Y 2 Ak E » R &
CINZQEA iR L O SRR e L&A )
7 5 AT 45 B o Ak (B B2 917 7% # 220234
3A31H IE4F B i B 3 Lk 5 B i A
AR o MRS 2 B 2 Ak (E ) 48 48 DA
BAMERERERAHES A -
WM 4 T2 BB Y a1 52 5
FH 4 75 B S it S e AN (] b i % (e AR
R R FE AL (20224F IR B RN B 2 Ak
{5752 BRSE AW 36305 199 T 35 58 9 3 W
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  #£202343/131 H I F &

14. Investment Properties (continued)

The following table gives information about how the fair
values of these investment properties are determined (in
particular, the valuation technique and inputs used), as
well as the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (Level 1 to 3) based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements

are observable.

Commercial properties
in Macau

TR A

492,200 Level 3
(2022: 481,500) 3%
(20224 : 481,500)

Income capitalisation method
with market unit rent and
capitalisation rate as the
key input

DI R A (e M hs B
ABEIA AL E

Serviced apartments in
Hong Kong
REBNREALE

1,014,000 Level 3
(2022: 515,000) %34
(20224 :515,000)

Income capitalisation method
with market unit rent and
capitalisation rate as the
key input (2022: Direct
comparison method with
market unit rate as the key
input)

DI B R A e A 1y B
SEEABHEN A G AL E
(20224 : LA B (1R 2y
R AR )

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during both
years.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 5% S 18447 5 AR /A ]

14, BEM¥E ()
MRS R E R EYEN AR
BB (0 T B8R T A0 (8L 4% 1l 22 g A
B R DL AR A R EES
) i A S 1 R R M AU (E T
EBIEFT SIS B (SB1R 2
3%%) o

Monthly rent, based on saleable floor area using
direct market comparable and taking into
account of time, location, frontage and size
of properties, which ranged from HK$26 to
HK$92 (2022: HKS13 to HK$94) per square foot.

AL ARBETSG BT B T AT
Bt R RN AR BT R KA
I R6TE T 9208 T (20220F - 131 76 £ 94
) e

The higher the monthly rent, the higher
the fair value, and vice versa.

AR AR BERE: B2

The higher the capitalisation rate, the
lower the fair value, and vice versa.

AR WARRERE 72
o

Capitalisation rate, taking into account the
capitalisation of rental income potential,
nature of properties, prevailing market
condition, which was ranged from 3% to 4%
(2022: 3% to 4%) per annum.

Bl gt REERSRAZ BRI
B BUATTHSAR SU PR30 4% (20226 :
3%%4%) -

Monthly rent, based on saleable floor area using
direct market comparable and taking into
account of time, location, quality, view, floor
level and size of properties, which ranged from
HK$50 to HKS79 per square foot. The higher the capitalisation rate, the

R RIET G E T LB A EMEERE- I lower the fair value, and vice versa.
Bt REZ M R ER U MERA EALRER WA REERE R2R
M B TR0 2799 I - e

The higher the monthly rent, the higher
the fair value, and vice versa.

ARG AR BIE 2

Capitalisation rate, taking into account the
capitalisation of rental income potential,
nature of properties, prevailing market
condition, which was ranged from 2.75% to of the investment properties, and
3.25% per annum. vice versa.)

AR Sit REEAGRAZEAL WEZE (20220 iERERER DA B A
B BUTHSGIR - R P 75% 53.05% o EMARBERERD K2 e)

(2022: A significant decrease in the
market unit rate would result in a
significant decrease in the fair value

(2022: Market unit rate, mainly taking into
account the location, quality, view, floor level
and size, between the comparables, which
ranged from HK$18,000 to HK$26,000 per
square foot).

(20224 < T35 B8 EEA&F R LRI EMRZ
B R B BRI EAFEFIR
18000170 526,000 ¢ ) -

T T {1 A J3E 7AYo N, sl 5 35
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £202343/ 31 H 1k &

15. Property, Plant and Equipment

15.

" NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Yok - WA B wk

Cost WA
At1 April 2021 2021444 1H 1,313,516 90,767 447,434 267,755 308,675 10,893 5,035 2,444125
Additions Wik - - 2,095 3,907 17,907 - . 23,909
Acquisition of subsidiaries e 2 7

(note 25) (H25) 1,500,000 - 8,324 15,397 51 81 1,63 1,525,489
Disposals/write-off s - (313) (1,157) (203) (1,673)
At 31 March 2022 2022434310 2,813,516 457,903 286,746 325,476 3,991,850
Additions R - 15,783 8,097 1,770 26,113
Disposals/urite-off i /8 = (458) (1,446) (96) (8,440)
At 31 March 2023 #202343H31H 2,813,516 90,767 473,228 293,397 327,150 4,009,523
Depreciation and it Rl

impairment
At1 April 2021 0214 405,595 28,366 376,504 01214 259,365 8,381 4355 1,303,780
Provided for the year AR 69,439 2,269 25,887 21,538 15,357 1,027 1,160 136,677
Eliminated on disposals/ i /i B

write-off - - - (302) (1,08) (203) - (1,599)
Impairment loss recognised EHEAHEER 25,607 23,275 135,184
At 31 March 2022 2022434 31H 550,527 30,635 412,885 268,057 296,909 9,450 1,574,048
Provided for the year ERERR 73,094 2,269 19,649 11,260 6,269 211 13572
Eliminated on disposals/ 8 /RS

write-off . (458) (1,441) %) (5,989) (7,984)
Impairment losses reversed ERFEBAER - (2,790) (15,871) (13,120) - (31,781)
At 31 March 2023 #202343431H 623,621 429,286 262,005 289,962 3,672 1,647,855
Carrying amounts T
At 31 March 2023 #202343A31H 2,189,895 43,942 31,392 37,188 939 2,361,668
At 31 March 2022 #20224£3A31H 2,262,989 60,132 45,018 18,689 28,567 1,321 1,086 2,417 802

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates
per annum:

Over the estimated useful lives
of 40 years or the unexpired
terms of the relevant leases,
whichever is shorter

Hotel properties and
buildings

Leasehold improvements 10 - 20%

Furniture, fixtures and 10 - 20%
equipment

Machinery 10 - 20%

Motor vehicles 20%

Others 20%

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 3 S {8447 5 AR /A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SE e s EE

For the year ended 31 March 2023  # E2023%3/1 31 H I &

15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15. W3 ~ W45 Sk i ()

(continued)

The hotel properties and buildings are located in Macau
and Hong Kong. As the lease payments for land and
building elements, other than those included in note 16,
cannot be allocated reliably, the leases in Macau and Hong
Kong are included in the carrying amounts of the buildings
and the hotel property of The Emperor Hotel.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, in view of operating
losses incurred by Grand Emperor Hotel arising from the
adverse change in market conditions as a result of the
ongoing Covid-19 pandemic and foreseeable cessation of
the gaming operation in Grand Emperor Hotel which would
have adverse impact on the hotel and related operations
in Grand Emperor Hotel, the directors of the Company
concluded that there was indication for impairment and
performed impairment assessment on the recoverable
amounts of the assets allocated the cash-generating unit of
Grand Emperor Hotel.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, due to the foreseeable
cessation of gaming operation in Grand Emperor Hotel and
the cash inflow from the gaming and related operations in
Grand Emperor Hotel was expected to be insignificant as
the gaming operation of the Group would be ceased after
the expiry date of the service agreements with SJM on 26
June 2022, the directors of the Company had reallocated
the assets for the gaming and related operations to another
cash-generating unit for impairment assessment separately.
During the year ended 31 March 2022, full impairment loss of
HK$48,974,000 had been recognised on property, plant and
equipment in respect of gaming and related operations in
Grand Emperor Hotel.

?@E%%&%?ﬁﬁﬁi‘?ﬁ%ﬁﬂ&%‘%om
T il R A R o 2 AL B K OE (K RELe
Piv 95 5% 5 bR AM) A fE T ;Eiﬂzﬁﬁﬂ B
WP Je Al 2 AR AME T R R B
5 2 399 15 49 26 2 MR T L -

22022483 F 31 H 114 ¥ 1 » S
S 2 T 0 B2 8 R
BIRKBERNRT L AR U

S I T T LI 2 DR T
CIUHE B9 L 18 A
BRI A R A
TR B 230 36 5 1 35 9 52 6 4 1 5
£ DX AOPR . PATINES T
{ELP A -

R FE20224E3 A31H IFFEE A > B v
I LA ] T LA R 2 R SRS
LIRS T R SR B T 2 Bl A
TE A G O 2 3 (R 2 A 4 [ % 2B 05
T B YR R 2 5% 45 IR 1 R 20224F6
H26H Eim B &L » AN A E RO
MERMBER 2 EEETTEE R
— B 4 A B DA B A AT U (B SR A
R FE20224E3H31H IF4EFE R Bl
A B B RS R 2 TR T A B
W AR TR RE 2 W E S 1R
48,974,000% JC °
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £2023%3/1 31 H I &

15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15. W3k ~ W45 S vk i ()

(continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the recoverable
amount of the Grand Emperor Hotel Properties as a single
cash-generating unit was estimated based on fair value less
cost of disposal using income approach with significant
unobservable inputs and key assumptions adopted by the
management of the Group including forecasted revenue
and costs, and discount rate applied in the valuation
conducted by an independent firm of qualified professional
valuers engaged by the Company and approved by the
directors of the Company. The discount rate applied was
8%, which was based on the market yield and growth rate
of the relevant market. The fair value measurement was
categorised into Level 3 fair value hierarchy. Based on the
result of the assessment, the directors of the Company
determined that the recoverable amount of the Grand
Emperor Hotel Properties was lower than its carrying
amount. The impairment amount had been allocated to
each category of the Grand Emperor Hotel Properties
such that the carrying amount of each category of assets
was not reduced below the highest of its fair value less
cost of disposal, its value in use and zero. Based on the
impairment assessment calculation and the allocation,
impairment losses of HK$86,210,000 and HK$23,335,000
had been recognised on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets in respect of hotel and related operations
in Grand Emperor Hotel, respectively. As at 31 March 2022,
the Grand Emperor Hotel Properties comprised property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets in respect
of hotel and related operations with carrying amounts of
HK$534,211,000 and HK$125,789,000, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SE e s EE

For the year ended 31 March 2023  # E2023%3/1 31 H I &

15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15. W3 ~ W45 Sk i ()

(continued)

On 30 December 2022, Tin Hou entered into a new service
agreement with SJM for the provision of the gaming-
related marketing and public services to SJM in Grand
Emperor Hotel for a term of 3 years commencing 1
January 2023. Pursuant to the new service agreement, the
directors of the Company concluded there was indication
for a reversal of impairment and conducted impairment
assessment on property, plant and equipment in respect
of gaming and related operations in Grand Emperor Hotel
which was fully impaired during the year ended 31 March
2022. The recoverable amounts of property, plant and
equipment in respect of gaming and related operations
in Grand Emperor Hotel is estimated based on value in
use method with significant unobservable inputs and key
assumptions adopted by the management of the Group
including forecasted revenue and costs, and discount rate.
Based on the result of the assessment, the directors of the
Company determined that the recoverable amount of the
property, plant and equipment in respect of gaming and
related operations in Grand Emperor Hotel is higher than
its carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for these assets in
prior year. During the year ended 31 March 2023, a reversal
of impairment loss of HK$31,781,000 has been recognised
on property, plant and equipment in respect of gaming and
related operations in Grand Emperor Hotel.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, in view of operating
losses incurred by hotel and related operations in Grand
Emperor Hotel, the directors of the Company performed
impairment assessment of the Grand Emperor Hotel
Properties by comparing its recoverable amount to its
carrying amount in aggregate of HK$621,242,000 as at 31
March 2023. No impairment loss was recognised during
the year ended 31 March 2023 as the recoverable amount
of the Grand Emperor Hotel Properties is higher than its
carrying amount. As at 31 March 2023, the Grand Emperor
Hotel Properties comprise property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets in respect of hotel and related
operations with carrying amounts of HK$502,474,000 and
HK$118,768,000, respectively.

2022412 H30 H » K 5% B {2 5T 57—
9 387 MR 65 T ok > 1) VR 008 A T 2 4R 49
P SRR AR B 2 I 35 4 R B 2 B MR S
H20234F1H1H & > £ 134 48 55 IR
ek ANFEHRB LA DS ERA
AT (R0 [ > S S O R AR MR E 1R
EEE S A E R E Y &R
{H 5TAL > HOR 202243 A 31 H I 4E )
AL 58 A U (- B 2 I Al T > R
T AR B 26T A R 2 ) 2~ 108 B 1Y
ALY [ 4 R YRR ol PR (B A T A 5
R A 2 A HE R BT ) R A AT R
T A SO % B SR A 5% 0 9 TE M i A B
Zfiu&fﬁfﬁﬁ A BEAS & H > AR A A
O R E > IR AR E R O B 2
z%z%%% W78 e sl 2 T i e 4 RE
A LA 388 A A R NI e R D S AR O 1
UL 8 8 0 % 45 A I R T (R A
20234E3 31 H IL4FBE A » 5 2 IR 44
TR KA B ZET 2 W2 s sl B
it w2 3ol (L J5 48938 17 31,781, 0003 T ©

}J‘Aéiaﬁzozsﬁﬁglaﬁ:ir“ﬁq LS
BRI 5 2 15 SR B SRS A R
%Eﬁ%ﬁ>$®ﬂ%$%§é@tbﬁﬁ%ﬁi%
T8 T 4 2 2 T i ] 4 A B EC R 1 (R
2023@3)51 31H &4k /621,242,000
) o 3 HAE AT Uk (E BEA o W&@zozﬁ
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Fy o B W 4 TR ) S 2 T i e 4 R R
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £2023%3/1 31 H I &

15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15. W3k ~ W45 S vk i ()

(continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, in
view of operating losses incurred by Inn Hotel, the directors
of the Company performed impairment assessment of
the property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
of Inn Hotel by comparing its recoverable amounts to its
carrying amounts in aggregate of HK$481,855,000 as at 31
March 2023 (2022: HK$505,468,000). No impairment loss
was recognised during the year ended 31 March 2023 and
31 March 2022 as the recoverable amounts of the property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets of Inn Hotel
are higher than its carrying amounts.

During the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,
in view of operating losses incurred by The Emperor Hotel,
the directors of the Company performed impairment
assessment of the property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets of The Emperor Hotel by comparing
its recoverable amounts to its carrying amounts in
aggregate of HK$1,440,088,000 as at 31 March 2023 (2022:
HK$1,480,455,000). No impairment loss was recognised
during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022
as the recoverable amounts of the property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets of The Emperor Hotel are
higher than its carrying amounts.
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NOTES TO THE. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £202343/ 31 H Ik &

16. ff FH HE &

16. Right-of-use Assets

Cost BAR
At 1 April 2021 202144 H 1H 493,515 5,364 498,879
Additions R 5,861 5,861
At 31 March 2022 202243 A31H 493,515 11,225 504,740
Additions W 857 857
Disposal of a subsidiary th A — T B e A ) (6,281) (6,281)
Lease expiry THE 2 (2,600) (2,600)
Lease modification HEBE S (2,344) (2,344)
At 31 March 2023 A20234F3H31H 493,515 857 494,372
Depreciation and impairment 7 # & Wi
At 1 April 2021 A20214F4H1H 35,102 4,506 39,608
Provided for the year AF B A B A 17,551 2,188 19,739
Impairment loss recognised . it 58 i (L s 12
At 31 March 2022 202243 A31H 8,682 84,323
Provided for the year AR A B 413 17,008
Eliminated upon disposal of B — i A S 2 ) R

a subsidiary ER| - (6,281) (6,281)
Eliminated upon lease expiry B 2 B R 3 8 - (2,600) (2,600)
At 31 March 2023 #20234E3H31H 92,236 214 92,450
Carrying amounts JR THI
At 31 March 2023 JA20234F3H31H 401,279 643 401,922
At 31 March 2022 #20224E3H 31 H 417,874 2,543 420,417

Expense relating to short-term lease

Je 9 FH B BH S

Total cash outflow for leases

T 2 34 i Hh A0

ALEHEBEELSTHE - HAE A
ARG EREEZ H -HESLI
BT 57 2 [ 58 4F ) £ 24F B 254F (20224F -
TAEE254F) o AR M 22 A THE T
L% 58 1 75 900 25 15 WI254F > 3lf7 n] |l AR 4
EEERCSIRES: £ 40

The Group leases certain leasehold lands, office, warehouse
and carpark for its operations. Lease contracts are entered
into for fixed term from 2 to 25 years (2022: 1 to 25 years).
Certain leases of leasehold lands in Macau are negotiated
for an initial term of 25 years with extension options
exercisable by the Group.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £2023%3/1 31 H I &

16. Right-of-use Assets (continued) 16. 156 F B & 7 (A7)

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length of the
non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of
a contract and determines the period for which the contract
is enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns certain hotel and commercial
properties classified as property, plant and equipment
and investment properties respectively. The Group is the
registered owner of these property interests, including the
underlying leasehold lands. Lump sum payments were
made upfront to acquire these property interests. The
leasehold land components of these owned properties are
not presented separately as the payments made cannot be
allocated reliably.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, impairment losses
of HK$22,988,000 and HK$347,000 had been recognised
on leasehold land and warehouse and carpark in respect
of hotel and related operations of Grand Emperor Hotel,
respectively. As at 31 March 2022, the carrying amount
of right-of-use assets amounting to HK$125,789,000 was
included in the Grand Emperor Hotel Properties.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, full impairment loss
of HK$1,641,000 had been recognised on an office included
in right-of-use assets as the directors of the Company
considered the future cash inflow from this right-of-use
asset would be insignificant.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group assessed the leasehold lands
included in right-of-use assets of Grand Emperor Hotel
together with its respective hotel properties for impairment
by considering their recoverable amounts, in view of
operating losses incurred by hotel and related operations
in Grand Emperor Hotel. The details of the determination
of the recoverable amount are disclosed in note 15. No
impairment loss was recognised on the leasehold lands of
Grand Emperor Hotel for the year ended 31 March 2023. As
at 31 March 2023, the carrying amount of right-of-use assets
amounting to HK$118,768,000 is included in the Grand
Emperor Hotel Properties.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £202343/ 31 H Ik &

16. Right-of-use Assets (continued) 16. 55 I BE & 25 (42 )

As at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, the Group assessed 202343 H31H &20224E3H31H - B
the leasehold lands included in right-of-use assets of P T G T e S 5 B B i E AR AL
Inn Hotel and The Emperor Hotel together with their 18 (20224F - B2 1 0 ek i 2 2 1 18 AR
respective hotel properties for impairment by considering o B AR LA A B ) > A AR B AR5 R
their recoverable amounts, in view of operating losses AR [ < A A Z S I N T R
incurred by these hotels (2022: Having regard to the adverse 7 2 FH B e [R) 4% 18 AH BR 2 T i ) 2
change in the market conditions as a result of the on- Z AL o i E AT IR 4 R R B AR
going Covid-19 pandemic). The details of the determination 15H 55 - A 8 220234E3 H 31 H J20224F
of the recoverable amounts are disclosed in note 15. No 3HBLH Ik 4F B T M AR 50 g I B o
impairment loss was recognised on the leasehold lands of R B 2 AR o A R (B 4R o

Inn Hotel and The Emperor Hotel for the year ended 31
March 2023 and 31 March 2022.

17. Goodwill 17. B2
During the year ended 31 March 2022, the directors of the A E20224E3 H 31 H IL4FBE A > A 7]
Company were in view of the foreseeable cessation of the R 7 T R S T I 7S B
gaming operation of the Group after the expiry date of the W15, 2 5% 55 OB Tih o 12 20224E6 H 26 H
service agreements with SJM on 26 June 2022. Hence, full JE A L Tl A B 2 s g
impairment loss of HK$110,960,000 had been recognised T 2 1R B h R S5 2 TR e sR 2 A
on goodwill in respect of gaming and related operations of (B 5 1E110,960,0009 7T ©
Grand Emperor Hotel.

18. Trade and Other Receivables 18. ¥ By B Ffib JE Wi sk

Trade receivables E 5y REW R 54,430
Less: Impairment allowance OB : WA T (21,469)
32,961
Chips on hand ZHE B
Other receivables and prepayments L Al R MACRR B LA 3K 19,184
52,145 132,085
As at 31 March 2023, trade receivables comprise receivables r20234E3H31H - B 5 ME R 1 4%
from contracts with customers and lease receivables of A FF A H 2 R & R
HK$32,240,000 (2022: HK$19,401,000) and HK$721,000 (2022: 04 Al 132,240,000 I8 (20224 -
HK$4,755,000) respectively. 19,401,000% 75 ) &% 721,000%% 7T (2022
A : 4,755,000 7T ) ©
As at 1 April 2021, trade receivables from contracts with R20214F4H1H - REFEF GHZE 5
customers and lease receivables amounted to HK$37,337,000 B Wi 3 B AH B IR Rk 43 Al £437,337,000
and HK$3,625,000 respectively. T 123,625,000% 7C
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £2023%3/1 31 H I &

18. ¥ 5 B FAth BE W (A7)

DATR A5 B B R $E 4% {5 & H

18. Trade and Other Receivables

(continued)
An aging analysis of the Group’s trade receivables (net of

impairment allowance) based on the date of credit granted
or the invoice date at the end of the reporting period is set
out below:

0 - 30 days 0%30H
31 - 60 days 31%60H
61 - 90 days 61%90H
91 - 180 days 91%180H

Over 180 days 180H DA E

W B H O 2 8 2 B 5 O (R
BUEH R ) 2 MR b7 -

6,061

The Group normally allows credit periods of up to 60
days to its trade customers, except for certain credit
worthy customers with long term relationship and stable
repayment patterns, where the credit periods are extended
to a longer period.

As at 31 March 2023, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$13,521,000 (2022: HK$17,396,000) which
were past due at the end of the reporting period. Out of the
past due balances, HK$13,272,000 (2022: HK$16,261,000) has
been past due 90 days or more and is not considered as in
default as the directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the balances are still considered recoverable due to
long-term/ongoing relationship or agreed settlement plan
with the customers.

Chips on hand represented chips issued by a gaming
concessionaire in Macau which can be exchanged into their
cash amounts.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables are set out in note 34(b).
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £202343/ 31 H Ik &

19. Pledged Bank Deposits/Short-Term 19. BRI ERAT 77 A% 96 0 8

Bank Deposits/Bank Balances and
Cash

As at 31 March 2023, pledged bank deposits comprise (i) a
deposit of HK$65,887,000 (2022: HK$64,134,000) (classified
as current asset (2022: non-current asset)) and (ii) a deposit
of HK$300,000 (2022: HK$354,000) (classified as current
asset), details of which are set out in notes 32(b) and (c)
respectively. The pledged bank deposits carry fixed interest
rates which ranged from 2.80% to 3.80% (2022: 0.63% to
1.20%) per annum.

As at 31 March 2023, short-term bank deposits with an
original maturity over 3 months carry interest at fixed
interest rates which ranged from 1.20% to 4.30% (2022:
0.80% to 1.00%) per annum.

Bank balances and cash comprise of cash held by the
Group, and bank deposits with an original maturity of 3
months or less carry interests at prevailing market rate at
0.01% (2022: 0.01%) per annum or at fixed interest rates
which ranged from 2.00% to 3.55% (2022: 0.30% to 1.00%)
per annum.

Included in bank balances and cash are the following
amounts denominated in currencies other than functional
currency of the relevant group entities:

Macau Pataca (“MOP”)

WEoT (M)

fifeak BATHi bR R Bl &

20234E3 431 H > C S SR AT AE R
15 (1) 47 365,887,000 JT (20224 :
64,134,000¥ 0) (4 B & B & &=
(20224« FE i Bh & &) ) K (i) fF &K
300,000 7T (20224F : 354,000 )
(OB B & ) > HRE G 20 Bl o Bt
#:32(b) & (c) » B HEHFERAT 77 3K 44 [ 5 4F
F A 72,808 3,805 (20224F : 0.63
JEZE1.20H) 5HE -

1202353 A1 » IS H 7330 1 LA
b2 R T4 B 2 SR A P 1.20
JE %24.30J8 (20224F : 0.80JE £1.00)%)
W

ATH B A B S I ALEEMIFE 2 B4
KR EN M H A3M8 A s~ HAT S
AEFR0.01JE (20224 1 0.01J8 ) B % [
FE A A F2.00E 23,55/ (20224F :

0.30/E £ 1.00/% ) 58 Z SRITAF K -

SRAT 45 % M Bl 66 T 51 $2 A B 4 T
HE 2 I RE B LASMI B M ALY e

United States Dollar (“USD”) ¥t ([%£E])
Renminbi (“RMB”) ANRH(TARE])
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £202343/ 31 H 1k &

20. Trade and Other Payables 20. & 5 B F At JBE A5F sk

Trade payables B 5 BEA K

Chips in custody and deposits from WRR T A BATF K
gaming patrons

Construction payables and accruals JREAS TR P K e st 22 T

Other payables and accruals At 8 A 3 % R T T
Accrued staff costs s B T RA
Short-term advance R G
117,146
An aging analysis of the Group’s trade payables based on AR A AL 2RSS E S
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period is set out §| 2 G 5y MEAS 3k 2 Bk 43 4T
below:

0 - 30 days 0230H 3,648

31 - 60 days 31%260H

61 -90 days 61%290H

91 - 180 days 91%£180H

Over 180 days 180H LA |
Other payables and accruals mainly include accrued A B A 3 B ) A T
commission expenses in gaming operation, other accrued BT 2 M E A - H A RS
expenses and other deposits. % 48 o

21. Amounts due to Fellow Subsidiaries 21. X [A] % B} J& 2 W) 5k IH

The amounts are due to subsidiaries of Emperor B ST A R e B PR T B R A R 2
International, which are unsecured, interest-free, repayable A > T SEACA ~ G 5 T R SR R
on demand, trade in nature and are aged within 1 year BE R HAR R REE
(2022: 0 - 30 days) based on invoice date at the end of HRHS 2 14F (20224F : 0%30H ) »

reporting period.

138 " Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited %5 #8448/ R /A F
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SR OISR IR

For the year ended 31 March 2023  # E2023%3/1 31 H I &

22. Amounts due to Non-controlling

23

24.

Interests of Subsidiaries

As at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, the amounts
represent unsecured and interest-free shareholders’
loans due to non-controlling interests of Luck United
Holdings Limited (“Luck United”) and Able Elegant
Development Limited (“Able Elegant”). In accordance with
the contractual terms of the shareholders’ agreements,
the amounts are to be repaid from surplus fund,
which represents cash available in Luck United and its
subsidiaries, and Able Elegant, after paying all operating
expenses and payables, including but not limited to bank
loans and third party loans which are due for repayment
together with the accrued interest.

As at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, the respective
management of Luck United and Able Elegant determined
that Luck United and Able Elegant have adequate
available surplus fund for the repayment of all principal
amounts outstanding to its non-controlling shareholders.
Accordingly, the amounts are shown as current liabilities as
at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.

Acquisition of Investment Properties
On 27 September 2022, Poly Keen International Limited
(“Poly Keen”), an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, completed the acquisition of the entire
property of the tower situated at No.22 Davis Street,
Kennedy Town, Hong Kong (the “Property”) through
the acquisition of the entire interest of Ever Explore
Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries from a direct wholly-
owned subsidiary of Emperor International at a total cash
consideration of HK$490,000,000.

Disposal of a Subsidiary

On 13 April 2022, an independent third party agreed
to purchase the entire issued capital of Affluent Travel
Services Limited (“Affluent Travel”), an indirect non
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, at a cash
consideration of HK$1. The equity interest transfer was
completed on 13 April 2022. Upon completion of the equity
interest transfer, Affluent Travel ceased to be a subsidiary
of the Company accordingly.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited ¥ £ 4244H% A R/AF

22. K P I8 2 W) 2 5 i B A

23

24.

X JH

A20234E3H31H M20224E3A31H »
% % 48 K Luck United Holdings
Limited ([Luck United |) & 3£ 5 %% &
BIRAF (THERE ) 2 IF 7 RE 45 1Y
A B e B e TR K o AR I TR ok 2
BRI 25 A DA BB o
B E 4 T4 Luck United 5 H Bt & 2
DA K HE B i AT i AR B S % A+
K CELFERAS BRI 21 1A 15 4 2 4R AT B
B 55 = J7 BB A E ST AR 1% 2 W] )
B4 -

JA20234F3H31H 202243 H31H >
Luck United X # B & A 2 & H R
Luck United % #ERE ¥ & 40 ] 8 F 21
BRI R IR R 2 A AR 4
I 3% A E R 202343 H 31 H K 20224
3H31H 7R By i B A f -

W 42 S P

202249 527 H » A 4 F R 9F &
% [ff i /> 7l Poly Keen International
Limited ([Poly Keen J) i i ] 5 &
Mt 2 HfE 2 E W E A R i Ever
Explore Holdings Limited & H i} & 2>
A 4 R JBOHE - 5 AT A A A R R
W3R 2 A% LA 22 5 K ) 22 TR 2 (3%
W) 4 % UE £490,000,0009
j‘l:o

B — 1 B 8 2 W)

R20224E4 H13H - %255 = 5 [a] 2= LU
135 o6 2 B4 A0 i i A s 7] 22 [ 3 Ok
N T E R RA T (8 &
HE ) 2 2B BT REAS o BRI R E
R20224E4 7 13 H 58 i o 7 R A e 538 58 1
1% & f KA T B AN ) 2 W AN T
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £2023%3/1 31 H I &

24, Disposal of a Subsidiary (continued) 24, & — MM B AW ()
Assets and liabilities of Affluent Travel derecognised at the i H AR g R K
date of disposal are as follows: AfEmE

Deposit and prepayments K S TS K 844
Bank balances BATHE R 100
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary R — [ ] R g 2 7 30 (567)
Lease liability HEAME (1,811)
(1,434)
Consideration received E WA =
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 8 — [ B B 2 R 2 g (1,434)
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HH S A A B AR O
Bank balances and cash disposed of CHERITH R A& 100
25. Acquisition of Subsidiaries 25. WL Bk it g 2~ )
On 28 May 2021, Emperor Hotel Investment Limited A20214E5 028 H » A A Al Z M 2 &
(“Emperor Hotel Investment”), an indirect non wholly- Bt g 2> W) o P SE G AR A A ([3%
owned subsidiary of the Company, completed the B E BE 1) 52 MU Poly Keenf 4
acquisition of the entire equity interest of Poly Keen, HR B HE K Poly KeenZX A 35 R H ff 2 &
and the loan due by Poly Keen to Emperor Hotel Group e 2 BB > W) 5 52T 4R A R A
Limited (“Emperor Hotel Group”), a direct wholly- (9% 5L % SR M ) 2 805 A8 AU
owned subsidiary of Emperor International, at a total cash %42,048,832,000% 7T A 1t » & 5LV 5
consideration of HK$2,048,832,000. Accordingly Emperor & A HEE 15 Poly Keen X At 2 83K -
Hotel Investment had the right to the loan due by Poly
Keen.
Poly Keen and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as Poly Keenl H & 2 =] (%i# [ Poly
“Poly Keen Group”) are principally engaged in hospitality Keen#E H |) 3= % i 7 W 4E F4309 15 3675
business and property investment in Hong Kong. The oy S o W o T T i W U A
acquisition had been accounted for as acquisition of AR > HR #2£20224£3 4 31H
business using the acquisition method and no goodwill was b4 JEE A ST 0 8] 5 o T Tl 0 R o

recognised for the year ended 31 March 2022 as a result of
the acquisition.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to HK$1,578,000 had WA i = JEURH B 1 A< 1,578,000 s E H B
been excluded from the consideration transferred and had R AR BRI P R 2220224E3 A 31
been recognised directly as an expense in the period within H L4 B 22 55 18 A M A 4 T i i 3%
the “administrative expenses” line item in the consolidated W TAT B2 A | — TH 3 R 2 R% 30 T
statement of profit or loss or other comprehensive income BH SZ o

for the year ended 31 March 2022.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £202343/ 31 H Ik &

25. Acquisition of Subsidiaries (continued)  25. Wi M 18§ 2 w] (47

Fair values of assets and liabilities of Poly Keen Group
recognised at the date of the acquisition were as follows:

i B g JH H e R 2 Poly KeenE [
ZEERABZARBEEMNT

Investment properties (note 14)
Property, plant and equipment (note 15)
Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Bank balances and cash

Trade and other payables

Amount due to Emperor Hotel Group
Taxation payable

Amount due to non-controlling interest

BEYE (M it14) 515,000
Wy~ WeER SR (M AELS) 1,525,489
#E 763
B Gy K A WK 7,843
RATH B K B4 18,824
B Gy B A A 3K (15,902)
R G 5L 4R I ROH (2,256,246)
JRE A5 B I (8)

IR — [T Bf a8 2 W) 2 I F2E P i 4

of a subsidiary (2,090)
Deferred taxation (note 27) WRAEBLIE (M 7£27) (1,962)
(208,289)
Add: Loan assignment from Emperor T+ 50 AR 2 B
Hotel Group 2,256,246
2,047,957
Goodwill arising on the acquisition: W T A
Consideration paid in cash DLBE 4 S A 2 AU 2,048,832
Less: Deficit non-controlling interest in I - Poly Keenff &2 rl 2
Poly Keen’s subsidiary I 2 I 4 e 1R (875)
Less: Net assets acquired Tk R R (2,047,957)

Net cash outflows arising on the acquisition for the year

ended 31 March 2022:

5 I A 3R 20224E3 31 H Ik 4R
JBE VA EE A 1A B 4 U e R T

Cash consideration paid
Less: Cash and cash equivalent
balances acquired

C AT HR B AUE
B OO B e S R e S (W A R

(2,048,832)

18,824

(2,030,008)

Included in the revenue and loss for the year ended
31 March 2022 of the Group were HK$63,481,000 and
HK$46,112,000 respectively that were attributable to Poly

Keen Group.

Had the acquisition been effected at the beginning of the
year ended 31 March 2022, the total amount of revenue of
the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022 would have
been HK$426,316,000, and the amount of loss for the year
ended 31 March 2022 would have been HK$655,329,000.

A E20224F3 H31 H L 4FBE A AREE
Z WA B Jgs 1843 Bl 45 Poly KeenE [
JE {2 63,481,000%5 JC &% 46,112,000
f[} o

i Wiz B = U #E £20224F3 31 H IRAF
JEWIHEST » A< SR A B 22 20224F3 H 31 H
1R 4E B 22 A SRR I € 74426,316,0009
JG > T A 8 220224E3 H 31 H 1L 4F i 2 i
84 %8 11 £655,329,000%5 7C

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 55 E#S6pEARAT 141 B
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £2023%3/1 31 H I &

26. Lease Liabilities

Lease liabilities payable: JREAS 85 £
Within one year 14 A

Within a period of more than one year — 14F L b A{H AN 8245

but not more than two years

Within a period of more than two years 24F L F{H A 8 545

but not more than five years
Within a period of more than five years 54D I

" NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26, H & £ &

Less: Amount due for settlement within ¥ : 51 A i B & f5 37 28 7 1248 H
NTERAEH 2 &%

12 months shown under
current liabilities

Amount due for settlement after
12 months shown under non-current
liabilities

R LH 2 &5

FIA I i By B I R 1241 A 4%

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied
to lease liabilities is 3.50% (2022: 3.50%) per annum.

Restrictions or covenants on leases

Lease liabilities of HK$27,246,000 (2022: HK$31,279,000) are
recognised with related right-of-use assets of HK$21,235,000
(2022: HK$25,878,000) as at 31 March 2023. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are held by the
lessor. Except for the leasehold lands and related assets
recognised in Macau, as set out in note 32(a), other related
leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

As at 31 March 2023, the amounts are secured by rental
deposits with carrying values of HK$76,000 (2022:
HK$461,000).

- 142 " Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 5 2444 A BR/A
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JG) B AH BE 06 RE & #£21,235,000% 0
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  #£202343/131 H I F &

27. 3% 5 Bi A

27. Deferred taxation

The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets
recognised and movements thereon during the current and
prior year:

PATR Jo A4 P RO 1 4F P2 e 8 2 3R
EHIA (AR HE LA

At1 April 2021 202144 1H
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 25) Wkt & A & (225
Credit to profit or loss JREEATIUN

At 31 March 2022 A20224E3A31H
Acquisition of investment properties i &%

(Charge) credit to profit or loss ARG G FHA

At 31 March 2023 202343 31H

Note: The Macau Tax Authority granted a concessionary deduction
to Grand Emperor Entertainment & Hotel (Macau) Limited
(“Grand Emperor Entertainment”), an indirect non wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company incorporated in Macau,
to claim deduction of depreciation allowance for certain
of its property, plant and equipment for tax purpose in an
accelerated pattern over a period which is half of the expected
useful lives of the property, plant and equipment and such a
concession ended on 31 December 2013. Out of the deferred
tax liability of HK$50,813,000 (2022: HK$43,499,000), an amount
of HK$22,258,000 (2022: HK$22,142,000) has been recognised in
respect of the accelerated tax depreciation of those property,
plant and equipment related to the concession.

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset for the temporary differences
arising from the same group entity and the same tax
authority.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had unused tax losses of
HK$829,969,000 (2022: HK$724,378,000) available for offset
against future profits. Deferred tax asset is recognised
in respect of HK$444,157,000 (2022: HK$380,763,000) of
such loss. No deferred tax asset is recognised in respect
of the remaining tax losses of HK$385,812,000 (2022:
HK$343,615,000) due to unpredictability of future profit
streams. The Group’s unrecognised tax losses might be
carried forward indefinitely, except for an amount of
HK$36,364,000 (2022: HK$30,370,000) which will expire in 3
years from the year of assessment.

(76,658) 16,340 (88,233)
(1,962) 23,522 (1,962)

(60,268) (50,590)

(11) 1,855

(60,279) (48,735)

Mt L PBEGE E AR 2N R P A S
A% I 4 B R A ) U L I AR S5 (IR
) A PR 2N A (T 9 B ht 42 306 1k W P ) %
T TR W A T
e At 2 TR AT AR DU
BB N 2 42 e R 2 T
RBLE > A BB B B R 20134F12H 31 H #&
1F o A 9 FiE 7 JE £ 550,813,000 7T (2022
4F 143,499,000 70 Hh o Bl B4 A B
22 W R 2 0 B TE T B e AR
22,258,000 7C (20224F : 22,142,000
JL) o

W2 MBS IR DL R T 5 > 108 JE B IR
B K A AR — 4 U R TR — B
TR P AR 22 T IR 2 R A G B

202343 H31H » AL H A KB H
i T 5 829,969,000k 7T (20224F :
724,378,000% 7T ) AT HICEH A S ) o
Horp 3% s 18 F444,157,000% ot (2022
4F £ 380,763,000% 7T ) Tl 58 7 R 4E Bl
TH G o B R 2 U ) A R 2 A ] T
PE > i T 2 B JH 5 $H385,812,000s 7T
(20224 : 343,615,000%5 7 ) 3f7 2 e 52 1
0 S o T o A A JE 2 o T R B T s
5 AT M BR A A ME B R BLAR B R34
K 2 1 2 3K IE 36,364,000 76 (20224F
30,370,000% 7C) BR4h -
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £202343/ 31 H 1k &

28. Share Capital

28. A

Ordinary shares of HK$0.0001 each 5 B T (B0.0001 7 7 2 3 48 it
Authorised: HE
At1 April 2021, 31 March 2022 and 202144 H 1H ~ 20224331 F

31 March 2023 R202343A31H 2,000,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: CRTIEAR
At1 April 2021 202144 A 1H 1,209,575,983 121
Share repurchased and cancelled during SR A C R R

the year (Note) [t (HfaE) (12,270,000) 1)
At 31 March 2022 J#20224£3 4 31H 1,197,305,983
Share repurchased and cancelled during FEENCHR R

the year (Note) &dn (M) (8,815,000)
At 31 March 2023 1202343 /131H 1,188,490,983

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company repurchased
its own shares from the market in total of 8,815,000 (2022:
12,270,000) shares at an aggregate consideration of HK$4,411,000
(2022: HK$14,611,000) (including the relevant transaction costs
and expenses of HK$22,000 (2022: HK$50,000)). The average price
of the repurchased shares was HK$0.498 (2022: HK$1.187) per
share. These repurchased shares had been cancelled at the end of
the reporting period.

144 " Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited %5 #8448/ R /A F
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) AT 35 B [ B S B 0 48 948,815,000
JB Sy (20224 12,270,0000% B 453)
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  # E2023%3/1 31 H I &

29. Share Option Scheme 29. Vi Ji HE it

The Company adopted a share option scheme (“Share
Option Scheme”) on 15 August 2013.

The major terms of the Share Option Scheme are
summarised as follows:

(a) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme
To enable the Group to attract, retain and motivate
talented participants to strive for future developments
and expansion of the Group.

(b) Eligibility
Eligible participants include employees (whether full
time or part time employee, including non-executive
directors) and such other eligible participants.

(c) Total number of shares available for issue

under the Share Option Scheme

(i) As at 8 August 2013 (i.e. the date of passing the
resolution for adoption of the Share Option
Scheme) and 23 June 2023 (i.e. the date of this
report): 129,254,598 shares.

(ii) Percentage of the issued shares that it represents
as at 23 June 2023: 10.88%.

(d) Maximum entitlement of each eligible
participant under the Share Option

Scheme

(i) not to exceed 1% of the shares in issue in
any 12-month period unless approved by the
shareholders; and

(ii) options granted to substantial shareholders or
independent non-executive directors or their
respective associates in any one year exceeding the
higher of 0.1% of the shares in issue and with a
value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved
by the shareholders.

(e) Period within which the option may be
exercised by the grantee under the Share
Option Scheme

At any time from the date of grant of the option to such
a date determined by the board of directors but in any
event not exceeding 10 years from the date of grant.

ALy FR20134E8 H 15 H B 4y — JH i i
fEGE (W I st 20 )

i BB ME R ) 2 T A

(a) i B¢ B at 21 2 H ity
A S I RS~ 90 B B 7 A
2 5 B LR A I 2 R AHE
TR B AR -

(b) & B& #
B Vi 2 B AR B (I i 2
s e O > A R AT HE )
A R S -

(c) AR 5 I Bt BE Gt 30 W] 3 B 4T
Z Bty A H
(i) JA201348 A8 H (P4 44 FF 4
W RERT B 2 PR R A ) I
202346 H 23 H (I 4 45 4 H
) 1 129,254,598 1% -

(i) 202346 H23H 1L C #1471k
2 A 53 H 2 10.88% o

(d) B REsH BA T4 G &
1% 2 B35 ] 2 7 B 4 R

(1) B IE 5 A TR o - A R T AT ]
1248 7 B[R A A 15 88 4 2 38 47
HX'GJ\ZI% a&

(1) FAAEAT — 4R 2 7 ) 3 22 A R Bk
WAL ERMATEFIHESAZ
B N2 2 R R
VAT B0 20,19 S A {E 8 4
5,000,000 7T 28 £ i Atk o -

(e) W BB B wH 31 JH T 452 a N\ W]
A7 i B Jz HE 2 01 KR

PRI R A S E R e
Z A B H R 2 AT AT I R e T
CRRV NI Ny 2 h Rl = - i o
104F -
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £2023%3/1 31 H I &

29. Share Option Scheme (continued) 29. i b BE w1 81 (42
(f) Vesting period of options granted under () Ji loc Bl st 80 T R 2
the Share Option Scheme Vi st 1 . B OB
No vesting period unless otherwise determined by the B JE A LS ) 4 g AT E - A
board of directors of the Company. Slf7 41 Bt g 9
(g) (i) Price payable on application or acceptance of the (&) () s o e O R I 80 A8
option: HK$1.00; A - 1.00% 7T
(ii) The period within which payments or calls must (i) A ZH AT RE A SR B0 A 2
or may be made: Within 28 days from the date of WRR - £ BB FF28 H A
grant; and K
(iii) Period within which loans for such purposes of the (111) A A5 2 B8 A A 3RO 3 1) 4 3K
payments or calls must be repaid: Not applicable. EOR AR - AN -
(h) Basis for determining the exercise price (h) 7 5 47 6 {8 2 Ak 4
The exercise price is determined by the Board and will 7 A8 Y oh 2 5 g 2 > ME SRR
not be less than the highest of (a) the closing price TS A ()R H R A
of the shares on the date of grant; (b) the average Z i s (b)h B4z 0 B AET
closing price of the shares for the five business days 8 % 2 BBy 2 -l 8 5 R (c)
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the B A3 T R
nominal value of a share.
(i) The remaining life of the Share Option (i) Vil e B st 1) 2 6% B PR
Scheme
The Share Option Scheme will expire on 14 August Ji 11wt B OIE iR20234E8 7 14 H F
2023. o
No option has been granted since the adoption date of the ] FBCRE ST B R AN F S RS > A
Share Option Scheme. HEFZ M o
30. Legal Reserve 30. ¥ %€ fiki i
As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations in the PR AT I 2 R RV B R AT 1T >
Macau Special Administrative Region, certain subsidiaries AR ) 22 T B DA A ) I A Vi A
of the Company are required to set aside 25% of their profit 25%% A58 il - B B E M E R
for the year to a legal reserve until the legal reserve has HCEE M A 250% 4 1F o A 5% 55 W
reached 50% of their registered capital. No appropriation ARIZEEMBECEZHS BEMER
was made in both years as the legal reserve of those 2509 » HOR 7 I8 4 J5E T ML AR 11 48 Ko

subsidiaries have already reached 50% of their respective
registered capital.

31. Non-controlling Interests 31. Ik 5 I 4
Included in non-controlling interests as at 31 March 2023 202343 H 31 H » JR 45 JBOHE 45 6 38 # A
was a deemed contribution by non-controlling interests K IF ¥ IR HE £ 4 & FXIE 56,005,000 T
of HK$56,005,000 (2022: HK$56,005,000) on certain (20224F 1 56,005,00045 7C) ° A B & TS
interest-free loans from the non-controlling interests of a bl il 7 /A \T#ﬁﬂy\%ﬁﬁ?ﬁ,ﬁ\ﬂy’i% tt
subsidiary which were contributed in proportion to their 1 e $i2 it 2 5 T S B K o
shareholdings.
146 Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited ¥ 2447 % AR
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £202343/ 31 H Ik &

32. Pledge of Assets

(a) As at 31 March 2023, certain assets of the Group were
pledged to banks to secure for banking facilities
granted by the banks to the Group. The carrying values
of these assets at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

Hotel properties SR 7ES
Investment properties BEWE
Right-of-use assets i IR
Others (note) HoAth (Kt at)

Note: Others represent floating charges over certain other assets
of the Group including principally property, plant and
equipment (other than hotel properties), inventories, trade
and other receivables and bank balances.

(b) As at 31 March 2023, the Group pledged a bank deposit
of HK$65,887,000 (2022: HK$64,134,000) to a bank for
obtaining a bank facility granted to a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. The bank facility entails
a bank guarantee amounting to MOP 64,523,000
(equivalent to HK$62,644,000 for the period up to 26
June 2023, which is made in favour of SJM to secure
the Group’s fulfilment of all its obligations of provision
of services in the casino by the Group to SJM, as
stipulated under a service agreement entered into
between the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
and SJM on 19 February 2010 (as supplemented by an
addendum dated 4 May 2020)).

() As at 31 March 2023, the Group also pledged a bank
deposit of HK$300,000 (2022: HK$354,000) to a bank to
secure for the use of ferry ticket equipment provided
by a third party to the Group.

32. & E H 4

(a) R20234E3HA31H > AREEE T EE
T T 8RAT » 1E B SRATHR T A4
B SRAT R R o A B ERK
HEGENIREEL R

235,065 797,154
114,200 481,500
239,799 417,874

24,095 28,558
613,159 1,725,086

it - A A SR WA T A B (£
FREE V)3 LN 6 - B e It
i~ A7 18 B 5 B HAm R AR I AR AT
HEER) 2R BHEA o

(b) R20234E3H31H » A 4 M i€
65,887,000 J& (20224F :
64,134,000 JC) $RAT 47 3K T —
IR AT > IR A A E — M2’
B JES 2N ) M 95 SR AT R & o 5% ERAT
Pl — T DA R 2 5 A
4% F564,523,0008 [ 5 (F1 & i
62,644,000%5 70 ) Z SRATHE R > WIBR
B E20234E6 H26H > LUITEfRAS 4 [
JEAT AR W) A i A ) B B
201042 H 19 H T 57 2 BB T e (4%
H 1] 55202045 H 4 H 22 4 7 )k A
FE) TR A A 4R [ ) YR 1% AL B
MR 2 fr A BT

(c) JA20234E3A31H - A 4 [#] I 4K 47
300,000#5 7T (20224 : 354,000#%
JC) SRATAF AR T — P ARAT A S —
2 =5 PR AR AR B T AR
2 AR o
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £2023%3/1 31 H I &

33. Capital Risk Management 33. ¥ A Jal b 4 PR

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes the amounts due to non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries and lease liabilities as disclosed
in notes 22 and 26 respectively, net of cash and cash
equivalents, and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, retained profits
and other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associates with
each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and
share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

34. Financial Instruments

(a) Categories of financial instruments

<& il

Financial assets

A 1 A L (A 4 2
L B A A 0 AR B LV
250 1 T U 2 45 B 0 B I
PEERER P T TR
Ao

A I 2 A SR LA AR TR R (LA
3 A B RE22 B 269 # 2 R B a2 Wl 2
I P M 4 BKOOH R AH B R D > AR HTBR
B8 R B B R A R A NS
M an (4 OB AT A - R B I P R
flo )

AN ) WA B AR M o A %
My 2 —H o) > S 52 R AR K A
U A 2 AR Bl e o AR 9 o o > AR
A5 T 31 5 8 S AN TR~ AT R e B e Ay
SIS o) Lk e % A7 S £ I [l B AT {1 Al
FURER AN

34. & T H
(a) &R TR Z B

44,877 122,317
66,187 64,488
56,789 314,339
380,330 671,097

548,183 1,172,241

Amortised cost: 1 85 A
Trade and other receivables B 5 Je oAb W
Pledged bank deposits E R ERAT A7 3K
Short-term bank deposits R SRAT AR K
Bank balances and cash SATHE B L&
Financial liabilities 4 il £ %
Amortised cost: 85 A
Trade and other payables B 5 B HAB A 3K

Amounts due to fellow
subsidiaries

Amounts due to non- UNUi): FArsipd
controlling interests of T 2 O HE 4 NOH

subsidiaries

VNGIEN () ACE- R
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  # E2023%3/1 31 H I &

M. EemIT A (4F)
(b) S %5 Jo i % B o8 B R BOSR

34. Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments are listed
in above table. Details of the financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk
(foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management of the Group
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Market risk

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movement
in foreign currency exchange rate will affect the
Group’s financial results and its cash flows. Several
subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
sales and purchases, but the management of the Group
considers the amount of foreign currency sales and
purchases is insignificant. The management of the
Group considers the Group is not exposed to significant
foreign currency risk in relation to transactions
denominated in MOP and USD. Exposures on balances
which are denominated in MOP and USD in group
entities with HK$ as functional currency are not
considered significant as MOP is pegged to HK$ which
is also effectively pegged to USD under the pegged
exchange system in Hong Kong.

The Group has certain bank balances which are
denominated in RMB (being currency other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities)
amounting to HK$313,000 (2022: HK$310,000). The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management of the
Group monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

A TR T RRIN B3
%5 B T 2 REAE COR A A B
GAREISTRRCN EV R o e
o G0 475 i 35 B (1 I e e M)
JE B~ B IR F e U B LR
LA R 5 4 A B 2 BUR R T
3C o A A 1A B B 5 4 Ja B A AT
BB e B R AR DA M By BELAT R
2 J7 X EATRE 2 50 -

107 53 o B

Pkl

BN LB 18 516 5 2B A 4 1 B S S AR
Be FLBL A L A 22 A1 Wi e 3% 5 )y 22 Ja
Bt o A 2% w4 T T 2 ®) DASK R o
7 HE > M A T L RE A LA S
WOET R 2 SR 8 - A4
P A L Ay - A S I S TR B AT
T BLAMR P o0 e R HZ o A
R 19 B R A ol T AR B A
T 2 2 %< ) TR ] e Bl ST 48 8 T
E TC IR A Rk B S ST 8 > TR

LA 7T 7 D e 1 1Y 4R A DA IR
90 K 5 70 5 (8 2 &5 B 2 JA Bl A
NG

A [ DL R (BIVRA B 4 18 B B
Hiae & W LLAMW &) FHE A T
SRAT 45 88 313,000 7T (20224F :
310,0009 75 ) © A< 4E [ H A i 4 5h
W S o B BR o SR T > AN 4E 1B AL g
1 S 4 A1 g B e IR 5 1
KA R o
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £2023%3/1 31 H I &

34. ﬁﬁd{lﬁ (/‘E)
(b) B 5 Jl b 45 BE 23 & R BOR

34. Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives

180

and policies (continued) (#)

Market risk (continued) 117 5 I g ()

Foreign currency risk (continued) S i ()

The following details the Group’s sensitivity to a T SO AS 4R AN R S T e R

reasonably possible change of 5% (2022: 5%) in
exchange rate of RMB against HK$, while all other
variables are held constant. 5% (2022: 5%) is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency
risk internally to the key management personnel
and represents the management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign currency rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting
period for a 5% (2022: 5%) change in foreign currency
rate. For a 5% (2022: 5%) strengthening in RMB against
HKS$, the Group’s loss for the year would be decreased
by HK$16,000 (2022: HK$16,000). If RMB had been
weakened against HK$ in an opposite magnitude and
all other variables were held constant, the potential
effect on the results would be equal and opposite.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of inherent
foreign exchange risk as the year end exposure does
not reflect the exposure during the year.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed-rate pledged bank deposits, short-
term bank deposits, bank deposits included in bank
balances and lease liabilities as at 31 March 2023. The
Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to its variable-rate bank balances. The Group
currently does not have policy on cash flow hedges
of interest rate risk. However, the management of
the Group monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate risk should
the need arise.

The Group’s sensitivity to cash flow interest rate risk
has been determined based on the exposure to interest
rate for those variable-rate bank balances at the end
of the reporting period and management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in the interest rate
assuming that it took place at the beginning of each
year and was held constant throughout the respective
year.

R R A IR AT
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M. E&RTH (4)
(b) S 5 Jol b 45 B o B I SR

34. Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continued) (#)
Market risk (continued) 1 5 i B (#)
Interest rate risk (continued) VB -,

If interest rate for the variable-rate bank balances had
been 10 basis points (2022: 10 basis points) higher and
all other variables were held constant, the potential
effect on loss for the year is as follows:

D
— BRI 1T 4

Decrease in loss for the year:
- Variable-rate bank balances

If interest rates had been lower in an opposite
magnitude and all other variables were held constant,
the potential effect on the results would be equal and
opposite.

Credit risk management and impairment assessment
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to discharge obligations by the counterparties at the
end of reporting period are arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group performs impairment assessment under
ECL model upon application of HKFRS 9 on trade
balances individually. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

77 SR AT &5 R 2 AR b FH1048 3
2 (202247 1 10M8 2L &) > HAh pr 7
5 E BIAR B R 88 4F B fB5 18 2 VB TE
BT

77

i 1) 3 [ AR ) 45 Wi 2 % FE At P A 5
AR A B BRI 1 AR 4 R
MR Z B2

17 B 5 P J i fE A

A SR [ SR O B O ROR e
VB AT S5 10D 1 2 BSA AR T A B
R B0 o 7 BEEL B T 2K B R A
B IR UL 2 T 91 75 1)+ ] e 8 <
114 R T

2yl B AR B B A 4 I
i L 22 IR — B K BB E A R
B fE B AR O B AR
DR R IR A 47 Bl i o] A 8 O
BRA - 7% 18 P 7 s S 5 i o A R 2R 9
SRAR > A SR B AR R T AR s 1R R
2B ] 5 oy 65 BRAEAT B R A o
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34. ﬁﬁd{lﬁ (/‘E)
(b) B 5 Jl b 45 BE 23 & R BOR

34. Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives

162

and policies (continued)

Credit risk management and impairment assessment
(continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2023, lifetime ECL of
HK$590,000 (2022: Nil) for trade receivables from an
individual gaming patron with a gross carrying amount
of HK$590,000 (2022: Nil) was recognised as the
management of the Group considered this individual
gaming patron as credited-impaired.

The management of the Group has also assessed all
available forward looking information, including but
not limited to the economic outlook and subsequent
settlement of these receivables. As at 31 March 2023,
impairment allowance with an aggregate balance
of HK$21,469,000 (2022: HK$20,879,000) represents
individually credit-impaired trade receivables
from individual gaming patrons with an aggregate
gross carrying amount of HK$34,369,000 (2022:
HK$33,779,000) as the management of the Group
considered the outstanding balances from these
gaming patrons were uncollectible.

Lifetime ECL for the remaining trade receivables and
lease receivables with an aggregate gross carrying
amount of HK$20,061,000 (2022: HK$11,256,000) was
insignificant and thus not provided by the Group due
to the low probability of default of those debtors based
on historical credit loss experience. The management
of the Group has also assessed all available forward
looking information, including but not limited to the
economic outlook and subsequent settlement of these
customers, and concluded that the credit risk inherent
in the Group’s outstanding trade receivables and lease
receivables is insignificant.

s AR
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34. Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continued)

Credit risk management and impairment assessment
(continued)

The following table shows the movements in lifetime
ECL that has been recognised for credit-impaired trade
receivables from individual gaming patrons under the
simplified approach:

At 1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022
New trade receivables originated during
the year

J£20214F4H 1H 202243 31 H
A JBE A 2 R I B TR MR

(#7)
157 L B 5 DA A (4T

TR B IARE 5 07 i O RR A A
Tl 1 2 5 {8 B 2 R WSk Y
EWENE R R

At 31 March 2023

R20234E3H31H

Note: As at 31 March 2023, lifetime ECL for trade receivables
from individual gaming patrons on gross carrying
amount of HK$34,369,000 (2022: HK$33,779,000) was
HK$21,469,000 (2022: HK$20,879,000) as the management
of the Group considered certain individual gaming
patrons were credit-impaired.

For the pledged bank deposits, short-term bank
deposits and bank balances, impairment allowance
was insignificant and thus was not provided since the
management of the Group considers the probability
of default is negligible as such deposits are placed
in reputable banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies, and have low
credit risk.

For the other receivables including chips on hand,
impairment allowance was insignificant and thus
was not provided since the management of the Group
considers the probability of default is minimal after
assessing the counterparties’ financial background and
creditability.

BiaE 202343 A31H » H A A 4B [ A
B R 1 25 AR A R % T A
A Ik (B - A8 IR T (H 234,369,000
W6 (20224 033,779,000
L) ZRAMAIBEERF 2%
T ME Wik 2 4 W FE A5 ks 1R
421,469,000 JC (20224F :
20,879,000 75 ) -

B R SR AT A7 30 SR AT A7 K
T $RAT &5 BR 10 5 > BUE A I A
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34. ﬁﬁd{lﬁ (/‘E)
(b) B 5 Jl b 45 BE 23 & R BOR

34. Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives

154

and policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
of the Group to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management of the Group monitors the utilisation of
banking facilities and ensures compliance with loan
covenants, if any.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group has available
unutilised banking facilities of HK$408,650,000 (2022:
HK$520,000,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities and
lease liabilities that will result in cash outflow. The
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities and lease liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £202343/ 31 H Ik &

34. Financial Instruments (continued) M. @M ITH (4)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) B4 s ol b 4 B 5% B R BUR
and policies (continued) (#&)
Liquidity risk (continued) B & <R (A
Liquidity tables B &2

2023 20234
Trade and other payables %5 R ABE (T3 32,360 32,360
Amounts due to fellow WGV
subsidiaries 21,889 21,889
Amounts due to non- KHEARZ
controlling interests of R R
subsidiaries - 39,528 39,528
Subtotal i : wm B
Lease liahilities MEAMR . 21,681 38,332 21,46
21,681 132,104 121,018
2022 2022
Trade and other payables 25 R MM T3 - 77,828 - - - - 77,88 77,828
Amounts due to fellow GRS
subsidiaries - 4540 - - - - 4540 4540
Amounts due to non- KEARZ
controlling interests of FEREGE
subsidiaries - 39,523 - - - - 39,523 39,523
Sub-otal Mt 11891 - - - - e 1
Lease liahilities A 350 n 119 158 1006 850 BHy 3L
122,063 1193 158 206 2859 6530 153170
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £202343/ 31 H 1k &

35. Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising

from Financing Activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows from financing activities.

.-. N OTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. Eﬂéﬁiﬁ@lﬁﬁ%iiﬁﬁ%%

RS AR G T R ) P A B R
S WG B & RO E) - flE IS
B P A AR BT 18 L S R B A e
R AR B B Ui B A A B AR S B
PR R ) BT AR A B T

At1 April 2021 2014 4R 1H .
Interest accrued FEsT 1 5, -
New lease entered Hrl -
New bank borrowings raised MR -
Bank borrowings repaid EERRITHER -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 25) WK MEHHE A 7] ( M7#25) -
Dividends declared (note 12) EERME (H#12) 95,785
Financing net cash outflow BB SRR (95,785)
At 31 March 2022 4202243131 H

Interest accrued fERHAIE

New lease entered Hal g

Lease modification HEEU

Disposal of a subsidiary (note 24) ~ thE—HHHEA T (#24)

Financing net cash outflow BB S FE

At 31 March 2023 202343 431 H

156 " Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited %5 #8448/ R /A F
o © Annual Report 2022/2023 £

39,000 27,34 - 66,344
- 1,019 621 1,640

- 5,861 - 5,861

- - 210,000 210,000

- - (210,000)  (210,000)
2,090 - - 2,090
- - - 95,785
(1,567) (2,945) (621)  (100,918)

70,802
952
857
(2,725) (2,725)

(1,811) (1,811)
(1,306) (1,306)

27,246 66,769
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £202343/ 31 H Ik &

36. Capital Commitments 36. B AR I

Contracted for but not provided in Bt - ## KM O 7T 4
the consolidated financial ER TR fR A B S R
statements, net of amounts paid, B (FnBR AT %)
in respect of property, plant and

equipment 3,421
37. Operating Lease Commitments 37 BB ME R
The Group as lessor A S5 AR 2 AL

Operating lease rentals received RN IE Y 2T %
and receivable for the year in gz K A B

respect of investment properties 24,034
At the end of the reporting period, minimum lease payments i R R > B B 2 e AR B KA

receivable on leases are as follows: I

Within one year K
In the second year Hi24F 10,926
In the third year H34F 6,660
In the fourth year F44E 6,840
In the fifth year H55F 7,040
After five years 5S4 4,800
58,078
Certain premises in the Group’s investment properties AW BB ENAE TYECHEMR
have committed tenants for the lease terms ranging from JFORAH - FH A T34 H £ 54F (20224
3 months to 5 years (2022: 3 months to 8 years) and the 3 A 284 ) ANSE - WA )Y B e
rentals are pre-determined and fixed. b ] 5E 4 o
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £2023%3/1 31 H I &

38. Related Party Transactions 38. [ 3 J5 52 5
(a) Other than as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated (a) BRa%55 &5 G BhBs iR HOAth 5 6 T 3
financial statements, the Group also had the following 7% A > A SR ] R R B BR A Oy AT
significant transactions with related parties: IFE NS

(i) 1] — ] B 228 2 ) S A
SR
(ii) Food and beverage sales to related [ Bl #L 7) K 7] % it e
companies and fellow subsidiaries % ] & 4 ik
(iii) Professional service fee to a related [ — [H] B % 28 7] 3 +f

Brokerage fee to a related company

company S s 2

(iv) Purchase of property, plant and 1e] [ 2 ) K% ] 2R A e
equipment and merchandising O FLHE R AR
goods from related companies WA S B

and fellow subsidiaries
(v) Reimbursement of administrative EA ) 2 B JB8 2 W BT

expenses to fellow subsidiaries S Z AT B 3
(vi) Rental income from a related fi] — [H] B8 3 2 ) Wi
company LEEA PN
(vii) Secretarial fee to a related company [ —[H A& A & — 4
controlled by a director of the S ) 2 B T
Company ST T IR S
Note: Except for item (vii), the above related companies and Bat - BRES (vid) B b > bl B N ] R
fellow subsidiaries are controlled by the relevant private IF] 25 W J 2 ) o A5 1 A Ry A S
discretionary trusts of which Dr. Albert Yeung is the N B Bh 3T N Z AR B RL N 1
founder and settlor. fRHEREH] -
(b) The key management personnel of the Company (b) AoFAzEBERANBBARFZ
are the directors of the Company. The details of the o [ 8 55 SO A A B ) 0B B AR
remunerations paid to them relating to short-term M 22 307 P 17 SRS B RE 1O

employee benefits are set out in note 10.
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NOTES TO THE. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
oo B R bt

For the year ended 31 March 2023  #£202343/131 H I F &

39. Financial Information of the Company  39. A< 2 ] Z Bf % & ¥}
The financial information of the Company as at 31 March AN R20234E3 H 31 H K20224E3H 31
2023 and 31 March 2022 is as follows: HZ MBS &R

Non-current assets FE I )
Investment in a subsidiary T — [T Bf B > W] 2 B 555,136 385,710
Amount due from a subsidiary JRE i — [ B R 4 ) 735,417 782,450
1,290,553 1,168,160
Current assets LB
Prepayments FEAT K 246 242
Amount due from a subsidiary JRE e — TH] B B 2 W) R 73,276 182,513
Bank balances and cash HRATHE B B A CRE 2,719
82,708 185,474
Current liability SR
Other payables A JRE A 3K 571 640
Net current assets it Bl T E 82,137 184,834
Net assets & 1,372,690 1,352,994
Capital and reserves B KAk
Share capital JBEA 119 120
Reserves (note) et (B aE) 1,372,571 1,352,874
Total equity 25 A EH 1,372,690 1,352,994
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""" ' NOTESTOTHE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI SR b

For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £202343/ 31 H 1k &

39. Financial Information of the Company 39. A2 w] Z M ¥ & Bl (42)

(continued)
Note: i

At 1 April 2021 #20214E4 A 1H 436,765 677 1,009,755 1,447,197
Profit and total comprehensive T i M) e A THI R AR

income for the year M - - 16,072 16,072
Ordinary share repurchased and J ] e R 4 2 % 2 i

cancelled (note 28) (Kt7E28) - 1 (14,611) (14,610)
2021 final dividend paid ELUR20214F K 11 i 5 - - (17,960) (17,960)
2022 interim dividend paid ELUR20224F 5 1 i B - - (17,960) (17,960)
2022 special dividend paid B IR20224 45 7l Jig 15 ( ) (59,865)

At 31 March 2022 R20224E3H31H 436,765 915,431 1,352,874
Profit and total comprehensive A JEE Vi ) B 2 T WAL

income for the year AR 24,107 24,107
Ordinary share repurchased and W [ % i o

cancelled (note 28) (H7E28) - (4,411) (4,410)
At 31 March 2023 202343131 H 436,765 935,127 1,372,571
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NOTES TO THE. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
oo B R bt

For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £202343/ 31 H Ik &

40. Particulars of Subsidiaries 40. Vit J& 2> vl k1
(a) General information of subsidiaries (a) Bit )& 2 v — & Bl
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the A28 W 202343 A 31 H 202243
Company as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 are as H3LH Z EE M~ m T
follows:

Able Elegant Hong Kong HKS$134285 7851 Provision of catering

#E il 134,285 7t services
R
Acute Rise Limited British Virgin Us$1 80.00  Investment holding
HEHRAH Islands IES0 1§ ¢l
KRELRE
Affluent Travel Hong Kong HK$500,000 80.00  Provision of travel agency
B Hik 500,000 7 services
bR A R
Asian Glory Limited Macau MOP25,000 80.00  Property holding
T AEKEA IR 7 M 25,0001 17 %
Assets Pro Holdings Limited British Virgin Us$1 80.00  Hotel entertainment
Islands/Macau 1370 W5 5 5
ERELHE/
T
Emperor Hotel Management Hong Kong HK$1 NA  Provision of management
Services (HK) Limited Hil 17 AR services for hotel and
REREEERRY (FiE) ARAF serviced apartments
REHERRHEA L EER
e
Emperor Hotel Management Macau MOP25,000 80.00  Provision of management
Services (Macau) Limited M 25,000 7t services for hotels
(formerly known as Emperor (2022: provision of
Entertainment Hotel project financing
Management Limited) services)
SEREEE R GAM) ARAF SR 5 R
(MR R REEERARAT) (20224 - R{LHEH
AR
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""" ' NOTESTOTHE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI SR b

For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £202343/ 31 H 1k &

40. Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued) 40. W& 2 Wl 5E 4 (4)
(a) General information of subsidiaries (@) MBS 2wl — &R (4F)
(continued)

Emperor Hotel Management Hong Kong Provision of serviced
Limited it BT apartments (2022:
BRI ERARAA provision of management
services for hotel)
RUREXAE (2022
RO )
Grand Emperor Entertainment Macau MOP500,000 80.00  Provision of hotel and
S5 BRI JE TR 500,008 17t catering services
SR R B
Inn Hotel Macau Limited Macau MOP100,000 100.00  Provision of hotel and
TR B 5 A R A ] T 100,000 7 catering services
SR R B
Luck United British Virgin US$10,000 80.00  Investment holding
Islands 10,0003 ¢ RERER
REEARE
Mori Investments Limited Hong Kong HKS2 80.00  Property holding
itk 2k L ES

MORI MORI Serviced Apartments Hong Kong HES1 80.00  Provision of serviced

Limited il 17 apartments
ROHREALE
Motive Drive Limited Hong Kong HKS100 80.00  Property holding
BZBARAT i 10037t L ES
Oceanic Leader Investments British Virgin Us$1 100.00  Investment holding
Limited Islands 1%5 §ceidl
REEARE
Parkmost Limited Hong Kong HKS100 80.00  Property holding
ARRARA il 10072 L IES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEN TS“ -

SR e ISR R

For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £202343/ 31 H Ik &

40. Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued) 40. 1§ 2 w1 £ 4 (4F)
(a) General information of subsidiaries (@) Mg 2wl — &8 (4F)
(continued)

British Virgin Us$1 Investment holding

Islands 1%5t RERER
KRR LR
Precision Faith Limited Macau MOP100,000 100.00  VIP room and provision
LA R 1AM 100,000 117 of gaming-related
marketing and
promotion services
REWZET B
R R
B R
Quick Gain Investments Limited British Virgin Us$1 100.00  Investment holding
Islands 1%5t fERER
KRR LR
Right Achieve Limited British Virgin USs1 80.00  Investment holding
ERARA T Islands 1% REHEIR
KRELRE
The Davis Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 NA  Property holding
i 10,0004t TR EENE
The Emperor Hotel Limited Hong Kong HES1 80.00  Provision of hotel and
EERFEEARAA Fi 1 catering services
BRI R R
The Unit Serviced Apartments Hong Kong HKS$2 80.00  Provision of serviced
Limited ik 2 apartments
TRGRBALE
Tin Hou Macau MOP25,000 100.00  Provision of agency
K& (L85! 25,0008 16 services for gaming
operation
LR 3 v I e
..... . *  For identification purpose only xR
Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited BREEEEARAR . 1&3 ! i
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.-. N OTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SR e ISR R

For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £202343/ 31 H 1k &

40. Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued)  40. Bt & 2 ®l#E 1% (4F)
General information of subsidiaries (a) K8 A w — B &R ()
(continued)

(a)

Treasure Dragon Investments British Virgin Us$1 Investment holding
Limited Islands/Macau 17t &L
LR EARAH KRR LB G/ R
Vital Spring Holdings Limited British Virgin Us$1 - Investment holding
Islands 1% REHER
KREQHE
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company AN EHRZ G R, LRI RE
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, P AL B E A LR
principally affected the results or assets of the Group. b /NN i) /N /N RCTE o
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the TRy A A B s R 2w A
opinion of the directors of the Company, result in i e A U
particulars of excessive length.
None of the subsidiaries of the Company issued any JA202343 31 H &20224E3 A 31
debt securities as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022. H oo A 2% m] B 2> ) A 0 35 A7 AT AT

5 b o
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NOTES TO THE. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
oo B R bt

For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £202343/ 31 H Ik &

40. Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued) 40. 1§ 2 w1 £ 4 (4F)
(b) Details of non wholly-owned subsidiaries (b) it A7 5K I 5 i e 45 v IE

that have material non-controlling L& & A~ w2 ki
interests

The table below shows details of non wholly-owned R ORI AR AR
subsidiaries of the Company that have material non- VAT {0} /AP I i

controlling interests:

Luck United* British Virgin Islands
REELRE

20 (29,700) (115,833) 817,886 847,586

Individually immaterial subsidiaries with
non-controlling interests

EEESS TEZ S TN (105) 95 (375)

0805 EOEKZCN 617511 TR
*  Representing Luck United and its subsidiaries excluding its *  H%ELuck United & HHHE AR K
subsidiary with non-controlling interests. L FE HAE A ) 42 IO RE 4 A BR T 2 W)
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""" ' NOTESTOTHE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B AR ek

For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £2023%3/1 31 H I &

40. M & 2> W e A% (A7)

40. Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued)

(b) Details of non wholly-owned subsidiaries (b) B A5 3 K I ¥ i B 4 )
that have material non-controlling ZEWE A El Z e ()
interests (continued)

Luck United* Luck United*

Current assets it ) 613,663 1,219,280
Non-current assets FE I ) & 3,734,461 3,275,745
Current liabilities N =K i (176,598) (174,482)
Non-current liabilities T B A A (82,471) (82,884)
Equity attributable to owners A2 ml A AMEAGHE 45

of the Company 3,271,544 3,390,343
Non-controlling interests of Luck Unitedz FF % B HE £

Luck United 817,886 847,586
Non-controlling interests of Luck United§f J&§ 2> 7]

Luck United’s subsidiary Z IR SR 2 (375) (270)
Revenue PN 266,231 326,627
Costs, expenses, other gains JEAS ~ B 3~ HoAb i 4 B

and losses, and taxation i 48 DA B TH (414,835) (905,887)
Loss and total comprehensive 4 B 518 & 2> 1fj B 2 4%

expense for the year (148,604) (579,260)
Loss and total comprehensive M4k 4F B i 48 K&

expense for the year EXEC

attributable to:

Owners of the Company EN/NEIE7 2SN (118,799) (463,332)

Non-controlling interests of Luck UnitedZ

Luck United TR 45 (29,700) (115,833)

Non-controlling interests of Luck Unitedf} J& 2 7

Luck United’s subsidiary Z I (105) (95)
(148,604) (579,260)
Net cash used in operating Ko 1E ) i ) 2 B4 TR

activities (65,911) (157,233)
Net cash used in investing TG IEE T B T

activities (213,362) (1,011,092)
Net cash used in financing il 1 B i 2 B TR

activities (1,028) (4,341)
Net cash outflow B4 U v A (280,301) (1,172,666)
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
TR B

For the year ended 31 March 2023  # £202343/ 31 H Ik &

Results E 37

Revenue A 201,119 415,894 301,855 1,143,230 1,381,335
(Loss) profit before taxation BRBLAT (4R ) i A GEIPARIE  (724.885) (304,327 206,707 367,474
Taxation credit I ] 53,214 80,640 79,878 75,738 70,823
(Loss) profit for the year A (518 i Al (PIEENR  (644,245) (224,449) 282,445 438,297
(Loss) profit for the year JEIGEE (B518)
attributable to: il :
Owners of the Company E/NGIE 2PN CEREPR  (528,317)  (177,576) 263,915 367,492
Non-controlling interests IR PREIGE  (115,928) (46,873) 18,530 70,805
QKRN (644,245)  (224449) 282,445 438,297
Assets and Liabilities & KAl

Total assets BEE CRRYEALE 5,030,423 5,868,867 6,278,258 6,241,192
Total liahilities DR FIECA)  (388,692)  (471612)  (571,059)  (673,021)
RPN 4641731 5397255 5706999 5,568,171

Total equity attributable to: JEEA SR £ -
Owners of the Company /NI 2SN <G FGPE 3794415 4433694 4696748 4,576,308
Non-controlling interests HE e 817,511 847,316 963,561 1,010,251 991,863

IRAOCRPES 4641731 5397,255 5706999 5,568,171
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""" " SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES
BT

At 31 March 2023 #202343/31H

Particulars of the Group’s investment properties as at 31 March A £ H 20234331 H Z & &) E+F 15 W
2023 are as follows: T

Completed investment properties Bz EWE

1. Shops of Ground Floor of Grand Commercial 5,500 80
Emperor Hotel, Macau [EES
TP e 5 0 T Ml T L A
2. 8th Floor of Grand Emperor Hotel, Macau Commercial 22,300 80
R[] 0 B 0% A 7 5 Qe [EES
3. 10th Floor of Grand Emperor Hotel, Macau Commercial 22,300 80
{1 0 L 5 47 i 10 [EES
4. Portion of Ground Floor and the whole of Commercial 24,200 100
1st Floor of Inn Hotel, Macau [GES
TR 1Y B TG ) b A8 4 B 1R R
5. 17 Yik Yam Street, Happy Valley, Hong Kong  Shops/Residential 17,200 80
T Vs 0 15 b 28 pE T 1755 JE &
6. 46 - 48 Morrison Hill Road, Wan Chai, Shops/Residential 16,600 80
Hong Kong s T
U A E B 1L AE 46 — 4858
7. 22 Davis Street, Kennedy Town, Hong Kong  Shops/Residential 20,600 80
T ik B R M 2 A% - 152298 JE &
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